AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424
Meeting Room and Office — 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach
Telephone (805) 595-2664 FAX (805) 595-7623
E-Mail avilacsd@gmail.com

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
3:00 PM Tuesday, December 13th, 2022

Z0OOM MEETING: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4111787571
Meeting ID: 411 178 7571 Password: No Password Required.
BY PHONE: 1-669-900-9128
1. CALL TO ORDER:  3:00 P.M.
OATH OF OFFICE FOR NEW BOARD MEMBER JOHN JANOWICZ

2. ROLL CALL: Board Members:
Pete Kelley, President
Ara Najarian, Vice President
Kristin Berry, Director
Howie Kennett, Director
John Janowicz, Director

3. PUBLIC COMMENT
Members of the public wishing to comment or bring forward any items concerning District
operations which do not appear on today's agenda may address the Board now. Please
state name and address before addressing the Board and limit presentations to 3 minutes.
State law does not allow Board action on items not appearing on the agenda.

4. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

County Reports

1. SLO County Sheriff Department

2. CalFire/County Fire Department
Reports on Attended Conferences, Meetings, and General Communications of
District Interest



5. CONSENT ITEMS:
These items are approved with one motion. Directors may briefly discuss any item, or
may pull any item, which is then added to the business agenda.

Minutes of November 8%, 2022, Board Meeting

Monthly Financial Review for November 2022

General Manager and District Engineer Report

Water and Wastewater Operations Reports for November, 2022

oWy

6. DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS
At this time, items pulled for discussion from the Consent Agenda, if any, will be heard.

7. BUSINESS ITEMS: Items where Board action is called for.

A. Local Fire Code Update, Ordinance No. 2022-01
(Action Required: Open Public Hearing for first reading of proposed Ordinance No.
2022-01 providing revisions to the District’s Fire Code)

B. Resolution No. 2022-12 Authorizing District staff to continue to Participate in San Luis
Obispo County Desalination Executable Solution and Logistics (DESAL) Plan
(Action Required: Receive Staff and Consider adoption of Resolution No. 2022 -12)

8. COMMUNICATIONS/ COORESPONDENCE
At this time, any Director, or Staff, may ask questions for clarification, make any announcements, or report
briefly on any activities or suggest items for future agendas.

9. ADJOURN
The next Special Meeting will be held on January 10™, 2023 at 3:00pm.

Any writing or document pertaining to an open session item on this agenda which is distributed to a majority of the Board after the
posting of this agenda will be available for public inspection at the time the subject writing or document is distributed. The writing or document
will be available for public review in the District Administration Office, 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach, CA during normatl business hours.
Consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act and California Government Code Section 54954.2 requests for disability related modification
or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services may be made by a person with a disability who requires the modification or
accommodation in order to participate at the above referenced public meeting by contacting the District at 805-595-2664.



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
Avila Beach Community Services District
Tuesday, November 8th, 2022
1:00 P.M.

ZOOM MEETING: 411 178 7571

Meeting ID: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4111787571
BY PHONE: 1-669-900-9128

1. CALL TO ORDER

President Kelley called the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community Services District, to
order at 1:03 P.M. on the above date, in the Avila Beach Community Services District Building, 100 San Luis Street,
Avila Beach, California.

2. ROLL CALL

Board Members Present via Zoom: None
Board Members Present in Person: Pete Kelley
Kristin Berry
Lynn Helenius
Ara Najarian
Howie Kennett
Board Members Absent: None
Staff Present: Brad Hagemann, General Manager and District Engineer
Kristi Dibbern, Office Manager
FRM Operations: Jeff Cedillos, FRM
Legal Counsel: Not Present

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS

No Public Comment.

4. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. County Reports

Sheriff’'s Report: Sheriff Stuart MacDonald reported 45 calls for service this month. Seven disturbances, 3
suspicious circumstances, 29 preventive patrol stops and one theft. A mountain lion was spotted along the base of the
Bob Jones Trail at dusk near the golf course. Citizens of Avila spotted an armed police officer with a shotgun. The
mountain lion left the area before any action was taken.

Cal Fire: Battalion Chief Paul Lee reported 45 calls for service this month, 27 were medically related. Grant money
is rolling in to assists in the maintenance of trails and clearing from Shell Beach to Avila. Cal Fire has Davis Canyon,
Long Canyon, and the second Lighthouse on the calendar for controlled burns at the end of the month, weather
permitting. Chief Lee reminded the Board and public to check their smoke detectors. Detectors have a life
expectancy of 8 years.



B. Conferences, Meetings and General Communications.

GM Hagemann reported the wastewater plant had several security alarms related to the door on the backup generator
room. Jeff Cedillos reported that new alarm components were ordered and the security system will be upgraded to a
commercial system by Great Western Alarm. This should prevent any future “false” alarms.

5. CONSENT ITEMS

Director Helenius made a motion to approve the Consent Items. It was seconded by Director Berry and passed with a
roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Lynn Helenius
Kristin Berry
Howie Kennett
Ara Najarian
Pete Kelley

NOES: None
ABSENT: None

6. DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS: None

7. BUSINESS ITEMS:

A. Presentation of the FY 2021-22 Financial Audit

Johnathan Abadesco from Fedak and Brown, LLC presented the Draft FY 2021 -22 Audit to the Board. Mr.
Abadesco reported that their firm reported a “clean” audit, with no reportable actions. He noted that there
were no difficulties performing the audit and expressed their appreciation to District staff in assisting with
the Audit. The net position of the District increased by $260,411. The total revenues decreased by $79,341
and the expenses increased by $52,339. The Board received the report and accepted the FY 2021-22 Audit
“as is” with no changes. The motion was made by Director Najarian It was seconded by Director Helenius and
passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Ara Najarian
Lynn Helenius
Kristin Berry
Howie Kennett
Pete Kelley

NOES: None
ABSENT: None

B. Renew Operation Agreement with Fluid Resource Management for 12 months.
Staff recommended extending the O & M Services Agreement for another 12 months, with the understanding
that once the MBR Unit becomes operational (April 2023) FRM will likely need additional Scope of Work to
operate both plants. Once the MBR unit is operational any additional operational staff time will be
compensated on a Time and Materials basis. The Board directed staff to plan on updating the Operations and
Maintenance Scope of Work and soliciting bids for the Operations work prior to the beginning of the next
contract cycle (November 1, 2023).



The motion was made by Director Helenius, seconded by Director Berry and passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Lynn Helenius
Kristin Berry
Pete Kelley
Howie Kennett
Ara Najarian
Pete Kelley

NOES: None
ABSENT: None

C. Resolution No. 2022-11 Commending Lynn Helenius for her seven years of service to the Avila Beach CSD

Board of Directors.
Director Helenius was thanked for her years of service to the District and the community of Avila Beach. Mary

Matakovich thanked her for always serving the community to the best of her abilities. The motion was made to adopt
Resolution 2022-11 by Director Kelley, seconded by Director Berry, and passed with a roll call vote 5-0.

AYES: Pete Kelley
Kristin Berry
Howie Kennett
Ara Najarian
Lynn Helenius

NOES: None
ABSENT: None

COMMUNICATIONS/CORRESPONDENCE.
None

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 2:31 P.M.

The next regular meeting of the Avila Beach Community Services District is scheduled for Tuesday, December 13th,
2022, at 1:00 PM at 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach.

These minutes are not official nor a permanent part of the records until approved by the Board of Directors at their
next meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

Brad Hagemann, PE
General Manager






AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager @
DATE: December 14, 2022

SUBJECT:  General Manager/District Engineer Report

Zone 3 Advisory Committee and State Water Subcontractors Advisory Committee

The Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee last met on November 9, 2022. The agenda packet for the November
9™ meeting is included as an attachment.. The Zone 3 Advisory Committee last met on November 17, 2022. The
agenda packet for the Advisory Committee meeting is also provided as an attachment. As of this writing, the
Lopez reservoir is at 22.0 % of capacity with 10,850 AF in storage. We started the month of November with
approximately 11,200 AF in storage. Rain accumulation at the Lake measuring station since July 1, 2022, is 7.8
inches. The early November storm added approximately 2 inches of rain and the early December storm blessed us
with another 3 inches of rain. As noted on the attachments, we still anticipate hitting the 10,000 AF storage level
shortly after the first of the year. However, if we continue with a relatively wet December, we may be able to
hold off dipping below the 10,000 AF storage level.

On the State Water side, staff attended the November 4, 2022, State Water Subcontractors Advisory Committee
meeting. The agenda packet for that meeting is provided as an attachment for your information. Let me know if
you have any questions.

Wastewater Treatment Plant Project Status Report

During the month of November the Fluid Resources Management contracting crew focused on completing the
MBR “fit-up” work, which basically includes connecting the various electrical and plumbing systems within the
MRR system. Hartzell Construction crews continued with grading and basing the areas that will be paved,
installation of the new electrical conduit and preparing the pads for the new electrical switchgear. The major
milestones for December include forming and pouring the concrete storm water drainage swale and putting down
new asphalt paving for the interior of the WWTP. Delivery of the electrical switchgear components and the back-
up generator remain as the critical components for completion of the project. The vendors have advised us that
the delivery dates have moved up a few weeks. They expect the equipment to be delivered starting in late January
through early February. We are optimistic that the project will be ready for start-up by mid to late March, 2023.

The ABCSD was featured in the December 2022 issue of Avila Beach Life

At the request of the Avila Beach Life publishers, I provided an article about the District for their Community
Spotlight section. I provided a brief overview of the District’s roles and responsibilities and provided a few
photos and an update on the WWTP Improvement Project.

RWOQCB Climate Change Readiness Assessment

I received the attached letter from the Regional Water Quality Control Board regarding the completion of a
Climate Change Readiness Assessment Report. The letter was sent to all the WWTPs in the Central Coast Region
that discharge to surface waters. I also attended a presentation sponsored by the RWQCB that discussed their
intended purpose and objectives for Assessment Report. Water Board staff requested the report to be completed
by mid-December. They noted that completion of the Assessment is not mandatory, but they encouraged
dischargers to submit the Assessment as soon as staffing availability allows.



ZONE 3
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Wednesday November 9, 2022
9:00 - 11:00 am

Agenda

Phone line: +1 (646) 749-3122
Access Code: 617-462-197
OR
Webinar: https://global.gotomeeting.cony/join/617462197

' 1. Announcements All

2. General Operations and Water Report David
¢ Summary Notes — October
¢ Monthly Operations Report — October
e Agency Stored Water — October
o Lopez Storage Projections — October

3. Current Reservoir Conditions Kyle (Verbal)

4. Capital Projects Update David

5. LRRP David
¢ 2018 Amendment — Was never adopted

6. Unplanned Capitol Project Funding David

e Sodium Hypo Tank (Failing), PAX, and
Sodium Chlorite
o ~$520,000 to replace all three

7. Cloud Seeding David
e Validation Study with SB County - DRI was
the winning bidder
e Should Zone 3 consider joining the study?
e 2021 Runoff Increase Estimates

8. Future Agenda items? All
e Project Updates
e HCP/Instream Studies

e Zone 3 Boundary Change

Attachments:

Summary Notes - October

Lopez Monthly Operations Report — October
Agency Stored Water

Lopez Storage Projections Chart — October
Capital Projects Update

2018 LRRP Amended and Restated

NVIRO Tank Replacement Quote

DRI Proposal

Cloud Seeding Runoff Increase Estimates

Next Meeting Date: December 14, 2022

TIOMMOOw>



ZONE 3
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY October 12, 2022 (9:00-11:00 AM)
Via GotoMeeting
SUMMARY NOTES - DRAFT

Attendees via GoTo Meeting: Shane Taylor (Arroyo Grande), Ben Fine (Pismo Beach), Greg Ray (Grover Beach), Will Clemens
(OCSD), Brad Hagemann (ABCSD), Jim Garing, John Wallace, Vard lkeda (SMMWC), David Spiegel (PW Dept), Megan Schotborgh
(PW Dept.), Francesca Devlin (PW Dept)

1. Announcements
e Contract Changes
o Will announces that Oceano has approved its Zone 3 contract; Pismo Beach, Arroyo
Grande have also been approved; Greg states Grover Beach contract went to Council.
¢ Central Coast Blue
o Ben announces that Central Coast Blue is now an entity in and of itself, Arroyo Grande,
Grover Beach, and Pismo Beach have all adopted the JPA.
¢ City of Pismo Beach & LRDM Lawsuit
o Lawsuit was settled; Pismo Beach now has the full 1,240 AF of State Water back in
their possession.

2. General Operations and Water Supply Report
o David Spiegel reviewed the Monthly Operations Report.

o Greg states Grover Beach received 20% reduction in contract deliveries and using
Surplus/Carry-Forward water; states that with the 20% reduction mandate, Grover
Beach is getting about 5%. Greg states that there aren’t any other options, aside from
using ground water, but doesn't believe it's the best decision to preserve ground-water
health.

o David states that once in the LRRP and 20% reductions are made, it's on each agency
to make the changes within their jurisdictions to accommodate it; the LRRP doesn't
prohibit Carry-Forward usage, but to extend the life of the reservoir as stated in the
LRRP, the only way to do so is not using Carry-Forward water.

= David believes the County has never come to a point of needing to shut off a
turn out to an agency once all entitlement and carry-forward is used, and
therefore force ground-water pumping. However, David could do so under the
LRRP.

o John has inquired about a long-range plan or joint JPA for if/iwhen the reservoir
crashes, and what steps will be taken to supply water to everyone once we'’re
approaching minimum pull.

o Jim provides background; the philosophy in Zone 3, was that because Lake Lopez was
seen as a wasting asset, the thought was always to use Lopez water first, and then
resort to ground water if necessary.

« David Spiegel reviewed the Lopez Storage Projections.

o The 10,000 AF trigger point was pushed about approximately 8-10 days due to early

October rainfall, which resulted in just enough rain for the soil to absorb all of it.

3. Current Reservoir Conditions
o David Spiegel reported the Elevation = 459.28 ft, Storage = 11,524 AF @ 23% Capacity,
rainfall to date since July 1, 2022 is 2.62 in, WTP at 2.6 MGD, SWP at 1.9 MGD, Downstream
Releases = 1.9 MGD.



4. Capital Projects Updates

¢ Tesla Battery Storage (No Change) ,
o) Doing Startup testing to be prepared for PGE approval of plan to operate (PTO)
o} Budget — Free

» Spillway Assessment and Investigation (No Change)
o Consultant is preparing response to DSOD workplan comments. Draft response expected

by 9/16/22.
o Remainder of project ~ minimum of $300,000

¢ Geotechnical Testing & Seismic Alternatives Study of Terminal Reservoir Dam
o DSOD completed workplan review process.
o Final workplan under GEI review.
o Budget ~$500,000

o Lopez WTP Safety Upgrades (No Change)
o Staff are looking into additional consultants to do a lifeline system within the membrane
building.
o Multiple consultants have reviewed the project, but none have quoted the project.
o Budget ~$53,000

¢ Cathodic Protection Repair Project (No Change)
o Preparing BID documents
Submitted encroachment permit applications
Obtained authorization from the Board of Supervisors to advertise the project
Plan to advertise the project by the end of October.
Need Additional $160,000 this fiscal year
Budget ~$449,933

o 0 O 0 °0

e Equipment Storage Building
o Bids came in significantly over budget. Installing an equipment storage building is

currently infeasible.
o Budget ~$90,000

¢ CO2 Injection System (No Change)
o Construction plans at 100%, going out to bid in the next few weeks
o Budget ~$256,000

e Sludge Bed Curtain Wall Rehabilitation (No Change)
o ~$50,000 per initial quote

e Chlorine Dioxide Bulk Storage Tank
o PO issued for equipment
o Tank delivery between 09/30/22 — 10/14/22
o Budget ~$47,308.51

5. Downstream Releases
¢ Downstream releases are currently set at 1.9 MGD, which is the minimum flow we are
“loosely” required to release; in the event we hit 10,000 AF trigger point, we will have already
released the 1,020 AF for this year, per the LRRP. At this point in the year, we have released
1,100.81 AF down the creek. David believes that per Environmental groups involved, valves at
the base of the dam cannot be shut off to stop downstream releases, as this could bring about

lawsuits.



o The approach moving forward would be to prorate the remaining of the water year
for the downstream release.

o Under the LRRP, once 10,000 AF is met in the reservoir, this amounts to
approximately 85-90 AF each month. Once the 10,000 AF trigger is met, we could
potentially reduce to 90 AF each month for the remainder of the water year and
avoid retroactively going to the beginning of the water year and shutting valves off.

o Jim states that in-flow most likely still needs to be released, per original water
permits, as it is believed you cannot go below in-flow at anytime during the year.

6. Board Items for 10/18/2022
o State Water
o Pertains to 1,000 AF water exchange with CCWA for emergency water, has
proposed guidelines regarding how we would vet who needs water and how much.
¢ Cloud Seeding
o Presuming the Board of Supervisor’'s approves the contract with Santa Barbara
County, the program would begin December 1, and cloud seeding events can take
place after December 1. Aerial and ground-based seeding were locked in for this
year, and each subsequent year will be planned and seeded accordingly.

7. Future Agenda Iltems
o Now that contracts are in place, Will would like to request an Agency Initiated Exchange; this
would entail opening SWP deliveries and providing it to non-SWP entities, and each agency’s
delivered water would go into Lopez Storage.
o David states that if agencies are delivering SWP elsewhere, it needs to be tracked
and ensure water is put into storage accounts appropriately.

Next Meeting November 9, 2022

Summary Notes Prepared by Amber Cordova



I Jo|a3nq

uipy

:Aq paud yeoday

*Kffenuue pajuasasd aq |[1m s3s50] uonelodeaq "IV 78 669 SeM Sassa] uonelodead snuill Jajes 918lS POIOIS POIBINOED oY) 1Z0T ‘1€ J9qWad(] UD
‘UONEZUIAIORIBYIAL JajeM S [OT ‘1 Atenuep st o1 3oeq Sunep sesso] uotieiodeas SnUI 19je A MBIS PaI0lg 3y payussaid Auno) ayp ‘zzo7 [Hdy uo {§

*UOLOINPAI %07 ©

do1 umoys

‘yuou sqyi a8esn s,apueln) oAoLry W01f pajorRNqNs Sem [y £/ [ PUBR Yjuow sIf) 93esn Iojem
5,0UB22() 0) PaPPe Sem 15917 UDAUED) 0] PRISAI[AP JV LL'1 JO [E10] Y “ING W} BUPZ §,3pURIL) 0KOLY EIA §89I0) BoAue)) 0} 1jem parjddns ouesoQ (1

T 2y Ut pajeusisop se Joiem JOAQ ALreD),, A[jenoe st umoys 1aem snjdmg(g

ug “J¥YT 2Y) Jo 3R Ty 000°01 2u1 Suryara Jo uonedidnue ur 770z [UdY 03 2A1IEOII) UOHONPAT
USWIINUR 9%,07 ® PISIOPUS DV 7Z0OZ 17 Al U0 "(IIUT) ueld asuodsay H0A1982y 0T ay) Jopun pajerado mou aie SOLAT3(T 1oyep Z3doT (7

oavig G :4q pasruz nog

720C 'L 4oquanoN 'Copucpy

UG )

“{[gjures 103 Juasaad 01 A[nf pue ‘sausaljep zodoT 103 jussaid o) [udy *iajem 511§ J0] Jussaxd o) Areniref s1 3R] 0) 1AL,

J-0I0v 0£L'g ST PIAIA 9JBS '1a9J OIqNd 95 ‘£ 10 SUO[BT (58 ‘STE =100 4108 AU '193J-2I1IE UL AUE SALNALR( AJON

00°0 0 (129} o100} ageqidg

10'88T1 LI (123£/133) 3198 (T} ASTI[Y WESNSUMO(]]

79T 4] rejurey]

%8'TT g % £1Z11 {(123] 210® 0076F 1€ [[NY) 25e10]1S)
86'€9- (399;) 20uasaId [1%-174 (123} ££°7TS I |(0}) LoNeAR[Y 33e]
Neq 03 183y | Wuow sIgy, suonesad() weq zadoy

=

yoday] suonerdxd( A[UOIA - 103lo1d zodoT - € SUoZ

TT0T 12q010

10LSI(T JOJBA\ PUE [01IUO)) POO[] A1uno)) odsiqQ SIn ueg

_Eum @ ZI¥SD B §d 0 ds20 n__
ZIVSON 8d O asso0 g9 m ovE
w.Po zz,des 7z, Bny  zz,inr  ZZ,unp gz heW  zz.adv gz, JeW  zZ.qed gz, uer
0 TLWO TW.des gzz.Bny  gZ,nr  gz.unr ZZ. AeiN 2z, idv 2T, e T2 404 ZZ.uer
00 T M T TR T TTE T -y :

— L 05 W s »

. = g oo 2

L ﬁ L o L o &

= st 00z
abesn ss1em 8)e)S Juesaig o) aenuer abesn) 109 sn|dingHueweppul zedoT Juesaiy o) udy
00°SPL 1912 A\ AIEIS PIIOIS YIUOW SIYT, 9E°T06 | Iem ieIg pau0)g Yluoy IseT
9L'FIV 00°LELY  |%6'PL 8'1591 9E'LST~ 0 Y%l'L oe'est | oo0zz 1496z | 86'6e81 |%00 | 000  [%sos | seeesl fleno | o000 [wrL |ovesi) stz | oo'sesz | ooessz | rzog |[BIOL
L %6'6S 76°1L %59 UL 0zZ1I ON[NSIA UeS
89'b1 %L €8 ££°08 %68 058 96 flweel 6¥'2S %00 000 %89z | 6v'zs M%00 000 |%T€ 819 9ZH 00°0€T | 00°0€T | 961 ¢l VSO
Z8ETL %ob 68 16'8011 %18 00001 | ovzl J12a0'11 8TE6E %00 000 %1tz | sTeel fl%s00 000 |%EE ZRET | 7941 | 00°'8HOI | 00'8SYOL | 9EIL yoeag owslg
L899 24515 9709 |%0°0 000 |%6'1L | 9zosr J|oseo 000 |%t01 | 1899 jaz] 00'FP0Z | DO'VOT | OFY (€3¢ JIA0ID)
[aN 12 %1°ZS 1 9906t %s's | pITY %0°0 000 |%0°0 000 %00 000 fl600 000 |%00 00°0 L19 | oosce | oosce | veve | SO OUBIdQ
5091 %I'br | S6'EEIT |%0°0 000 |%6'19 | S6'ELTl J1%0°0 000 |%88 | €S091 | tLsz | 00T | 00'zel | zeyl | SPUBID OAOLY
Puo SIYL | ssuaaisg 1sanbay afeinlg | sauaareqg ._u.u.._,__wmw sanbayl % a3esn) % adesn % afesn) % ades) % | 2%es) | aorem parejsq

SABAIPJ dMS Jenuuy jo % adesn w s3uey) dMS 10 0 adespy [enuuy [ejo], snjding JUETNENEN G snpding JuWR Y SIGEIIBAY | pajsanboy | 193EM A010e1IU0]))

1B 0L juasa1d 03 Kenuef YUO SIL juasaid of [udy PO ST 1e10L | sudmg | smjding | ug

SILIDAIR(] 13)BAA BIS SALIdAIR(T #ep zado] _



0°0 00 0 ojijenBiy ueg
098 00 98 rARL 550)
0'vie 00 4% yaeag owsid
0'cle 069 ¢8¢ yorag J9A0I5)
020} 00 101 aso oueasQ
9'v.lL L&A 108 apueis) ooy

€202-2C0C 1ea) J9lepp
J91eM palolg

C202-120¢ 1BaA Jajepy
pasn shiding

Z202-120C 12 19)epy
ajgejieAy snjding

[dv] siunowy Jajepp snjding patols




000

00'¢

0oy

00’9

008

0001

00'¢t

00T

jlejured papipasd Mo jo syjuow Buiinp

(4eauy) ay) mojaq ||e; yim ydeig uogae{osd eBeiols {SAeouca) ay) (adeys u) aaEIU0D) uolsssa.Bal jelwouAjod e Uo paseq s) [epoly uopdafolg aBelols ay]
*Pajeines s {105 Y] UIYM UOSEIS Auie ) Bulinp ey} syyuowl Asp ay: BuiInp MGjul $53] S3NPCId (|IM SWICISUIEY *|ADG ALY 63U} PAI0IIR] PUB SUDIIDLOD {(0S JUBPAIAIUE Aq DIIIFLE S| MO
wo3r1ayieamaBuziBue) wol; pauleqo jejuies papipasd ay3 uo juspuadap S| imojju) papIpalq

salanl|ap Ajyiuow aBesane 1z0zZ-0T0Z Lo paseq si :a8esp AusBy

sasea|ay weansumoq + adesn Aualy = moying

MOINQ - Mojju| + 3BE101G JUDLINY) = 58EI0IS JloAIIsaY

1$9J0N
21eq
el = e e =

D s WN R N R O W0 N O U & W B N B O W o N A WN P NP O WO NO ;MR WN e
T T T - T T T T T T e e e T e T
e i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e S e e S e e N Y Y Ty - B Y
e S e e T e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e T e e e e T T T T T T e T s Ly
NN NN N NN NN N NN N DN NN N DNDNDNNDBDN NN DNDNNNNN-BRNNDNDDD NN NN NN NNN
©C O 0 O 0O O O 0 O O © O O QO O OO0 © O 0 O O O O 0 O O 00 O O O O 0 O 0O o o o o o o
RN NN NN N NN N NNDNBRD NN NDNMNRNRNRNNRNDNDNNRNNNNDNNRNERNDNRNDNNDNDDNDNNNN
W W W wWww wWw KRN ENNNNNNDNNDNNNIGRRRRPB R | B B P PR RP OO0 O OC O OO0 O o oo o
: e . s : \ : i :
! | %0040 b} | _ %00,0 | zzh 200Gy | Py s
Ji. . : L0 : . |

o Pt 0 9e'0 evp Nmo oSo 5 oL $Z0 s b
86°0 360 mﬁ.wm P 290 EE0) ‘o I
= I = - — N B80T — el | =5 ——F
1 ¥8'T 0Lt 1
£0'¢ . I
: 127 gez Vi< I

¥8'C . .
o6t 167 I gpe 44t 1 agzf
—_— N.H-m —_— . D D D A T MN.M - qm ||
zzoz/ie/et

— — B .V i
S S T G D A e L A — W NS WS -

£€eL

4V 00007 = =

4V 00007 == w=
28e103$ |endy

{uley oN) uonafoid 28eio1s

uonjeydiIald PaIdIPaLd

NOILJ31OYd IDVHOLS HIOAYISTY Z3d0O1

u01115[01d 98RI0)G mmmmse

uoneydidaid [enyoy

000s

000sT

00007

000s¢

0005€

0000t

(4v) 28euio1s




TO:

FROM:

DATE:

ZONE 3 Lopez Project

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee
David Spiegel, PE

November 9, 2022

SUBJECT: Zone 3 Projects Update

Project Updates:

Tesla Battery Storage (No Change)
o Doing Startup testing to be prepared for PGE approval of plan to operate
(PTO)
o Budget —Free

Spillway Assessment and Investigation (No Change)
o Consultant is preparing response to DSOD workplan comments. Draft
response expected by 9/16/22.
o Remainder of project ~ minimum of $300,000

Geotechnical Testing & Seismic Alternatives Study of Terminal Reservoir Dam
(No Change)

o DSOD completed workplan review process.

o Final workplan under GEI review.

o Budget ~$500,000

Lopez WTP Safety Uparades (No Change)

o Staff are looking into additional consultants to do a lifeline system within
the membrane building.

o Multiple consultants have reviewed the project, but none have quoted the
project.

o Budget ~$53,000

Cathodic Protection Repair Project
o Preparing BID documents
o Submitted encroachment permit applications
o Obtained authorization from the Board of Supervisors to advertise the
project
o Plan to advertise the project by the end of October.
o Need Additional $160,000 this fiscal year
o Budget ~$449,933

Equipment Storage Building (To Be Cancelled)

o Bids came in significantly over budget. Installing an equipment storage
building is currently infeasible.



ZONE 3 Lopez Project

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

o Budget ~$90,000

CO2 Injection System (No Change)

o Construction plans at 100%, going out to bid in the next few weeks
o Budget ~$256,000

Sludge Bed Curtain Wall Rehabilitation (No Change)
o ~$50,000 per initial quote

Chloride Dioxide Bulk Storage Tank (No Change)
o PO issued for equipment
o Tank delivery between 9/30/22 — 10/14/22
o Budget ~$47,309.51

Completed Projects
e Lopez Water Treatment Plant Rack 1 Membrane Replacement



ZONE 3 ADVISORY COMMITTEE

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

AGENDA

Thursday, November 17, 2022 6:30 P.M.
City of Arroyo Grande Council Chambers
300 East Branch Street, Arroyo Grande, California 93420
Phone line: +1 (872) 240-3412
Access Code: 931-623-109
OR
Webinar: htips://global.gotomeeting.com/join/931623109

|. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Il. PUBLIC COMMENT

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items that are

not on the Agenda

lll. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES
A. August 11, 2022 Special Meeting — Attachment 1

IV. APPROVAL OF 2023 MEETING SCHEDULE - Attachment 2

V. OPERATIONS REPORT

A. Water Plant Operations, Reservoir Storage, Downstream Releases - Verbal Update

B. Projected Reservoir Levels — Attachment 3
C. September & October Monthly Operations Report — Attachment 4

VI. INFORMATION ITEMS
A. 1st Quarter Budget Status — Attachment 5
B. Cloud Seeding Update — Verbal Update

VIl. CAPITAL PROJECTS UPDATE
A. Bi-Monthly Update — Attachment 6

VIIl. ACTION ITEMS (No Subsequent Board of Supervisors Action Required)

IX. ACTION ITEMS (Board of Supervisors Action is Subsequently Required)
A. Endorse Budget Adjustment to Fund Tank Replacement Project — Attachment 7

X. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Xl. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

Next Regular Meeting is Tentatively Scheduled for
January 19, 2023 at 6:30 PM at City of Grover Beach Council Chambers
Agendas accessible online at www.slocounty.ca.gov/pw/zone3




SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL
AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
ZONE 3 ADVISORY COMMITTEE
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
THURSDAY August 11, 2022

l. Call to Order and Roll Call - The Zone 3 Advisory Committee Meeting was called to order
at 6:32 PM at the City of Grover Beach by Daniel Rushing. County Public Works Utilities
Division Engineer and Secretary to the Advisory Committee, Jill Ogren, called roll. Quorum
was present. Members in attendance were:

¢ Marcia Guthrie, City of Pismo Beach

¢ Shirley Gibson, Oceano Community Services District
e Daniel Rushing, City of Grover Beach

e Brad Hagemann, Community Services District 12

¢ Ron Reilly, Member at Large

e Vard Ikeda, Agriculture Member

Il. Public Comment — This is an opportunity for members of the public to address
the Committee on items that are not on the Agenda. No public comment.

lll. Information Items
A. Sample Resolution for Virtual Meetings — Jill Ogren provided a sample resolution for

virtual meetings.

IV. Action Iltems (No Subsequent Board of Supervisors Action Required)
A. Motion to approve virtual meetings — Member Gibson motions approval to pursue
virtual meetings when possible, while utilizing resolutions in place, and Member
Reilly seconded. Jill Ogren called roll. Motion passed.

V. Action Iltems (No Subsequent Board of Supervisors Action Required)

A. Endorse execution of Amended and Restated Water Supply Contracts — Member
Guthrie motions to endorse the execution of Amended and Restated Water Supply
Contracts between the San Luis Obispo County Flood and Water Conservation
District and the Zone 3 Contractors, and adoption of the associated Negative
Declaration Member Hagemann seconded. Jill Ogren called roli. Motion passed.

VI. Action ltems (Board of Supervisors Action is Subsequently Required)

XI. Committee Member Comments

Meeting Adjourned at 7:00 PM
Respectfully Submitted,

Amber Cordova
County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works



ZONE 3 - LOPEZ PROJECT

ADVISORY AND TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEES

2023 MEETING SCHEDULE

Purpose
Date Group Location ;
Jan 11. 2023 (T:i‘::rrr‘,'i‘:t‘: ;\(‘#’Asg)ry GoToMeeting, 9:00 AM | Discuss proposed FY 23/24 budget
Jan 19, 2023 | Advisory Committee G:os\;erSI.BE%Chr;,hGS:?g;M Distribute proposed FY 23/24 budget
Feb 8, 2023 | TAC GoToMeeting, 9:00 AM Distribute proposed FY 23/24 budget
Budget discussion/recommendation; present
Mar 8, 2023 | TAC GoToMeeting, 9:00 AM estimated surplus water quantity available in
23/24
Present 2™ quarter budget status; present
g : Arroyo Grande, 6:30 PM | proposed FY23/24 budget; endorse FY23/24
Mar 16, 2023 | Advisory Committee 215 E. Branch St budget; present estimated surplus water
quantity available in WY 23/24
] n Present actual surplus water quantity available
Apr 12, 2023 | TAC GoToMeeting, 9:00 AM | ;1) \wy 23/24
May 10, 2023 | TAC GoToMeeting, 9:00 AM
May 18, 2023 | Advisory Committee Pismo Beach, 6:30 PM 3" Quarter Budget Status
Jun 14, 2023 | TAC GoToMeeting, 9:00 AM
Jul 12, 2023 | TAC GoToMeeting, 9:00 AM
Oceano CSD, 6:30 PM ;
Jul 20, 2023 | Advisory Committee 1655 Front Street | OToer Rotations
Aug 9, 2023 | TAC GoToMeeting, 9:00 AM
Sep 13, 2023 | TAC GoToMeeting, 9:00 AM Request Water Delivery Schedule - due Oct 1
Grover Beach, 6:30 PM " .
Sep 21, 2023 | Advisory Committee 154 S. Eighth Street e
Oct 11, 2023 | TAC GoToMeeting, 9:00 AM
. . Discuss proposed Capital Improvement
Nov 8, 2023 | TAC GoToMeeting, 9:00 AM Projects for next FY
Arroyo Grande, 6:30 PM | 1%t Quarter Budget Status; Set next year's
Nov 16, 2023 | Advisory Committee 215 E. Branch St meeting dates
Dec 13, 2023 | TAC GoToMeeting, 9:00 AM Distribute Water Delivery Schedule by Jan 1

G:\Utilities\Zone 3\Cmte - AC - Advisory Committee\Calendar\2023 Zone 3 Meeting Schedule - Draft.docx




000

00°¢

00’y

009

00'8

0001

00'¢Ct

00'vT

’Jlesures paripasd moj Jo syruow Bulnp yaeig uiey o Yipm uoiaajoad a9eio)s {12aull) ayl mojaq |1g) im ydeis) uojs[oag eBeiols {aneauad) ay) {adeys ut aneducd) uoisssadal jeluouAiod & uo paseq S| [epajy uopdejold afeioys ay)

“pajeINIes §| 10 aY) uaym uoseas Aures ayy Bulnp uey: syiuow Aip syl Junp smojil s53) 33npead M SWIOISUIZY {9POW 9Y) CIUI PAICIDE; PUB SUOIPUOD iCs JUBPAIAYUE Aq PAIIILe S| MOYU|
w33y eamalueBuo| woiy pauselqo |ejulel payIpaid sy uo JUapUAaP St iMOju| PaYAIPaLd
S3L3NYPP Ajypuciu sBessAR T707-0T0T U paseq s| :aflesn Aualy

saseajoy Weansumog + adesn Aualy = aciang
MOIINE - ir0ju] +28e1015 JUBINY = aBEI0IG HOMIASY

:s9joN
aaeq
e = L = Ll e =
L LH YO N0 QI 2NN EQ00 YT sENERE2 Q0 ®NS NS e
L S R
N M N NN N NN N DM N NN NN BN KRN N DD DN NN NN DNRN NN DN RN NN N DN RN RN N NN
O O O OO0 O O 0O O O O O O O O OO O O O O O O O O O O OO0 O O 0O O O O O O O 0o O o O
NN N N RN N NN NN N N RN NN RN NN R R N N NN N RN RN RN N R DN NN NN N NN
W W W W Ww W NN N NN NDNDDNDNDNNR B R P R B PR R B R R B OO0 0O O O O O O oo o
5 _ T T T _ _ T T _ o1 =g =
I _ %00,0 .em_ _. 3 %0, _ | | 2000 Oy ke
o B.o, 0 580 |evh :oamo L g 260 $Zi0 vsp T
860 86'0 j vop 290 seoll [
[ — . — mw._r #ET L
E0T o €0°C :
127 oo a4
" 8€¢C B
867 16T | #he prN szt
T O Nﬁ.m .‘m.m -~ (%M'..”
eoz/1e/aT [
oLy L
£€°L s
T - - - o {fl
4V 000°0T == == {uiey opN) uoiafoid s8eiois U01138{0.d 9BEI0)S e
4V 00007 = = a8elols [enyoy uonendiald paipald uoneydald jlenoy E— |

NOILI3TOHd IO9VHOLS HIOAYISIY Z3d01

T 000S

00007

000sT

0000¢

000sT

0000€

000se

0000t

(dv) @28e1015

I NETTIALL IS

1/




61 Jo g obeg

] Jo|alvg utupy  :Aq paurad Lioday

"Aq[enuue pajuasad aq Jjim sossof uonelodeAd "IV 78 659 SeM $3550] UOHEIOdEAD SNUI 191BAY 2)B)§ PAI0}S PAEIND[ED 93 TZOT ‘[ € J9quadagy uQ
"HONEZLIAEIRYD21 13jem G10T ‘1 Atenuer 9y} 01 3joeq Sunep sasso] uoyeiodeas snuru 131y A1ENS PaI0lS 3y pajuasaid Alunoy) ay1 ‘¢zog (udy uQ (p

“ AT 943 Ul pajeuSisop se 19jem  19A() ALIED,, AJ[eMoR ST UMOoys 1em snjding(c

"UOLIONPAI 8407 © da1 umons DU T 241 Jo 1033m v 000°01 241 Suiyoea yo uonedionue ut (7707 (UEY 0) 3ARIEONAI) UCHINPAL
WAWIINUS %0 B PISIOPUL DY ZZ0T ‘1T AInf uQ (A7) ueid osuodsey] Jroalassy mo] ay) 1apun pajesado mou are sauaarfaq 1yepm zado (7

‘uow sty 9Fesn sHpuRID) 0A0IIY WL PAISRNGNS SeM JV [L'] pUe iyuow siy) 3Tesn Jjem
5,0UB39() O} PIPPE M 1531 UOAUER) O] PAISAI[RP Y [L°[ JO €101 V IO Wiy BUPH S,2pUeID) 0A0LY ©iA 15910 uokue)) o) xojem parddns oueangy ([
SHUIUWOD)

“lrejuies 103 Jussaxd 01 A[np pue ‘sarrealfap zadoT 10y Juasaid 0] Judy ‘Iejem ajeyg 1oy juesald o) Arenuer st ,a7e(] 0} Iea X,

[wues B zivsom s masoon|

w,deg  zz,Bny  zz.nr Zz,une 2z, AR gz 0dy Zz,JeW  ZZ.qed  ZZ.uer

b U U i e T Ve U e I

j9e4 aloy

abesn Je)ep) 9)EYS JUBSBId O} Auenuepr

onvag 'q  :Aq pa.aius vpQg

7207 '/ Aoqwanon ‘Aopuopy

J-0I108 0£L'g §1 P[A1A 9JBS 139J JIqNO (96 “ff 10 SUO|[ET 0S8 ‘CTE = 100 AIOE AU '192J-0I98 UI 1L SALAIP( 1ON

000 0 (193} a108) uwn_znw_

180011 9£°s81 (Jeakpaay 2108 OO} 25820y Ewo.:mcaca_

79'C 79'T Treywexy|

%8'€T (] % 98911 {1205 210% 00Z64 18 [INY) 23eI05S
L5°T9" (1293) 2du2194311 3'65t (199§ LE'ZTS 18 |11Y) UONEBAD[Y e ]
dje 03 AIX | MUOI WYL suopetad( weq zado]

P

| z1vsom admassoo aom ova|

ze.deg  zZe.Bny  zz.nr  zz.unt  Ze.few  zz,adv  ZZ MBI Zz.ged gzl uer

abesp) Jeyep snjdingHuaweppuy zado] jussaid o) |udy

os
0ol

31804 RUoy

051

9€°706 31BN 108 PRI0IS YIUOW SIYL 87698 1318/ 21€IS PR101S YIUo IseT
SU°66E 00'LELL  |%L'L9 [Tas14t 80°EE vpl |%e0's | zeory | ocezz [[wewst | ss'zsst [%00 | 000 [%ier | sszsst ffwoo | o000 [%os [ crssi| ez | ovesst | ovessz | pzos |IBIOL
89'¢ %S5°'£S 0% %Ly 89°S 4] ONORATIA UeS
86b1 %8 bL £8°14 %68 05°8 96 ||%6°01 1€95  1%0°0 000 |%9€T | 1€97 Jl%00 000 %€ 879 9zt 00'0€2 | 000¢T | 961 Z1 VSO
$'sTL Y%t 18 168001 %b' 00'ss | ovzi Jl%9'6 9’691 |%0°0 000 %Lz | oresl 100 000 |%66 050L | 7941 | 00°8601 | 00'8KO1 | 9EIL yoeag owsld
£5'79 %9°9% | 6€°€6E |%00 000 |%S19 | 6£'€6€ w00 000 |%86 £S79 | bie 00%0Z | 00v0T | ovy | UdEIY ISA0ID
pL 1Yy %9'9% 75°6vE %os | vL1w 0sL Jlwoo 000 |%00 000 |%00 000 %00 000 %00 00°0 L19 00'SLE | 00'SLE | v'TKT SO ouedd(y
79'801 %8°LE | TWELE |%00 000 |%1€s | trece Jl%00 000 %18 |zosei | vest | ooTee | oozee | zest | PPUEID OAOMY
YIUO SILL, | sausare(] 1ssnbay ofeioig | sauaaraqg .ﬂ.ﬂw jsanbay % o3es() % adesq) % afes() % adesy) % | °%esn | 1o parepe
SALAAIRA dMS Jenuuy 3o 9o ogesn) urodueyn|  ImS 10 o o3espy [enuuy ®oL sniding Juswsfuy sngding wawepnuy | 2I9RIIRAY | pajsanbay | FNEM A0)deU0)
1EM 0L Juasarg o) Azenuer UOL SIL. Juasaig o) [udy O SIYL 1oL | sudig | sopding | pog
SILIAID(] 13IBAN 1B SALIAAI[A( 13)e A Zodo
7207 ‘quieydeg

1odoy suonerad() A[YIUOIA - 193l01J ZodoT - € duoz
10LSI(J 19Je | pue [0NU0)) Pool] Auno)) odsiqQ s ueg

7 INJNHDVYLLY




! fo|a8vg

wupupy

61 40 9 ebed

g payusad ji0day

"A[[enuue patuesaid aq [fim sasso] uonelodead "IV 78'6S9 Sem $3550] UoHEIOdBAd STIUIU JoJep) 21EIS PAI0JS PIIE[NO[ED oY) |Z0T *| £ Jequiaca(] UQ
‘UOLIEZLISIORIBYDAI Jojem 107 ‘| Atenuef 31 01 joeq Sunep sassof uonziodeas snuiw iajep 21e)§ palolg aip pajuasaid L1uno) sy ‘zzoz 11dy uQ (¢

YT Ayl ul pajeudisap se fajem Joa Aue), AJ[enioe 51 umoys ajem snjding(g

"UOKIINDAL %,07 © JU3saIdal Umoys sJuwspuus "7 241 Jo 1985w 4v 000°01 oy Tuigoea Jo uonedionue ur (zzoz dy 03 2AHdEOL1) UOHONPAI
JUSWANNUS 8407 © PISIOPUS DY 7Z0T ‘1T LINf UQ (dYW'T) Ue|d dsuodsay] 110ATasay] mo] atj) Japun pajetado mou die saLaala( aiep zedo (7

"qyuow sy a3esn sapuels) 0LOLY WO Pajoenqns sem J L] PUE Jiuow sy sFesn 1ojem
5,0UB30Q) 01 P3PPE SBM 15210 HOAURD) O} PAISAISP JW ££'] JO [BI0] ¥ 'JnO W) BUPH S5,9pULID) 0A0ITY BIA 152170 uoLuer) o) 19jem payjddns ouesa() (]

sjmwme])

‘[{eyutel Joj uasaid o} A|nf pue ‘saLsAl[ap zodo] o) Juasaid 03 [udy “Iajem 2je1s 10y Juasaxd o) Arenuer s1,39e(] o) 1ea g,

_ B)wues O ZLvso @ 8d D asoo _u_

.00 . des zz,Bny  zz.nr  zz,unr Zz.AeW zz,idy  ZZ,JBW ZzZ.qed gz, uer
I_ \_ | I; 4 i l_ |_ I_ E ,l_ 1% [
| | _l 05
t ool
L L] ol
- - [

afiesn) Jejep| 8)E)S Juaseld o} Atenuep

jeeg any

J-0308 gL‘g ST PRIA JBS 109) J1GNO (Y€ ‘g 10 SUOY|ET SE ‘STE = 100§ AI0E JUQ 'I99J-210€ UL OJe SALDAIR( AON

oanag (F  :Aq passius ooy 2202 ‘p1 12quaaoN ‘Aopuopy
00'0 0 (1933 2108) aeypds|
108821 TL81 (1eakpon) 2198 (Zp) 258912Y Weansumo(]|
- 79¢ 0 TeyuIey
%8'TC 1 % £1Z11 (129] 2138 00Z6¥ I8 (1Y) 23el0ig
86'€9- (193) 20uR194517 6€°85H (193] LE'2TS I8 |INY) UOHEAS]H aYeT
E(J 0] JvdIX YIuop S1I4J, m.:-m-w._uu_o ure(q NOEOA

P

| zivsomaamasooo evm ov

e, w0 zz.des zz.bny  zz.r

Zz.unp Zz,Aew zz,1dy zz.teW Zz.qed ZzZ, uer

i i o
as
§
ool w.
sk ~
ooz

obesn) 19)eM shidingHuewepyus zedo Jueseld o} [idy

TT0T ‘13q0100
Hoday suonerdd() A[IUOIN - 193l01d Zodo] - € dU0Z

10LSI(J 19JeA\ PUE [013U0)) POO]] AJuno)) odsiqQ) S| ues

00°876 118 201 PAI0IS IUOIN SIT, 9£°706 | Isiem RIS PR10IS UOA ISET _
9ILYIP 00°0761  |%6°PL 781591 v9°'SZ €81 |%I'L | 9£'LsT | 9072 ‘67 | 866€8T |%00 | 000 [%s0s | se'sesr f[s00 | 000 [ours [orisil sizo | oo'sesz | 00'sest | peog [IEIOL
we %665 Z61L %9 TLL 071 ONANATA UeS
8971 %L €8 ££708 %6'8 05'8 96 Mlwezl o¥'ZS %00 000 %897 | ev'zs 1600 000 |%T'€E 81'9 9Ty 00°0£7_| 000£2 | 961 ¢l V8D
78'£71 %168 16'8011 %1°8 00001 | ovzi [|%011 8T°€61  [%0°0 000 %22 | 3z¢61 Jl%00 000 |%E'€ Z8€Z | z9L1 | 00'8¥01 | 00°'8¥01 | 9€1L oeag owsiq
L899 %S PS | 9T09% %070 000 |%61L | 9709F %00 000 |%t0l | L899 | t¥8 00'+0Z | 00%0zT | or9 | UOBIY I9AOID
vI'ly %1'CS 99'06¢ viss | yriy 0sL  J|%0°0 000 %00 000 |%0'0 000 J§1%0°0 000 |%00 000 LI9 00's.e | ovsce | vzre | SO OUeRQ
|__ES091 %Py | S6'EEI |%0°0 000 %619 | se'ectl fl%o00 000 %8 |es0or] vesz | oozwe | oozwe | zesi | SPUBID 0AOLY
WuoW SIAL | sousatpaqy — .| 28umig | ssuoayeq .w._.:_w_o.w sonbayfll__% adesy % adesn % a8espy % ages() % | °%es) | 1mem pare[oa(]
saLIAlRg dms |enuuy jo %, ades) ut auey)) dMmS 10 % a8es() [enury 12100 snjding JAWARUY snjding swapyug S[QE[IEAY | pajsonboy |  1AIEM J1033e)U0))y
TR [0 uasalj 0} Arenue( [AUOIA[ SIYL, Juasald o) judy IO SIYL 1EI0L smding | smiding | pug
SILIDAIPR( 13)6 A\ J}8)S SILIDAI[( 1336\ Zado] _




ATTACHMENT 5

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO

e Department of Public Works
John Diodati, Director

COUNTY

November 17, 2022

MEMORANDUM
TO: Flood Control Zone 3 Advisory Committee
FROM: Megan Schotborgh, Accountant

SUBJECT: Flood Control Zone 3, First Quarter Budget Status, Fiscal Year 2022-23

Recommendation

The item to be received and filed.

Summary

Attached please find a comparison of the budget to actual expenses for the first quarter of
fiscal year 2022-23. The $7.7M budget is broken into three categories: Routine Operations &
Maintenance, Non-Routine Operations & Maintenance, and Capital Outlay. At the end of the
first quarter, 11% of the total annual budget has been expended.

Total Expenses Balance % of Budget
Budget through Q1 Available Expended
7,726,013 887,671 6,838,342 11%

Routine O&M: This category has a budget of $4.6M dollars. At the end of the first quarter,
18% of the annual budget has been expended, resulting in approximately $3.76M available for
the remainder of the year. Expenses in this category are on target with budgeted levels.

Total Expenses Balance % of Budget
Budget through Q1 Available Expended
4,623,290 854,846 3,768,444 18%

County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Govt Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P) 805-781-5252 | (F) 805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov ‘



Non-Routine O&M: This category has a budget of approximately $1.8M. At the end of the first
quarter, 1% of the annual budget has been expended, resulting in an available balance of
roughly $1.75M for the remainder of the year. Most of the items in this category have had
budget carried forward from the prior year in order to continue work on them.

Total Expenses Balance % of Budget
Budget through Q1 Available Expended
1,812,008 17,985 1,754,023 1%

Capital Outlay: This category has a budget of almost $1.29M. At the end of the first quarter,
expenses were 1% of the annual budget, resulting in approximately $1.27M available for the
remainder of the year. Unspent budget from the prior year has been carried forward for
several projects and accounts for the majority of this category’s budget.

Total Expenses Balance % of Budget
Budget through Q1 Available Expended
1,290,715 14,840 1,275,875 1%

Other Agency Involvement/Impact

The agencies involved: City of Arroyo Grande, City of Grover Beach, City of Pismo Beach,
Oceano Community Services District, and County Service Area 12. Subcontractors of CSA 12
include Port San Luis Harbor District and Avila Beach Community Services District.

Financial Consideration

All agencies are current on their payments. The revised billings for FY 2021-22 will be mailed
along with the 2" installment of the FY 2021-22 billings by the end of the month. Payments are
due January 1, 2023.

County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Govt Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P)805-781-5252 | (F) 805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



Zone 3 Budget Status
1st Quarter FY22/23

Routine Operation and Maintenance

5,000,000
4,750,000
4,500,000 -
4,250,000 —
4,000,000 — 7L
3,750,000 -
3,500,000 —
3,250,000 {—
——
» 3,000,000 |- . -
" 2,750,000
had 2,500,000 —m— Budgeted —e— Actual
= 2,250,000 | — L |
[<) 2,000,000 -
o 1,750,000 +— — ——
1,500,000 - 7
1,250,000 - /_,
1,000,000 -
750,000 / = —
500,000 -
250,000 |
0
0 4
Quarter
Total Exp as | Total Balance
O&M Roitine Cﬂw Total Budget 1st Querter Total % of Budget Avail
Labor Hours 22,728 4,694 4,694 21%
Chemicals - Water Treatment Plant s 494,790 88,821 88,821 18% 405,969
Water Quality Testing - Treatment Plant - 14,543 14,543 % {14,543}
Electricity - Water Treatment Plant 303,429 89,248 89,248 20% 214,181
All Other Costs - Water Treatment Plant 1,808,423 404,001 404,001 21% 1,504,422
Terminal 290,954 24,780 24,780 9% 266,174
Main Dam 415,260 58,300 58,300 14% 356,960
Other 1,210,434 175,152 175,153 14% 1,035,281
Expenses 854,846 854,846 18% 3,768,444
Budget 4,623,290 1,155,823 4,623,294
Variance (overjunder 300,977 3,768,444
% Variance 26%




Zone 3 Budget Status
1st Quarter FY22/23

Non-Routine Operation and Maintenance
2,000,000 - -
1,900,000 - =:
1,800,000 -
1,700,000 //
1,600,000
1,500,000 +——
1,400,000 +—— /_//
. 1,300,000 — |
& 1,200,000 | — — —
") 1,100,000 e —#— Budgeted
& 1,000,000 '
3 900,000 —— ﬁé ——Actual
a 800,000 = -
700,000 +—— . —
600,000 —
500,000 ——
400,000 +——
300,000 +—— —
200,000 -
100,000 -
0 |'/ =+ I T
0 1 2 3 4
Quarter
Tota! Exp as | Total Balance
D&M Non Routine Category Total Budgei 1st Quarter | 2nd Quarter | 3rd Quarter | Ath Quarter Total % of Budget Avail
Lopez Water Rights HCP $ 324159 | $ 13687 | $ - $ $ 13,687 4% $ 310,472
Cathodic Protection Maint - $ - - - 0% .
Geotech TesUSeismic Al Study Terminal Dam 540,941 3.739 3,739 1% 537,202
Safety Upgrades to WTP - - - % .
Replace Obsolete Hach Turbidimeters 0%
Water Treatinent Alternatives Study "%
Risk Assessment Fault Zone Left Abutment - . - % -
Cloud Seeding Program 493,574 5558 559 0% 493,015
Domestic Tank Repair - - - % -
Spillway Physical investigation 413,334 % 413,334
Contr to FC General AG Creek Subbasin - o% .
552TEMPO3 Repiace Stem Wall Sludge Bed 2 40,600 -
Expenses 17,985 17,985 1% 1,754,023
Budget 1,812,608 453,002 453,002 453,002 453,002 1,812,608
Variance {overyjunder 435,017 453,002 453,002 453,002 1,794,623
% Variance 96% 100% 100% 100%




Zone 3 Budget Status
1st Quarter FY22/23

Capital Outlay
1,400,000 - — SR —
1,300,000 - /l
1,200,000 /
1,100,000 -
1,000,000 /
—_ 900,000 |
& /
‘a‘ 800,000 / —
E 700,000 3 / —#— Budgeted —e— Actual
g 600,000 + —
500,000 /
400,000 / - ——
300,000 -
200,000 = - =
100,000
0 / = T
0 1 2 3 4
Quarter
—— I
Total Exp as | Total Balance
|Capital Outlay Projects Total Budget | 1stQuarter | 2nd Quarter | 3rd Quarter | 4th Quarter Totai % of Budget Avail
improved Boat Access at Term Res $ $ . $ . [3 R L3 R 3 -
Equip Storage Garage Design - 872 - - 872 % {872}
Fireftow Tank Repair 295,674 - - % 295,674
Cathodic Protection Units 1-3 495,456 33N 3,341 1% 492,115
Dump Trailer - - 2 0% 2
ATV, Polaris 0%
New Water Treatment Barge - % &
Upgrade EQ Pump 17,623 0% 17,623
Carbon Dioxide Injection System 133,933 - - 0% 133,933
WTP-Membrance Fitter Mothiles (2 Racks) 348,029 10,627 10,627 I% 337,402
Expenses 14,840 14,840 1% 1,275,875
Budget 1,280,715 322,679 322,679 322,679 322,679 1,290,715
Variance {overjlunder 307,839 322,679 322,679 322,679 1,275,875
% Variance 95%) 100% 100%| 100%




ATTACHMENT 6

ZONE 3 Lopez Project

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

TO: Zone 3 Advisory Committee
FROM: David Spiegel, PE
DATE: November 17, 2022

SUBJECT: Zone 3 Projects Update
Project Updates:

o Tesla Battery Storage (No Change)
o Doing Startup testing to be prepared for PGE approval of plan to operate
(PTO)
o Budget - Free

e Spillway Assessment and Investigation (No Change)
o Consultant is preparing response to DSOD workplan comments. Draft
response expected by 9/16/22.
o Remainder of project ~ minimum of $300,000

¢ Geotechnical Testing & Seismic Alternatives Study of Terminal Reservoir Dam
(No Change)
o DSOD completed workplan review process.
o Final workplan under GEIl review.
o Budget ~$500,000

o Lopez WTP Safety Upgrades (No Change)
o Staff are looking into additional consultants to do a lifeline system within
the membrane building.
o Multiple consultants have reviewed the project, but none have quoted the
project.
o Budget ~$53,000

e Cathodic Protection Repair Project (No Change)
o Preparing BID documents
o Submitted encroachment permit applications
o Obtained authorization from the Board of Supervisors to advertise the
project
o Plan to advertise the project by the end of October.
o Need Additional $160,000 this fiscal year
o Budget ~$449,933

s Equipment Storage Building (To Be Cancelled)
o Bids came in significantly over budget. Installing an equipment storage
building is currently infeasible.




ZONE 3 Lopez Project

San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District

o Budget ~$90,000

e CO2 Injection System (No Change)

o Construction plans at 100%, going out to bid in the next few weeks
o Budget ~$256,000

o Sludge Bed Curtain Wall Rehabilitation (No Change)
o ~$50,000 per initial quote

¢ Chloride Dioxide Bulk Storage Tank (No Change)

o PO issued for equipment
o Tank delivery between 9/30/22 — 10/14/22
o Budget ~$47,309.51

Completed Projects
o Lopez Water Treatment Plant Rack 1 Membrane Replacement



COUNTY

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO
= SAN LUIS

OBISPO Department of Public Works
John Diodati, Director

August 11, 2022

TO: Flood Control Zone 3 Advisory Committee

FROM: David Spiegel, Public Works - Utilities Division Engineer
SUBJECT: Zone 3 Budget Adjustment

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Zone 3 Advisory Committee endorse the budget adjustment to fund
the Sodium Hypochlorite, Sodium Chlorite, and the PAX tank replacements.

Discussion

In May of 2022 the Sodium Hypochlorite tank was being cleaned by Staff at the Lopez Water
Treatment Plant. Staff discovered what looked like fiberglass in the tank while washing it down
and found additional material in the strainers downstream. This has been confirmed to be
fiberglass from the wall of the tank. On October 13, 2022 Staff noticed a substance at the base
of the tank and testing confirmed the liquid to be Sodium Hypochlorite. The tank is now leaking.
The District reached out to a couple tank suppliers and received a quote to replace all three tanks.
This quote came back at $520,000. Most of the cost is in removing all the appurtenances in and
around the tanks to facilitate removal and replacement of the tanks. The PAX tank and Sodium
Chlorite tank are not leaking at this time but due to the cost to remove all the appurtenances, the
District believes replacing the two other tanks at the same time would be prudent.

Zone 3 AC has two options to fund this project under a midyear Budget Adjustment:

1. District Designated Reserves
a. Do not replenish or get additional funds
b. Available Budget $558,805
2. Operating Reserves
a. Agencies fund operating reserves during the normal budget process and are
typically held around 50% of the Operating budget
b. Currently at 45% and would be reduced to 38% (~$2.9m in Operating Reserves)

County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Govt Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P)805-781-5252 | (F)805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Govt Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P) 805-781-5252 | (F) 805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



County of $an Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Govt Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P) 805-781-5252 | (F) 805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Govt Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P)805-781-5252 | (F) 805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Govt Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P) 805-781-5252 | (F) 805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Govt Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P) 805-781-5252 | (F)805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



SWSAC MEMBER AGENCIES: SLOCFC&WCD, CSA 16 (SHANDON), CMC, COUNTY OPS CENTER, CUESTA COLLEGE, CITY GF MORRO BAY,
CITY OF PISMO BEACH, OCEANO CSD, AVILA VALLEY MWC, AVILA BEACH C5D, SAN MIGUELITO MWC, SAN LUIS COASTAL USD

Notice of Meeting
STATE WATER SUBCONTRACTORS ADVISORY COMMITTEE
SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Friday, November 4, 2022 - 10:00 to 11:30 AM
County Government Center, Rm. D361
1055 Monterey Street, San Luis Obispo, CA 93408

For agenda packet attachments and more information: https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Public-
Works/Committees-Programs/State-Water-Project-and-Subcontractors-Advisory-Co.aspx

Chair: Ben Fine (Pismo Beach)
Vice Chair: Brad Hagemann (Avila Beach CSD)

AGENDA

Call to Order - Roll Call & Quorum Count

Public Comment (For matters within the Committee’s jurisdiction. May be limited to three minutes each.)
Review of Last Meeting’'s Minutes - Approve minutes from September 2022,

Reports from the District - for Information Only

A. Water Supply & Operations Report

B. CCWA Transfer Update & Review of Draft Guidelines for Allocation of Emergency SWP Water
C. Continued Discussion on District's Unsubscribed Allocation

D. Update on Contract Extension

E. Update on Delta Conveyance Project

Committee Action items - None

Future Agenda Items

Date of Next Meeting: SWSAC Regular Meeting -- Jan 6, 2023, at 10:00 AM.

Adjournment

PN

N0

Attachments
1. Agenda Item 3 - Draft Minutes - September 2022
2. Agenda Item 4.A - Staff Report
3. Agenda Item 4.B - Draft Guidelines for Allocation of Emergency SWP Water
4. Agenda Item 7 - Draft 2023 Calendar

CONTACT: Please contact SWSAC Secretary, Wes Thomson, with any questions: wthomson@co.slo.ca.us or
(805) 781-5252.

All Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) accommodations shall be promptly reviewed and resolved. Persons who
require accommodations for any audio, visual or other disability to review an agenda, or to participate in the
meeting per the ADA, are encouraged to request such accommodation 48 hours in advance of the meeting.

The purpose of the Committee is, “to monitor all aspects of this agreement and related agreements and to advise the governing
bodies of District and Contractor on the functioning of this agreement and related agreements, and to recommend to the governing
bodies of District and Contractor any modifications to said agreements that may, from time to time, be appropriate.”

{Art. 31, Water Supply Agreement, 1992)




ATTACHMENT 1
SWSAC, 11/4/22

County Gov't Center, Rm. D361
Friday, September 2, 2022

MINUTES (DRAFT)
STATE WATER SUBCONTRACTORS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Chair: Ben Fine
Vice Chair: Brad Hagemann (absent)
Secretary: Wes Thomson

The following action minutes are listed as they were acted upon by the State Water Subcontractors
Advisory Committee (SWSAC) and as listed on the Regular Meeting agenda for September 2, 2022,
together with staff reports and related documents attached thereto and incorporated therein by
reference.

1.

Call to Order & Roll Call (Quorum Count)
Call to order at approx. 10:00 AM; a quorum was established. B. Fine serving as chair.

Public Comment

Will Clemens noted that the Zone 3 (Lopez) Contractors are preparing to go to their boards for
approval of an amendment to their contract with the District. Given the low storage conditions
at Lopez Reservoir, he said that Oceano CSD intends to maximize SWP water deliveries (within
their “Table A” amount) and add to their storage at Lopez through a District-coordinated
exchange of SWP water for Lopez water.

B. Fine commented that Central Coast Blue was awarded a $14.1 million grant.

Jeff Edwards asked if infrastructure changes would be needed to facilitate the exchange of SWP
water for Lopez water and when these changes would become effective. W. Thomson briefly
explained how the District accounts for SWP and Lopez water deliveries. Kate Ballantyne noted
that no infrastructure improvements are needed, and timing-wise - since the District Board
approved, once everyone in Zone 3 signs, the amendment will become effective.

Dan Heimel added that the City of Morro Bay received a grant for $9.3 million from the Bureau
of Reclamation Title 16 Recycled Water Program to fund the indirect potable reuse portions of
Morro Bay's new “WRF" (water reclamation facility) program.

B. Fine expressed appreciation for County staff who supported the effort to bring about the
contract changes for Zone 3 (Lopez).

D. Heimel commented that the agencies should be exploring groundwater banking or alternative
storage opportunities for State Water could help minimize spill losses at San Luis Reservoir and
preserve that water for future use during dry periods.

Review of Last Meeting's Minutes
Committee approved draft SWSAC minutes from March, May, and July 2022 “as-is.”

State Water Subcontractors Advisory Committee



4, Reports from the District - for Information Only
A. Water Supply & Operations Report
W. Thomson gave an update on the current water supply. No significant changes from what
was reported in July; report highlighted “stored water” status showing that most
subcontractors have exhausted or will have used up most of their storage by the end of the

year.

B. Emergency Water Concept - Update on Proposed Transfer with CCWA
W. Thomson and K. Ballantyne reiterated concept discussed at the last meeting and
provided opportunity for continued discussion on the topic. Staff will present this to the
District Board on October 18, 2022 and expects the transfer with CCWA to be complete by
early 2023. This is the first time using the water management tools and we're learning a lot
along the way - how to do this in the future and see how to possibly streamline the process
that will shorten its timeline. For non-SWP Subcontractors that have an emergency need, the
District intends to deliver the water to the County (a Subcontractor) and then the County
would develop contracts to transfer the water to those in need - which expands access to
the emergency water and maintains consistency with respect to the “like contract” clause in
the Subcontractors’ water service agreement (Article 32). This approach also allows the
District board to control how costs are managed. The District could potentially deliver SWP
water to any agency connected to the existing SWP infrastructure, using CCWA's capacity.
However, the 1,000 AF is only for emergency use, based on qualifying need and showing
evidence of implemented conservation measures.

C. Continued Discussion on Subcontracts & District's Unsubscribed Allocation
W. Thomson reiterated what was discussed at the last meeting and provided opportunity for
continued discussion on the topic. W. Thomson noted that subcontractors are currently 42%
of the District's State water “Table A” contract and that the District (taxpayers) are financially
responsible for the remaining share. K. Ballantyne reiterated that now is the time for
subcontractors to start having the discussions about increasing their drought buffer if that is
something they are interested in, and formal letters will be sent out soon (by end of year).

There was a question about studies that show there is additional capacity in the Costal
Branch and whether there is there a plan to work with CCWA to make more water available
to SLO Count. K. Ballantyne answered that the Water Management Tools Amendment has
allowed for the 1,000 AF emergency contract as a first step towards increasing access to
State Water. W. Thomson noted that for SLO County, the primary constraint in increasing
State Water is at the CCWA water treatment plant, which limits our ability to take advantage
of that extra capacity within the Coastal Branch pipeline.

D. Update on Contract Extension
W. Thomson reported that the District Board approved the Contract Extension amendment
so that DWR can implement these contract changes in 2024. He reiterated that the
amendment objective is long-term SWP cost stabilization, and it secures the long-term
supply for the District.

State Water Subcontractors Advisory Committee



E. Update on Delta Conveyance Project
W. Thomson reported that the draft EIR was released on july 27, 2022, and the overall effort
is still on budget and schedule. District staff are preparing to take a recommendation to the
District Board on October 18, 2022 - recommending that it continue with the preliminary
planning (i.e., commit to years 3 & 4 of the 4-year planning effort) - to keep the door open to
enable consideration on long-term participation in 2024/25. There haven't been any updated
cost projections since 2020 - but an updated cost/benefit analysis will be completed after
the design is further along and a “preferred alternative” has been identified at the end of the
environmental review process. W. Thomson reiterated that the project's main objective is to
protect the SWP's ability to deliver water. Staff presented a review of the project's general
components and anticipated schedule and cost.

F. Update on Committee Membership
W. Thomson welcomed new members and noted position changes.
- Greg Kwolek and Damaris Hanson from the City of Morro Bay
- Brian McAlister from Cuesta College
- Allene Villa and Shirley Gibson from Oceano CSD have swapped positions

- Geoff English from SMMWC
5. Committee Action Items - None

6. Future Agenda Items
K. Ballantyne asked whether Friday meetings still work for everyone or if a different day/time is

preferred. Using a doodle poll was suggested as a way to find the best time.

7. Date of Next Meeting - SWAC Regular Meeting - November 4, 2022, at 10:00 AM.
B. Fine adjourned the meeting at approximately 11:05 AM.

State Water Subcontractors Advisory Committee



ATTACHMENT 2

SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL & WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
STATE WATER PROJECT

TO: State Water Subcontractors Advisory Committee
FROM: Wes Thomson, Utilities Division Engineer
DATE: November 4, 2022

SUBJECT: SWP Water Supply Report

SWP DELIVERY REPORT
Attachment 1 is the monthly summary of State Water Project (SWP) deliveries through
September 2022 for the 2022 SWP “Water Year” (Jan 1, 2022 - Dec 31, 2022).

2022 SCHEDULED DELIVERIES VS. STORED WATER SUMMARY

Attachment 2 summarizes the current 2022 delivery schedule for District Subcontractors and
reports the new supply for 2022 based on DWR's 5% “Table A" water allocation and shows the
District's stored water needed to meet requested Subcontractor deliveries for October through
December 2022, This delivery schedule and storage analysis assumes the 5% allocation will
hold for the remainder of the year.

As reiterated in the September 2 report, this is the third year of drought conditions.
- Subcontractors have exhausted the stored water reserved for them.
- Subcontractors highlighted in yellow are on track to use the remaining stored water set
aside for them by the end of the year.

ATTACHMENTS

1. SWP Delivery Report (thru Sept. 2022)
2. 2022 Deliveries vs. Stored Water (Sept/Oct 2022)

Page 1 of 1



2202/1€/01 ‘LM Aq paiedaid

6101
Sl

Ll

ve

G'/8l
0ee

00€

0s

S0l

66

0
23Q-120

%G = uoeoojie ,y 9jqeL, HMQ juaiun,

JOLISI UONEBAIBSUQY) JSJEAA PUB [0JJUOD) POO|

Aunog odsigo sin ues/ 193rO¥d ¥3LVM A1V1S

", uoyeso|je HYAAQ JUSLIND paadxa jey) sisanbal joaw o) ‘Auanljap pajsenbal Jo %001 Alddns ued JuwsIq sewnssy 310N

01 23407

OL ‘A QHHOHO
O1 NOONVHS

0.l 723407

Ol 'A QH4MOHD

9l V8D 01 NOONVHS

[44 44 £e¢e (43 S9¢ 0Z¢ 66 ¥6€ 60t 60 88¢€ 0S¢ LLE 99¢ IVLOL

9 050 0S°0 0s0 050 050 0S°0 08°0 0s'0 0S°0 0s°0 0S80 0s0 dasn [exseo) sin ueg
(174 0C o'l 0¢ 072 0¢c 072 0¢ 0 0¢ o'l 0l 0L OMIN A3]jBA eliny
171 <] 9 9 9 L 9 9 9 9 9 ] S aso Yyoesg e|iay
ozl 8 L 6 6 4" gl €l €l Zl oL L L OMW oyenbiy ues
1173 G29 g9 G298 529 529 G'Z9 G629 6§29 g'e9 G'Z9 §'C9 GC9 aso ouesdQ
ovel 09 0L 0ot S8 ogl 7 AN oL ovl ocL (11 oLt j10] yoeag owsld jo A
oozl 00L 001 00L 00k 001 00l 00l o[o] % ool 0oL 001 004 Aeg ouoly jo Ao
002 Ll Ll Ll Ll L Ll yA Ll Ll Ll FA% Ll esenyd
(iTA4 Ge Se 1 GE SE Ge G¢ 1 415 Ge ge S¢ sdo Auno)
96¢ €e €€ €€ £E €€ £e e ¢e €€ €e X €€ OO
0 o] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9l ¥vSD

Iv1i0oL O3d AON 120 d3s anvy anr NN AVIN udv HYIN 934 NV

S1S3NDIY UILVM I1LV1S 2202
(4} 199J-910€ JO S)uUN 21}8WN|OA Ul 8le papodas sanjea AUsAlap IV 2
"1sanbal l0joeauocaqns pue Buodas Aaalap AlYjuow YAADD U0 paseq SauaAlleq *L 910N
S'€Zle 0 0 0 962 18¢ L'y8¢ 0°€LE 5°18¢€ 0°9v€ 9'9Z¢E 11ze L'80¢ VIOL

66°¢ 0 0 0 050 050 0S50 0S°0 050 0S°0 050 6£'0 0L’0 asn fesecd sin ueg
0'sL 0 0 0 0¢ 0¢c 0¢ 0 0¢ 0¢C o'l 0l 0L DMW AslleA elny
8'28 0 0 0 0’9 0L 09 0’9 09 0’9 09 0s 8y aso yoeaq ey
[44:) 0 0 0 L'S 9’ Sy 8/ £6 8¢ £l G'6 8’ DM o3iienbyy ueg
S'6ve 0 0 0 Ly Sy L'6v Ly L'9¢ L'S¢e 9ve (A4S L'ee Qso ouesdQ
6°8001 0 0 0 0'G6S 0'oelL o'scl o'ovL oorlL 00cL 068 00LL 6'c0l Yoeag owsld 40 Ao
8°.68 0 0 0 <10l 80l 9ZLL 2201 9'66 2001 0col 8’98 .8 Aeg ouopn Jo Ao
6't¥l 0 0 0 v'ol 28l 991 vt [V sl 691 051 6'€l ejsenyd
£20¢ 0 0 0 Sve L'g8¢ 6'vE 6'62 L'9e vee 9'6e g'le £6C sdp Auned
0°682 0 0 0 Gzt 6°'GE 6'2¢ '8¢ [ 45 G'0¢ G'ee 262 9'/¢ OWO

00 0 0 0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00

avloL 23d AON 120 d3s onv anr NNr AV AdV UYN 834 NV

— 2202 Jdos niyy seusnep (enjoy

(1L4vHQ) STIMIAINIA ¥ILYM ILVLS 2202



2202/1€/01 ‘LM Aq paledaid

1OMISI(] UOHBAIBSUOD) JSJEAN PUE [04U07T) POO|S

Aunog odsigo sinT ues/ 193r0Yd ¥ILVM 3LV1S

‘Aljoe) abelols dAAS B ‘JIoAIsay SN UeS = M1S '€
*SI0JOBIUOIQNS O} AJJEWLIOJUI SPISE 188 “Y1S 1B Palo)s ‘sieak snoirald wiosy Jsjem 1911sI(] SI Ja1em JoAoALIRD palols 'z
‘Hodal | {\7H( 1S9le| UC PESEQ I181eM PaISAIISP 1994008 JO S)uNn Ul pauodal SSLIN|OA JSJEA °|

_ S3ION
%8G| o'yl (Adv) uonesoly paquasgnsun,,
%er| L£6°0L (AdV) peenuoogng v oigel, |ejoL
000'sZ (Adv) uonedo|ly v 3|qeL,, s3ousia
610'L LES S'ETL'e 125 ozl 1£G'0L 204'S 0£8'y  payenuooqng [ejoL
G9% LSY Sr6r'L 662 218 v8.'t Z6€'C 2687 [ejolng
Gl 66°C L0 el vl J ] asn leiseog sin ues
G oSl Z 0 - oF 0¢ 02 OMIN Aajlep ejiay
Ll Z'8 8'ZS ] 1S 002 001 00l dso uoeag e|iay
74 z'8zL b9 G'/2 ete]] 0SS 5.2 642 OMW opjenbipy ues
881 9'02¢ G'6¥¢ G/ 669 00S°} 052 052 Qaso ouesdQ
0£Z 0 6'8001 174" 0 08¥'C ove'L ove'L yoeag owsid J0 i
#GG 0 0'629°L €82 rEG £69'G GLE'E 8€e'z  [ejoiqns
00¢ 0 8'168 2'081 ¥£S £09°E 062'C cLe'l Aeg oo Jo AuD
0S 0 6'crl 0z 0 00¥ 002 002 abajj0) eyseny
GoL 0 £'20¢ Az 0 A 0S8 GZY GZY Jsyue) sdo Aunod
66 0 0'682 014 0 008 00t 00¥ JND
0 23 0 G v/ 001 0 004 fejolqng
0 , vl ; 0 g 2 001 0 00} (uopueyg) g| VSO
(zzoz 220z/1L/01
(zzoz %S 1V (VSm)
03a-1900) ONINIVINTY (2Z0Z/1L/1) ¥3LVM
ONINIVANZY  HIAOANNVD h%wmm_ﬂw_._ﬂw Emww%%.i AIAOANYYD  |8a + VSM Am_n__w”_wm“m MHMMM ¥OLOVHINOOENS
A¥3AIN3Q axyois | . o707 a3yols 193
a3INA3IHOS  QaLVWILST L
AHVYININNS 31NATHOS AYIAIT3A 2202 AYVIWAINS SLOVHLNOD
0€2'L uoljeooyly Asusbiawz 4y 000 buipnjox3g <<
0£Z'8 £20Z 10} YIS e JojeM PaI0)S pajdaload
000t VMDD -M Jajsuel] Asusbiswg pasodold
ZLl'E papasN J8jep\ PeIo)S pajewysy
0sZ'L %G Je uoleao|ly v 3iqeL, dMS 2202
qer'y Z20z Joj Aisaifeq painpayos
zor'eL 2202/L/1° 1S 18 J9jep PRI0IS SJ0LISI 2202 100/ 1d3s
AY3AIN3A 2202 A3.LD3rodd 40 AMVYINWNS aom=eo4 ALNNOD 018

19)ep palolg pajewnys3 “sa AlaAlle@ dMS 2202



LRl s 8
ATTACHMENT 3

State Water Project (SWP) / San Luis Obispo County SWSAC, 11/4/22

Flood Control and Water Conservation District
October 18, 2022

Proposed Guidelines for Allocation of Emergency
State Water Project (SWP) Water

BACKGROUND

These guidelines are intended to support the Flood Control and Water Conservation District
(District) in administering emergency SWP water allocations to address qualifying human
health and safety needs within the County of San Luis Obispo. Included are criteria that will
be evaluated (1) to prioritize which agencies are eligible to receive emergency SWP water, (2)
to quantify the minimum amount of water needed to meet the domestic supply, fire
protection, and sanitation needs of a population, and (3) to determine charges based on cost
recovery (including administrative costs).

PRIORITY OF USE & QUALIFICATIONS

During a time in which there is an existing State or County-declared emergency in effect, the
District may issue a notification that emergency water is available and then determine a
reasonable schedule for receiving and evaluating requests for allocations of the water,
consistent with the stated priorities and qualifying conditions in these guidelines. The District
intends to utilize the State Water Subcontractors Advisory Committee (SWSAC) meetings to
provide notifications and status updates on emergency SWP water needs and deliveries.

Priority of Use
1. District Subcontractors’ with a qualifying need.

a. Qualifying criteria must be demonstrated through supporting documentation for the
District to validate a qualifying need for emergency water. The quantity allocated by
the District shall be based on consideration of all supplies available to address the
qualifying need. During the period of allocation, the supply will be tracked and
reported monthly.

2. Local agencies (and water purveyors) within the District (Non-SWP subcontractors) with a
qualifying need.

a. If the emergency needs of the Subcontractors are met, and there is additional supply

available for the given delivery year, then the District may consider the allocation of

the emergency supply to address the qualifying needs of non-SWP Subcontractors

! Eleven local agencies (Subcontractors) contract with the District for delivery of treated SWP water, referred to as their Water
Service Amount; additional “Table A” is reserved as Drought Buffer. District Subcontractors include CSA 16 (Shandon), City of
Morro Bay, California Men’s Colony, County of San Luis Obispo, Cuesta College, City of Pismo Beach, Oceano CSD, San Miguelito
Mutual Water Co., Avila Beach CSD, Avila Valley Mutual Water Co., San Luis Coastal Unified School District.

Page 1 of 4



State Water Project (SWP) / San Luis Obispo County
Flood Control and Water Conservation District

within the District. The same qualifying criteria and allocation considerations for the
Subcontractors apply.

Qualification Criteria
1. Emergency Declarations

a.

b.

Is a State or County declared drought emergency in effect and applicable to this
agency? Has the local agency board declared a local water supply emergency?

Has the local agency implemented response actions consistent with the level of
demand reduction targeted by the State or County?

Are the response actions appropriate for the quantity of water requested (i.e., is the
demand reduction target reflective of the supply shortfall)?

2. Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP) Implementation

a.

The agency requesting emergency supply should be operating under an adopted
WSCP or have an adopted drought management plan with identifiable triggers and
specified actions to achieve a level of demand reduction appropriate for dealing with
a temporary supply/demand imbalance.

The District shall consider the level of demand reduction triggered and may require
additional substantiating information from an agency to confirm the implementation
of the WSCP or drought management plan.

3. Status of Local Supply Options

a.

Consider Local Supply Status: What is the status/condition of other local water
sources? (Is the groundwater basin in overdraft or at a point where there is an
increased risk of seawater intrusion? What is the status of local surface water storage
supplies for the agency?

Has the requesting agency implemented local supply contingency measures (e.g.,
Lopez Low Reservoir Response Plan)?

If there is a change in conditions, those changes could trigger an end to the

emergency supply delivery.

Emergency Water Transfer Option: Limitations, Timing, and Environmental &
Regulatory Considerations

a.

Contract Limitations: Delivery of emergency SWP water allocations may require a
water transfer (short-term, temporary), which is dependent on the available
treatment and delivery capacity and subject to District Board approval, in addition to
the existing contract provisions of the District's master contract® with DWR, the
Districts water treatment agreement with CCWA3? and the District's SWP

2 The master contract secured the District’s annual “Table A” water benefit of up to 25,000 acre-feet from the California
Department of Water Resources’ (DWR) State Water Project (SWP).

3 The District’s 1992 master water treatment agreement with the Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA) provides
for treatment of all SWP water delivered to the District via DWR’s Coastal Branch pipeline.

Page 20f4



State Water Project (SWP) / San Luis Obispo County
Flood Control and Water Conservation District

subcontracts. Additional agreements may also be required to permit the transfer
option.

b. Water Transfer Timing: For qualifying transfers, the emergency water delivery under
a transfer agreement must be completed in one year or less (“short-term”).

c. Legal and Regulatory Compliance: District staff shall review all terms and conditions
of any proposed transfer for consistency with California State Water Board
regulations and the California Water Code and confirm that the transfer complies with
all applicable laws and regulations in effect at the time it is brought to the District
Board for approval.

d. Environmental Review: District staff shall review the proposed transfer and consider
if a CEQA determination is required.

DETERMINATION OF ALLOCATION, SCHEDULE & COST

Allocation of Emergency SWP Water
1. Purpose of Use & Determination of Minimum Quantity Needed

a. Emergency SWP water shall only be used to meet “human health and safety” water
needs within an agency's service area for that calendar year, which includes domestic
supply, fire protection, and sanitation purposes.

b. The minimum?* quantity needed to meet “human health and safety” needs shall be
based on the 55 gallons per capita per day (gpcd) standard set by DWR in their Notice
to SWP Contractors® for the 2022 SWP initial allocation (12/1/2021), consistent with
State Water Resources Control Board emergency regulations at the time these
guidelines were proposed for adoption by the District. Any changes to this standard
by DWR may be adopted by the District.

c. The District may require additional substantiating information from an agency to
confirm the requested emergency SWP water needs. Calculations and re-calculations
are subject to confirmation by the District.

d. Consistent with Article 10b (“Temporary Shortages; Delivery Priorities”) of the
District's subcontracts, which allows for the District to apportion on some other basis
than in proportion to the Water Service Amount, if such basis is required to meet
minimum demands for domestic supply, fire protection, or sanitation during the year.

2. Available Emergency SWP Water Supply

a. The District's available emergency SWP water supply, for a given calendar year, shall
be an amount set aside from the District’s stored “Article 56C Carryover” water®, which
is unused “Table A” water from previous years stored at San Luis Reservoir, and for
which there is treatment and delivery capacity available to deliver it within the District.

4 Consistent with Article 10b (“Temporary Shortages; Delivery Priorities”} of the District’s subcontracts, which allows for the
District to apportion on some other basis than in proportion to the Water Service Amount, if such basis is required to meet
minimum demands for domestic supply, fire protection, or sanitation during the year.

5 lﬁtps;}g’water.ca.gov‘.-’-;j'mediagDWR—Website/Web-Pa,zes,fPrograms,f'State-Water—Proiect,r’Management/'SWP-_
Water-Contractors/Files/NTC-21-07 2022-SWP-Initial-Allocation-Minimum-Human-Health-and-Safety 120121.pdf
6 As defined in the District’s master contract with DWR for SWP water.

Page 3 of 4



State Water Project (SWP) / San Luis Obispo County
Flood Control and Water Conservation District

b. Availability of the emergency SWP water supply is subject to a determination by the
District that delivery of the supply will not adversely impact SWP operations or harm
other SWP Contractors’ or the District's Subcontractors.

Scheduling of Emergency SWP Water Delivery
1. Allocation Timing and General Conditions

a. The emergency SWP supply shall be allocated on the calendar year basis and be
consistent with DWR’s timing for SWP delivery accounting and operations (January
through December) in accordance with Article 12 of the District's master SWP water
supply contract with DWR, which governs the SWP priorities, amount, times, and rates
of deliveries to the District and SWP Contractors.

b. The District will need to coordinate with recipients of the emergency SWP supply,
consistent with existing terms and conditions of the District's subcontracts, to
establish a delivery schedule that does not adversely impact local SWP operations
along the Coastal Branch.

¢. General Delivery Scheduling Conditions: Refer to Article 8 and Article 10 of the
Subcontractors’ water supply agreement for details on the water service terms and
conditions for SWP delivery scheduling, use of facilities, water shortages, and delivery
priorities.

Cost Considerations for Emergency SWP Water Charges

The District shall determine charges for the costs of the emergency SWP water based on cost
recovery (including administration costs), consistent with Article 14 of the District's SWP
subcontracts and the District’s master SWP water supply contract with DWR. This applies to
SWP Subcontractors, and as a guiding principle, for how the District will determine
reasonable cost compensation for the emergency SWP water, the use of facilities, and for
power costs to deliver the water under a transfer agreement.

7 The District is one of 29 public water agencies that have a long-term SWP water supply contract with the California Department
of Water Resources (DWR); these agencies are collectively referred to as the SWP Contractors.

Page 4 of 4



ATTACHMENT 4

SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL & WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
STATE WATER SUBCONTRACTORS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

PUBLIC MEETINGS

2023 SWSAC CALENDAR (DRAFT)

STATE WATER SUBCONTRACTORS ADVISORY COMMITTEE (SWSA(C)
SWSAC meets every other month (starting in Jan.) on the first Friday at 10:00 AM
DRAFT FOR SWSAC REVIEW, 11/4/2022

JAN EEB MAR
SWSAC-Jan 6 SWSAC - Mar 3

*Annual election of Chair & Vice
Chair

APR MAY JUN
SWSAC - May 5

JUL AUG SEP

SWSAC - Jul 7 SWSAC - Sep 1
* Request for 2024 water
delivery schedules.

OCT NOV DEC
SWSAC - Nov 3

*Meeting logistics are subject to change. Please contact County Public Works at 805-781-5252 or
pwd@co.slo.ca.us for confirmation of date, location & time.



,‘5{”‘%. Gavin Newsou
k% ﬁ} SOVEANCA
o s
ecatifoanmia 3 Yana Garcia

‘\\. SECRETARY FORA
Water Boards o’

EMVIRONMINTAL PADTECTION

Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board

November 7, 2022

Bradley Hagemann

General Manager

Avila Beach Community Services District
100 San Luis Street,

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Email: hagemann.associates@gmail.com

Sent via electronic mail only

To Bradley Hagemann:

TRANSMITTAL OF CLIMATE CHANGE READINESS ASSESSMENT FOR
MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILTIES IN THE CENTRAL COAST

REGION

Climate change is shifting precipitation and temperature patterns, exacerbating extreme
weather events, and causing impacts such as drought, sea levelrise, flooding, coastal
erosion, wildfires, landslides, and heat waves. These conditions have significant
implications for wastewater collection, treatment, and discharge operations.

Through the adoption of new and updated NPDES permits, the Central Coast Water
Board is in the process of requiring dischargers to develop and implement climate
adaptation plans. However, the Central Coast Water Board recognizes that planning
for climate change is complex and requires time and resources. The readiness
assessment is a tool designed to facilitate this process by helping facilities 1)
understand climate change projections and their vulnerabilities and 2) assess their
preparedness to respond and comply with new climate adaptation permit requirements.

By December 16, 2022, please complete the attached climate change readiness
assessment (Attachment C for coastal facilities and Attachment D for inland facilities) to
inform and support climate adaptation and mitigation strategies that are protective of
wastewater infrastructure, public health, and the environment.

In completing the readiness assessment, please consider the entire wastewater system
network, which includes all facilities and associated infrastructure, such as the treatment
works, influent and effluent storage, collection and conveyance systems, discharge
outfalls, pump stations, access roads, control systems, power lines, backup power



generators and fuel storage facilities, etc., necessary to provide ongoing operations and
prevent unauthorized discharges.

We appreciate your cooperation. Participating agencies should identify one point of
contact to respond to the assessment. Please fill out the attached assessment
electronically and save it as a PDF file upon completion. Final readiness assessments
should be emailed to Amanda.christophe@waterboards.ca.gov.

BACKGROUND

With this readiness assessment, the Central Coast Water Board aims to better
understand climate adaptation actions already undertaken and planned by dischargers
and encourage future actions based on site-specific conditions. We also intend to use
the data to inform future NPDES permit requirements that will best support climate
adaptation and mitigation for critical wastewater infrastructure to protect water quality,
beneficial uses, and public health. The Central Coast Water Board strongly encourages
dischargers to complete this assessment, as doing so will give the us the best data and
information to tailor future permit requirements to facilities’ needs, resources, and

capacities.

The Central Coast Water Board does not intend that completing the assessment will
require dischargers to engage outside services or develop new climate adaptation
plans. Dischargers may rely on existing climate change planning, supplemented by
online tools and resources (provided in Attachment B) as necessary, to complete the
assessment. For example, cities and counties may already have climate adaptation and
resiliency strategies in general plans, local hazard mitigation plans, or local coastal
plans. The Central Coast Water Board encourages dischargers to cite (include hyperlink
if applicable) and summarize any planning documents, vulnerability studies, etc. that are
relevant to their wastewater infrastructure.

USE OF DATA

Dischargers who complete the readiness assessment will receive a tailored readiness
assessment Report from the Central Coast Water Board. The report will evaluate the
facility’s preparedness to adapt to climate risks and will provide relevant guidance,
resources, and assistance to prioritize next step actions to increase readiness and
regulatory compliance with new and future NPDES permit requirements.

The Central Coast Water Board may use the information to study and report on climate
adaptation trends for wastewater treatment facilities in the Central Coast region, as well
as other reasonable purposes consistent with the agency’s regulatory jurisdiction. Any
questions about data use can be directed to Amanda Christophe at
Amanda.christophe@waterboards.ca.gov or (805) 594-6197.




RESOURCES

Attachment B includes curated climate adaptation tools and resources to help
Dischargers complete the assessment and provides climate science and adaptation

strategies that dischargers may use in the future.

Central Coast Water Board NPDES staff will host a climate change readiness
assessment workshop to engage with dischargers, provide a general overview of the
readiness assessment, and address any questions or concerns. The workshop will be
held virtually. Water Board staff will reach out via email with further details and
reminders for those interested in attending.

Central Coast Water Board staff is available to assist dischargers with any

questions regarding the assessment, the resources included in Attachment B, or
other aspects of climate adaptation planning. Assistance can include individual

meetings, calls, or questions via email.

Any questions or requests for assistance regarding the readiness assessment,
accessing up to-date climate projections, or locating other relevant resources should be
directed to Amanda Christophe at Amanda.christophe@waterboards.ca.qov or (805)

594-6197.

Any general questions regarding this letter should be directed to Leah Lemoine at
Leah.Lemoine@waterboards.ca.gov or (805) 549-3159.

Sincerely,

/.lnmf w

for Matthew T. Keeling
Executive Officer

ECM: 206888

Attachments:
1. Attachment A — Recipient List
2. Attachment B — Climate Change Adaptation Tools & Resources
3. Attachment C — Climate Change Readiness Assessment for Coastal Facilities

[external PDF]
4. Attachment D — Climate Change Readiness Assessment for Inland Facilities

[external PDF]

r\rb3\shared\civicspark\2022\projects\climate change questionnaire\climate change
readiness assessment transmittal letter .docx



AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manage@
DATE: December 13th, 2022

SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Review for November

Recommendation:
Receive and file report.

Overall Monthly Summary

During the month of November, the District deposited $135,856.56 and incurred $441,993.58 in
expenses (cash basis). Expenses were well above normal due to the following: The District paid
$205,817 for our first annual loan payment (the Harbor District will be reimbursing the District
approximately $67,900 for their share); We paid FRM $127,000 this month, that included 3
months of O & M expenses (approximately $66,000) and we had several invoices for relatively
expensive WWTP maintenance and repair projects (chlorine contact chamber repair) that we
completed and paid in November; and finally during the month, we paid $60,000 in engineering
support invoices for work that was completed over the last several months at the WWTP project.
Monthly operation expenses were otherwise with the normal range.

Income included $80,700.23 in monthly water and sewer fees. Deposits from County Taxes this
month totaled $53,788.81. We anticipate that monthly tax revenue for December will be
approximately $150,000.

Detailed financial reports including a Balance Sheets, Deposits by Fund, Checks by Fund and
Profit and Loss Sheets are provided for your information for the month of November.

Utility Service Billing

The District billed approximately $79,827.97 in water and sewer service charges in November.
Customer Rate Assistance reduced billing charges to the District in the amount of $872.26.

Operation and Maintenance

The statement for November from Fluid Resource Management (FRM) is attached.



1:29 PM Avila Beach Community Services District
12/07/22 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis November 2022

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 : Income Summary

4010 - Operating Revenue

4012 - Solid Waste Franchise Fee

4030 - County Taxes

4050 - Harbor Charges
4052 - Front Street Lighting
4053 - WWTP O&M

Total 4050 - Harbor Charges
Total 4000 - Income Summary
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees
5110 - Amex
5120 - Chase Paymentech
5140 - Invoice Cloud

Total 5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees

5200 - Payroll Expenses
5210 - Gross Wages
5211 - Regular Pay
5012 - Holiday Pay
5014 - Sick Pay
5016 - Vacation Pay

Total 5210 - Gross Wages
5230 - Payroll Taxes

5240 - Health & Medical Exp.
5242 - Health Ins / Other

Total 5240 - Health & Medical Exp.

5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5256 - PERS Co Pd Kristi

Total 5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense

o Nov 22

80,700.23
1,165.52
53,788.81

24512
45,007.00

| 45,252.12
180,906.68

180,906.68

180,906.68

11.00
460.29
435.82

907.11

3,3568.21
446.52
0.00
0.00

3,804.73
66.77

800.00
800.00

237.80

237.80

Page 1



1:29 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

12/07/22 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis November 2022

5280 - Payroll Administration & Misc.
Total 5200 - Payroll Expenses

6000 - Administrative Overheads
6102 - Accounting
6115 - Bank Service Charges
6135 - Legal
6140 - Office Supplies & Postage
6142 - Postage & Shipping
6143 - Supplies, Office

Total 6140 - Office Supplies & Postage

6150 - Rate Assistance
6170 - Website

Total 6000 - Administrative Overheads

6500 - Operating Expenses

6503 - Chemicals

6505 - Contract Labor O & M

6506 - Contract Labor GM

6507 - Contract Labor Civil Engineer

6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.
6522 - Equip. Rep. & Maint-Avila & HD
6524 - Eqip. Rep. & Maint. Avila Only

Total 6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.

6525 - Fat Oil & Grease (FOG)
6535 - Insurance P/L

6540 - Lab Tests

6542 - Maintenance

6550 - Operating Supplies
6555 - Permits & Fees

6565 - Regulatory Compliance
6580 - Solids Handling

6585 - Telephone / Internet
6590 - Utilities

6500 : Operating Expenses - Other

Total 6500 - Operating Expenses
Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Eo_v 22
11 @2

5,023.62

1,020.00
60.00
46.00

582.28
430.53

1,012.81

872.26
200.00

3,211.07

4,527.79
63,856.14
10,950.00

7,800.00

20,283.75
40.00

29,323.75

90.25
2,034.74
6,356.00

260.00

41.47 7

1,064.00
1,318.08
1,942.13
312.30
4,322.93
351.64

134,560.22

©143,702.02

37,204.66

Page 2



1:29 PM

12/07/22
Accrual Basis

Profit & Loss
November 2022

Avila Beach Community Services District

H

Other Income/Expense
Other Income
7200 - Non-Operating Income
7220 - CIP Harbor

Total 7200 - Non-Operating Income
Total Other Income

Other Expense
8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
8245 - WWTP Improvement Project
8245g - WWTP Cannon CM Services

8245d - WWTP Wallace Group Enginee...

8245e - WWTP Construction
8245f - WWTP Loan Admin Fees

Total 8245 - WWTP Improvement Project
Total 8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
Total 8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income

Net Income

Nov 2_2

24,661.00
24,661.00
24,661.00

7,259.71
56,531.83
33,753.55
1,200.00

98,745.09
98,745.09
98,745.09
98,745.09
-74,084.09

-36,879.43




1:31 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

12/07/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of November 30, 2022
Nov 30, gz_
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 - Cash Summary
1005 - Customer Cash 145.19
1008 - Petty Cash 45.48
1010 - Pacific Premier Checking 765,623.09
1050 - LAIF 3,903,397.55
1060 - US Bank MM WWTP ) 796,242.24
Total 1000 - Cash Summary ~ 5,465,453.55
Total Checking/Savings 5,465,453.55
Accounts Receivable
1200 - *Accounts Receivable 192_,161 .00
Total Accounts Receivable 192,161.00
Other Current Assets
1250 - Receivables
1255 - Interest Receivable 3,166.38
1270 - Taxes Receivable 30,262.80
1280 - Water & Sewer Billings ~ 125,446.34
Total 1250 - Receivables 158,875.52
1400 - Prepaid Summary
1410 : Prepaid Insurance ) 14,290.68
Total 1400 - Prepaid Summary 14,290.68
Total Other Current Assets 173,166.20
Total Current Assets 5,830,780.75
Fixed Assets
1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
1605 - Office Equipment
1606 - Copier Samsung 2012 8,233.58
1609 - Office Equipment Accum Depr -8,233.58
Total 1605 - Office Equipment 0.00

Page 1



1:31 PM

12/07/22
Accrual Basis

Balance Sheet

As of November 30, 2022

Avila Beach Community Services District

1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.
1612 - Office Furniture cost
1614 - Office Furniture Accum Dep.

Total 1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Ad...

1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary
1622 - Land

1626 - Collection Assets
1627 - Collection Assets Cost
1628 - Collect Assets Accum Depr

Total 1626 - Collection Assets

1630 - Disposal Equipment
1631 - Disposal Equip Cost
1632 - Disposal Equip Accum Depr

Total 1630 - Disposal Equipment

1634 - Other Equipment
1634a - Other Equipment Cost

Total 1634 - Other Equipment

1635 - Treatment Plant
1636 - Treatment Plant Original
1637 - Treatment Plant Addition
1638 - Treatment Plant Accum Dep

Total 1635 - Treatment Plant

1642 - Treatment Equipment
1643 - Treatment Equip Cost
1644 - Treatment Equip Accum D...

1642 - Treatment Equipment - Oth...

Total 1642 - Treatment Equipment
Total 1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary

1650 - Fixed Assets - Water
1652 - Equipment
1653 - Equipment Cost
1654 - Equipment Accum Depr

Total 1652 - Equipment

Nov 30, 22
4,526.21
-4,526.21
0.00

60,314.10

1,318,875.26
-593,752.02

725,123.24

611,174.66
-376,478.88

234,695.78

6,973.40
6,973.40

105,000.00
2,049,098.30
-1,318,518.37

835,579.93

1,087,410.54
-787,343.49
205,485.61

505,552.66
2,368,239.11

21,136.28
-21,136.28

0.00

Page 2



1:31 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

12/07/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of November 30, 2022
Nov 3(& 22
1656 - Distribuation Assets
1657 - Distribuation Assets Cost 1,270,572.25
1658 - Dist Assets Accum Depr -724,007.77
Total 1656 - Distribuation Assets 546,56_4.48
Total 1650 - Fixed Assets - Water 546,564.48
1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1681 - Structures GFAAG - Sani & FA 82,207.29
1682 - Gen / Fire Accum Dep -54,626.21
Total 1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset 27,581.08
1690 - Construction in Progress 599,761.81
Total 1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr. ~ 3,542,146.48
Total Fixed Assets 3,542,146.48
Other Assets
1800 - Deferred Outflows of Resources ) 26,376.0Q
Total Other Assets 26,376.io
TOTAL ASSETS 9,399,303.23
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2100 - Accounts Payable ~189,519.83
Total Accounts Payable 189,5619.83
Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Payroll Liabilities
2201 - Accrued Payroll 2,095.00
2260 - Vacation Payable 2,661.92
2262 - Sick Pay Accrued 1,381.88
2250 - PERS Liability _ 475._60
Total 2200 - Payroll Liabilities 6,614.40

Page 3



1:31 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

12/07/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of November 30, 2022
Nov 30, 23
2300 - Deposits Held
2303 - Water Deposits Held 6,430.00
Total 2300 - Deposits Held ) 6,430.00
Total Other Current Liabilities 13,044.40
Total Current Liabilities 202,564.23
Long Term Liabilities
2400 - Net Pension Liability 136,917.00
2450 - U.S. Bank Loan WWTP 2,814,183.01
2500 - Deferred Inflows of Resources 5,752.00
Total Long Term Liabilities ~2,956,852.01
Total Liabilities 3,159,416.24
Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings 7,148,342.43
Net Income -908,455.44
Total Equity 6,239,886.99
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

9,399,303.23

Page 4



L obed

€L'E6 LL- 000 weld oiioed - 0101 souelsissy 8)ey ¢z0Z/L0/LL ¥WsodeQ
€L'€96'LL- 6¥'99¢'9- Twisld oyided - 0L0L o9y lueg  gz0oe/L0/LL Wsodeqg
¥9'969°G- 000 uald dylded - 0101 ¢ Y0 2202/90/L1 MNsods(Q
¥9°969°G- 000 “wald oyloed - L0l | 8O 2202/90/L1 ¥sodeQ
¥9°969'G- 000 “weld dyided - 010l @oue)sissy &jey ¢g02/90/LL WsodaqQ
¥9°969°G- lGg'L¢- “rwald ouided - 0101 o9y lueg  gz0oe/90/LL WisodeQg
€1°659°G- 000 wield olided - 0L0L ZJeno 2z0z/So/LL ¥sodeQ
€1°659'G- 000 rwisld oiided - 0L0L } I8UI0  2202/S0/L1L Wsode(
€1°699'G- 000 wisld dyided - 0101 oouelsissy ajey 2z0z/S0/LL WsodeqQ
€1°669'G- 19'86- 'wsld dyoed - 0101 09y luBS 2Z0Z/S0/LL WsodeqQ
9" 09G'G- 2SS wiald duyided - 0101 Zoyo zzoz/ro/LL WsodeQ
¥6'¥5G'G- 000 wald dyioed - 010l | I8YO 2202/0/LL ¥sodeQ
¥6°¥SG'G- €Ly "wiald duloed - 0LOL souejsissy ejey Zzoz/v0/LL Nsodeq
L9'66G'G- €Lvs0'e- uiald diylded - 0101 o9y IUBS  2Z0Z/P0/LL WsodeQ
¥S'S0G'C- LY¥'8G1 Tlsld dyloed - 010l ZJoYyl0 2z0z/e0/LL WsodeQ
L0'¥99°'C- 000 “Twiaid dyided - 0101 } 19Ul0  2202/€0/L1L WsodeQ
L0¥99°¢C- AT/ weld duided - 0L0L souejsissy ajey gz0z/c0/LL WisodeQ
€v 069°C- 18°290'}- wieid dlided - 0L0L o9y lueg zz0z/eo/L1L usodeQ
9G°229'}- 000 wld duided - 0L0L ZJ9YI0 2T20Z/Z0/LL Wsodeg
96'229'l- 000 wiald oylded - 0101 L 5840 2202Z/20/LL YsodeQ
96229}~ €LY “waid diloed - 0101 souejsissy ajey gg0z/e0/LL Wsodeg
62 L29')- G.68L°L- Twisld ouided - 0101 o9y lues  gz0e/e0/LL NsodeQg
vG LEY- 000 rwsid duided - 0L0L ZJ8Ylo 2z0z/Lo/LL wsode(Q
G LeV- 000 wald diided - 0LOL | 28O 2202/L0/LL ¥sodeQ
WA 00'Gl ""wiald dyIokd - 0101 sduejsissy @ley ¢c0c¢/L0/LL  Usode(Q
vG ¢Sy ¥S2sy- wald dyloed - 010l o9y lueg  Zzoz/Lo/LL Wsodaq

Aiejiueg

LG2SE L~ 1G°CSEL- sjybi [ejoL
LGCSE - 1G'CGe |- Twald oyioed - 0L0L T SIYBIT ‘Gz JejeM ‘0L T U89 - | # HdINI - IIN 1OO €2 Ad 401 220Z/L0/LL :mMQmo

siybn

80'GE6'QL- 80°GE6'8L- ulwpy / [ejsusg [ejo|
80°GE6'8L- 80'GE6'8L- “wdld d4ioed - 0L0L T SIYBIT ‘Gz JsleM ‘0L T U9D - | # HdINI - IN LOO €2 A4 4L 2202/L0/LL ¥sodaQg

ulwpy / |esaudn

aouejeg unowy mds aje( adA)|

Z20Z 1oqWIdAON

pung Aq sysodaq ceiLonr)

1LISIF S99IAISS AJlUNWWOY Yyoeag BlIAY



Z 9bed

€Sl '8y- 000 rwisld oiided - 0LOL } JaYI0 2zZ0Z/9L/LL MsodeQ
€S CLY 8P 18°€e wsld dlioed - 0L0L aouelsissy ajey 2z0z/9L/L1L Usode(q
0¥"L0G'81- 0r'GL9- “rwisid dyioed - 0101 o9y Iueg  ZzZ0z/9L/LL wsodeQ
00268 L1- 000 TUwsid dyidoed - 0101 ZJ9Ul0 2z0z/SL/LL usode(
00°268°Li- 000 Twisld diioed - 0L0OL | I8YI0  ZZ0Z/SL/LL usodeQ
00°268°Lv- 000 wield oyioed - 0101 soue)sIssy 9jey 2z0zZ/Gl/LL WsodeQ
00°268°Li- 68°GS0°L- wadd Jiioed - 0LOL o9y lues gz0zZ/SL/LL NsodeQg
L1'9€8'9Y- SL'LL- “wisld dided - 0101 Z48Ul0 zZeozirl/LL wsodeqQ
96'8G. 9p- 000 "wialid oyided - 0101 L J8Yl0 zZzoZ/vL/LL Msodeqg
96°85.L Op- soel wiald oyloed - 0L0L soue)sissy a)ey zz0z/vi/LL ¥HsodeQ
LO'CLL O veL0L'e- rwsld oyioed - 0L0L o9y lueg  zzoz/vL/LL Nsodeqg
19°0L0eh- 000 “wisid diyioed - 010l Z18Yl0 zzoz/eL/LlL wsode(Q
L9°0L0'ch- 000 “wisid dyloed - 0L0L L JBYO 220z/Tl/LL Wsode(g
£9°0L0'ch- 000 “liald dyided - 0LOL aouejsissy ajey ¢z0z/ZL/LL ¥sode(Q
£9°0L0°ct- 60°6.- “Twsld 4ioed - 0101 o9y lues gzoz/el/LL WsodseQ
85166 'Ch- 000 TTwsid dyioed - 0101 ZJ2ylo zzoz/Ll/LL usodsQ
8G°166°C- 000 wsld dyided - 0101 |l I8Y)O  220Z/LL/LL NsodeqQ
8G°166°Ch- 000 'wald oyioed - 0101 aouesissy aley  Zz0eg/LL/LL Hsodag
85°166'CP- 69°'9¢- wiald oyioed - 0101 ooy lues zzoz/LL/LL WsodeqQ
69°¥96°Ch- 69'¥9¢ “Uwiald JIved - 0L0L - 62/6 W0o0ISey died Ajunwwo) Ajsjesedag payoog zz/01/LL  2202/0L/L1L WsodeqQ
8G'62ECH- 69'v9¢- wisld oyided - 0L0L 22/L2/0l - 62/6 swoonsay yed Ajunwwod Zzoz/0k/LL Wsodeq
6896 ¢h- g9'291 “wiaid dyided - 0101 ZJaUl0 2202/01/LL ¥sode(Q
ySeeL'ey- 000 wisld dyloed - 0LOL | l8YO 2202/0L/LL ¥sodeq
ySzelL'er- 8L LY wisld duided - 0101 souelsissy s)ey zz0z/0L/LL ¥sodeq
zeo8L'ey- €0'92eC- wisid dyloed - 0LOL 09y lueg ¢z0z/0L/LL WsodaQg
62 58" 0F- 000 “wisld dlyloed - 0LOI Z18yl0 2202/60/L 1 ¥sodeQ
6Z'vS8'0v- 000 “wisld dyIoed - 0101 | 28O 2202/60/L1 ¥sodeQ
62 vS8'0b- 000 TTwisld JyIoed - 0101 aouejsissy ajey 2z0z2/60/L1 ¥sode(Q
62 7S 0~ GZ'¥§6- “Twiald dyided - 0L0OL o9y lueg  gzoz/60/LL Wsodsq
¥0°006°6¢- gcey- weld diided - 0101 ZJeyo 2z0z/80/L1 Msode(Q
18°268'6¢- 000 wsld dyided - 0L0L | J8Ul0  2202/80/L1 Wsodeg
18" .68'6E- 05°L€ wisld dylded - 0101 aouelsissy 9)ey 2z0z/80/L1 ¥sodeQ
L€°'668'6€- 6v°€6L L- wisld diioed - 0101 o9y lueg zz0z/g0/L1L ¥sodeq
28°'10.'8¢- 69'8€.°02- "wiald dylded - 0L0L 9)seM - IN 100 €2 Ad 401 2202/L0/LL ¥sodeQ
€L'€96'LL- 000 Twsld oyioed - 0LOL Z48Yl0 220e/L0/LL ¥sode(
€1°€96'} L- 000 wisid dylded - 0L0L L 18I0  2202/L0/1) Wsodeg
aouejeg Junowy ydg owap ajeq adA}|
€20¢ 19quianoN
pung Aq sjisodaq zeILoe)

JoUIsIq S991A19G AJUnWiwoy) yoeag ejiIay



¢ abed

16°08L°€9- or'6 Trusld oyloed - 0101 aoue)sissy Sjey  Zz0z/0¢/LL ¥usodeQ
LE°06L°€9- 88°99- weld ouloed - 0101 o9y lueg zz0z/0g/LL ¥sodeQ
6y°'€2L'c9- 000 wBid oioed - 0L0L ZJayo zeoeg/ee/LL Hsodeq
6Y'€2L'co- 000 Twsld oiioed - L0l L 18Yl0 2z0z/6z/LlL Wsodeq
6y'€2.'c9- 06'¢ TwRdd oyioed - 0101 aoue)sissy ajey g0Z/6Z/L1L ¥usodeq
6€'L2.'€9- 99°61- rwield olloed - 0401 o9y lueg zzog/ee/Ll ¥sode(
€8°20L°€9- FANANA Trwsld oyided - 0101 ZJauyO zz0oz/8ez/LL wsodeQ
91°G6Y'€9- 000 'wiald dyioed - 0101 | JoYyl0 zz0e/8z/LL ¥sodeQ
91°G61'€9- XAV XA 'wsld dyoed - 0101 aoue)sissy @)ey  zz0e/8z/LL MsodeQ
6£'225'e9- 60°52¢- lisld oyloed - 0LoL o9y lueg zz0e/8z/LL Msodaq
0€'L62'c9- 000 rwisld oyioed - 0L0L ZIYO 2zoz/ez/LL wsodeQ
0€°.62'¢9- 000 wsld oyloed - 0LOL L Joul0 zzoz/ez/LL usodeQ
0€'262'c9- 000 “wsld dyioed - 0101 aouelsissy a)ey Zz0z/ce/L|L HsodaQg
0€°.62°€9- LE°VG- rwisld olyloed - 0104 o9y lueg zzoe/ez/LL MsodaQ
€6'SvC'co- 68°081- rweld oyloed - 0101 ZJIBYIO Zzoz/ez/LlL MsodsQg
¥0°690°€9- 000 “wisld oyloed - 0L0L | JoYI0 ZZ0Z/2z/LL wsodeQ
¥0°590°€9- 000 “wisld duided - 0101 aoue)sissy ajey gz0c/zz/LL HsodeQ
¥0'690°c9- Ly'GSe'L- wield Jyloed - 0101 o9y lueg zgoz/ee/Ll Wsodeq
25°60.°19- 000 usld diided - 0LOL Z48ylo zzoe/le/LlL wsodeQ
15°60.L°19- 000 “rwisld duided - 0101 | 84O geoe/ie/LL Wsodeq
LG'60L°19- 000 Trwsid oyided - 0101 aouejsissy a)ey zz0e/Le/LL Wsodeq
L5°60.L'19- €6°1G6S- rwald dyided - 0101 09y lueg  zzoz/Le/LL sodeg
9'/G1°19- 000 rsld oioed - 010l Z4sUl0 2202/61/LL Wsoda(Q
¥9'/G1'L9- 000 “wisld oijiced - 0LOL L JaYO0 Zzoe/6iL/LL wsode(Q
v9'LGL°19- 000 "'walid oyloed - 0LOL soue)sissy ajey zz0z/6L/LL ¥sodaQ
v9'2GL°19- 616" 'wisld oyloed - 0101 29y lues  zz0zZ/6l/L1L ¥sode(
G8'lrL'LO- 000 wsld oyioed - 0L0L ZJ9Ul0 220z/8L/LL wsodeQ
G8' YL LO- 000 TwRid oyloed - 0101 | J8WO ZZ0ozZ/8L/LL ¥sodeg
S8 LPLLO- 0L'LS weid ouided - L0l aouejsissy a1ey  gg0z/8l/LL HsodeQg
GS'661°19- 88°9/9°L |- Twield oljioed - 0L0L o9y lueg zzoz/gL/LL WsodeQ
1922561~ 69°00¢- wield dlioed - 0L0L ZJayo zecoz/LL/LL ysodeQ
86°LZE 61" 000 rusld oyided - L0l L49Yl0 220z/LL/LL usode(
86’L2c 6l oLl “wisld oyloed - 0101 souejsissy ajey 2c0z/LL/LL ¥sodeQ
vy 6€€'61- 9/.'88.- wield oiloed - 0101 o8y lUBS ZZ0Z/LL/LL WsodeqQ
89°'0GG '8~ SVLL- wisld olloed - 0L0L ZJ8Ul0 zezoeg/9L/LL ysodeq
asuejeg junowy yids owap ajeq odA)
¢20C 12quIsAoON
pung Aq sysodaqg ceiLore)

Jo1)SIQ SAJIAISG AJUNWWO? Yorag BlIAY



¢ abed

79886'L- 000 “Wwiald dlioed - 0101 souejsissy aley  2202/.0/LL ¥sodeQ
¥9'886'/- 8598¢'¢C- “luaid diioed - 0LOL o9y JoleM  2202/L0/L1L ¥sode(
90°20L'G- 000 “uisld dyided - 0101 ZJ9Y0 2202/90/L)1 Wsode(Q
90°20L'G- 000 “Tlsid dylded - 0101 | 12Yl0  2202/90/L1 WsodeQ
90°20.'G- 000 Twsid d1Ioed - 0101 aoue)sissy ajey zzZ0Z/90/L1L ¥sodeQ
90°20.°G- 89°26- Trweld oyded - 0101 09y J9)epM  2202/90/LL MsodaQg
8 ¥¥9'G- 000 “Uwiaid Joed - 0101 Z9yl0 zz0ez/S0/LL WsodeQ
8 ¥19'G- 000 “wdid oIoed - 0101 L JoUl0  220e/S0/L1L Wsode(
8€'¥¥9'G- 000 "wald dyioed - 0101 souelsissy ajey  2z0¢/S0/L1L  Ysode(Q
8E'v9'G- 98'891- “Uwiald dived - 0101 o9y JoJep  2202/G0/L L Wsode(
2S'SLv'G- 000 “Uwiald dyided - 0101 Z9Ul0  2202/70/LL usode(
2S'SLY'G- 000 wsld Jyioed - 010l L I8YI0  2202/70/LL Wsodeq
¢S'SLv'G- 0.0l “'wisld oiyided - 0101 soue)sissy a)ey  zz0z/#0/11L Wsodag
A A 0L'8LLC- “wiaid dyidoed - 0L0L o9y J9JBM  2202/70/LL WsodeQ
zL'80L'C- 000 “wald diioed - 0LOL ZJ49n0 2zz0z/c0/LL NsodeQ
21'80.'- 000 “Twiald oyoed - 0101 | 2840 2202/€0/L1 ¥sodsQ
Z1L'80L°2- 12 WA] 'weld oyioed - 0101 aoue)sissy ey  2z0e/c0/LL ¥WsodeQ
9v'G9L 2" SheLL - “rwiaid oyIoed - 0L0L 29y J8)eM  Z202Z/€0/LL WsodeQ
10°2S9°L- 000 TUweld duyidoed - 0101 Z9Ul0 2202/20/L1L Wsode(Q
10°2S9°L- 000 "wald olioed - 0101 | 2940 2202/20/L1 MsodeQ
10°¢59°}- 0,0l Uwld oyioed - 0101 aouelsissy aley  ¢20z/z0/L1L WsodeQ
LL'299°L- P8 YSL L- “Uwiaid JuIoed - 0101 09y JaleM  2Z02/20/LL NsodeQ
/8'106- 0070 “rwald ooed - 0401 ZJ48Yl0 220Z/L0/LL ¥HsodeQ
18206~ 00°0 “Twiaid oyided - 0101 | JBUIO 2202/L0/LL Hsodeq
18°10G- L0°€2 “Twiaid diiv9ed - 0101 souejsissy ajey ¢g0z/Lo/LL Wsodeq
¥6°0€G- ¥6"0€G- “Uwisid ooed - 0L0L o8y Jelep  Z20zZ/L0/LL wsode@

191

25'GoL L- 25'S9L')L- 91SEA PIIOS [BJOL
25°G9L - 25'GoL I- TUwisid dijioed - 0101 MS 9284 8siyouel4 suonosuuo) ajsepy  ¢z0z/9L/LL  HsodaQ

9)SEM PlIOS

16°08L°€9- 16°08L'€9- Aejueg |ejo}
16°08L'¢9- 000 “rwald oiioed - 0401 ZBylo zzoz/oe/LL ysodeQ
16°08.'€9- 000 “wiaid duved - 0101 | 9O 220z/oe/LlL ¥sodeQ

aouejeg junowy yidsg ows ajeq adA)

2202 19quIsAON

pun4 Aq sjsodaq zelILoie)

oUISIg S99IAI9G AJUnwwo) yoeag BlIAY



G abey

68'cLe'Te- 000 'wisld oyioed - 010l L4OYO Zegoz/SL/LL wsodeQ
68'cLeee- 000 wald duyided - 010l aoue)sIsSY dley Zz0c/SL/LL usodeQ
68clece- ¥8'¥96- “weld dyided - 0101 o9y JoJep  2202/GL/LL Wsode(Q
So'6vZ'Le- 000 "wald Olioed - 0101 Zlayo zzozivl/LL ysode(
S0'6v2 LE- 000 “Twiald diided - 0L0L LJoWo 2zozwl/LL Wsodeg
go'6ve’Le- leel Twisld duided - 0101 souelsissy aley zz0z/vL/LL Hsodeq
STAYATAN R o 60VL9'P- Twisld diided - 0101 ooy JoleM  Z20e/vL/LL WsodeQ
L1°88G'9¢- 000 usld dided - 0101 ZJayio 2zoz/zl/LL wsodeq
L1'885'9¢- 000 rwisld dyded - 0101 | JoUl0  220z/el/LL WsodeQ
11°885'0¢- 000 wisld oiioed - 0L0L souejsissy aley ¢20g/gL/LL  ¥sodeQ
11'886'0¢- AAVA uald diyioed - 0101 09y Jelep  2zZ0z/ZL/LL Wsode(Q
G6°215'9¢C- 000 Twiald dyided - 010l ZJeUl0 2zoez/LL/LL usodsQ
G6°L1G'9C- 000 wisld diioed - 0L0L | 1BYO Z202/LL/LL HsodsQ
G6°L1G'92- 000 “wiald duyided - 010l aouelsissy aley  ¢c0eg/LL/LL Wsode(Q
G6°L15°92- 0S°€G- weld duided - gL0L o9y Jejlep  220zZ/LL/LL Msode(
St vy 9C- vG'29c wield ouoed - 0L0L - 62/6 Woodsay led Ajunwwo) Ajlsjesedeg payood gz/0L/LL  2202/0L/LL Wsodeg
66°'92.°9¢- 89°LV6 “wald oyloed - 0LOL  °Z/0L - 62/6 uohebil| 1oag ol Ajgjesedag payoog ZzZ/0L/LL  2Z0Z/0L/LL Wsodeq
L9V19'LT- og'6st'e “Twield ouded - 0LOL ") - 62/6 Uonebiu siied uenr ues Ajsjesedag payood zz/0L/LL  Z20Z/0L/LL ¥sodeQ
€0've8'0e- vG29c- wsld dyided - 0101 ZZ/L2Z/0L - 62/6 swoonsay Yed Ayunwwod zzoz/0k/LlL WsodeQ
6v’1L.5'0¢€- 89°/V6- wsid dylded - 0101 22/L2/0\ - 62/6 uonebu| eang Juoly  Zzoz/0L/LL Wsodeq
18'€29'6¢2- 9€'6G1 ‘¢- “wiald duided - 0101 22/12/0\L - 62/6 uohebui| uenr ues  zz0z/0L/LL WsodeQ
Sty '9c- 000 rwisld ouiced - 0L0L ZJ9Yyl0 zz0z/0L/LL Wsodeg
Sy vov'9e- 000 wald dlided - 0L0L } JUl0  220eg/0L/LL ¥sode(Q
Gr'vov'9g- G0'0L ruald diyioed - 0LOL souelsissy aley  gg0z/0L/LL Wsodaq
05'v€5'92- l¥'089°9- "Wwiaud oIoed - 0101 09y Jalep  2Z02/0L/LL HsodsQ
605861~ 000 “Tweld dyided - 0101 Z12Wo zz0z/60/L1 usodsQ
60vS8'61- 000 “waid dyided - L0} | ISYIO ZZ02/60/L1 WsodeQ
60vS8'61- 000 Twield diIded - 0101 souejsissy aley  Zz0z/60/LL WsodeQ
60¥S8°61- 19°06L'¢- rusld dyided - 0101 09y J9)eM  2202/60/LL ¥sodeq
Zv'€90°91L- 000 “'wald d|yIved - 0101 Z18yl0 220e/80/L1 usode(
Zv'€90°91- 000 Twisld oyioed - 0101 | 18O 2202/80/L1 ¥sodeQ
Zr'€90'9L- 0L°4S rwisld duided - 0L01L souejsissy ajey gg0e/80/L|L  Wsodeqg
cLiei'oL- G6'69¢°L- rusld oyided - 0101 08y Jolep  2202/80/LL ¥usode(Q
LLLS2'pL- €5°C9L'9- wald ooed - 0LOL T SIYOIT ‘G US)e M ‘0L T UeD - | # HdINI - IN L0 €2 Ad 401 2202/.0/1L Wsodeqg
¥9'886' .- 000 Trwisld duided - 0L0L ZJ9Ylo zz0z/L0/LL wsodeQ
¥9'886°L- 000 ruisld oytoed - 0101 | 18I0  2202/L0/L) WsodeQ
aoue|eg unowy nds OWId\ ajeq ad/A)
€20¢C 19UIBAON
pung Aq susodaqg ceiLoiel

JUISIQ S321A198 APUNWIWO) yoeag eIy



g abed

15°660°05- 000 Twisld d4ided - 0LOL |l JsylQ 2zoz/ee/LL WsodeQ
15'S60°0G- cL'6lL “weld diioed - 0101 souelsissy a)ey ¢gz0c/6¢/L1L ¥sodeQ
62°SL1L°0G- ¥9°86- 'ueld dioed - 0101 o8y JelepM  220z/6Z/L1L ¥sodeQ
G9'9L0°0g- 000 Twiald diioed - L0l Z9Ul0 Zz0z/8z/LL NsodeqQ
G9'91L0'0G- 000 Twisld dyloed - 0LOL | 184l0 220z/8z/LL WsodeqQ
G9'9L0°0G- cesy wisld diyioed - 0LOL souelsissy a)ey zz0z/82/LL WsodaQg
16'1900G- 2£°006- “lald dyioed - 0101 o9y JBJeM  2202/82/LL Nsodag
09°L9L 6~ 000 wisid dyided - 0101 ZJ9Ylo zzoz/ez/LlL ¥sods(
09°'L9L'6p- 000 “luald diyioed - 0LOL | JoUl0 zzoz/ez/LL ¥sodaqQ
09'LoL ‘6P 000 “wsdd oyioed - 0101 aouelsissy @1ey  gg0eg/cg/LL  NsodsQ
09°L9l ‘61~ 98°'L9- Twedd duyioed - 0101 o9y J9leM  2202/€Z/L)L ¥WsodaQ
¥.°660 61~ 000 Tweld duided - 0101 ZJWy0 zeoe/ze/LL usodeQ
¥.°660'61- 000 wsld dyided - 0101 L I8YI0 2z0oz/zz/LL Wsodeq
v1'660°61- 000 “wald dyided - 0LOL soue)sissy ajey zz0z/zz/LL ¥sodag
¥.'660'61- co'L6L- “wslid dylded - 0101 o9y 18lBM  2202/22/L1 ¥sodeQ
Z1°80¢ 8- 000 'wald duided - 0104 Z U0 zeoz/lz/Ll ysodeQ
cl'80¢g ‘8- 000 “Twiaid d4ided - 010} } 18Yl0 2e2oe/le/Ll WsodeqQ
Z1'80€e'8h- 000 “Tlsid dyided - 0101 soue)sissy @)ey zz0z/Lz/LL MHsodeqQ
Z1'80¢c 8- 81°89G- Tlweld duyided - 0104 ooy Jelep  2202/1Z/LL ¥HsodeQ
¥6'6€L Ly- 000 wisid dyided - 0L0L ZJayl0 zeoez/el/LL WsodeQ
v6'6€L Ly- 000 “rwisid dyided - 0LOL | 18Yl0 2c0z/6lL/LL ¥sodeQ
¥6'6€L Ly- 000 sl dlioed - 0LOL Qoue)sissy ajey zz0e/6L/LL HsodeQ
¥6'6€L L1~ AN & Tweld dyloed - 0101 o9y J8lep\  220Z/61/11 ¥sodeQ
29°069°Lp- 000 TUwsid dyIoed - 0LOI ZJoyio 2zoz/glL/LL usodeQ
29°069°Ly- 000 Twald duided - 0101 | J9YI0 Zz0e/gl/LL MsodeQ
29069 Ly- 6.'68 Tweld dyided - L0l souelsissy ajey  Zz0z/gl/LlL Msodeqg
b 08L LY~ y9'Ze6'El- “wisld Oyided - 0101 o9y I18lep  2202/8L/LL ¥sodeQ
L11vQ'ee- 000 weld diided - 0101 Z U0 2z0Z/LL/LL ysodeg
L1l ly8'ee- 000 Twisid dyided - 0101 | I8YIO  220e/LL/LL WsodeqQ
LLly]'ee- L6°€d rwald dyioed - 0101 souejsissy a)ey gz0z/LL/LL WsodeQ
89°1.8'¢ce- 9€°G68- wsid dyided - 0101 09y JoleM  220Z/LL/LL ¥sodeQ
2e9.6'ze- 000 “Tuisld dyloed - 0101 ZJ9Ul0 2202/91/LL ¥sode(Q
ceraleee- 000 “ruiald dyloed - 0101 L 1840  2202Z/9L/LL WsodaqQ
2e9.6'ce- 85°G9 “wsld d4ded - 0101 Qouelsissy aley ¢c0z/9L/L1L UsodeQ
06°L¥0°ee- 10°8¢8- Twsld dyided - 0101 o9y J18leM  220Z/9L/LL ¥sodaQ
68€lLeee- 000 TUwald dyioed - Lol z18yl0 2eoez/si/LL wsodeQ
aouejeg unowy Hids ajeq adA)
€20¢C 19quIaA0ON
pun4 Aq sjisodaq ceiLore)

IPUISI S991AIa8 AIUNWIWOY Yoesg BJIAY



1 abed

96°968°GE L~

95'968'GE L~ V1Ol
¥5'229'05- G'229'05- 191 [ej0]
¥5'229'06- 000 rwiald aljed - 0101 Z19Yl0 2zoz/og/LL nsodeQ
¥5°229°06- 000 TTwRdd dyioed - 0101 L JoyO 2zZ0zZ/0g/LL WsodaQ
¥5°¢29'05- ov'Le Tlaald dued - 0101 aouelsissy eley ¢z0z/0g/LL WsodeQ
¥6°€¥9°05- 12'8¥S- lisld d|y1oed - 0101 o8y JBjep  2zZ0Z/0€/LL NsodeQ
2G'G60'06- 000 weld dived - 0101 Z 1IBYl0 2z0Z/62/LL Wsodeg
aouejeg Junowy nids  owsy ajeq adKk]
2202 JequianoN
pun4 Aq sjisodaq zeiLonrel

1oUySig S82IAIag AJlUunWWwoY) yoeag elIAy



| abed

1g'228'9Lc 0009 O eouegHued - GLLY9 T LG YIL $ 22/82/LL UO Z¥0S # MO pJIo Yueq Juswisnipy xuegq ravy 220z/8z/L1 3oayd
187202°012 921 uawAhed eseyd - 0Z1S S89} 99 jueydsow yosjuswAed z20z/8z/L1L %oayo
§6'99/'0lZ 66622 | / duoydaja] - 8G9 LZGEE008600LS5YZ8 # 100V wnuoedg 143 2zoz/sziLL %oayo
09'9¢5'9le €166 "usuwifed aseyd - 0Z1LS $99) 00 JueydJOW yosjuswAed AV AL AN }o8yD
LLIEV'9LZ  26'E "uswAhed eseyd - 0ZLS $99) 00 jueyoJow yosjuswied zzoz/zz/LL 3o8yd
GZ'eEr'9Le  €Covl salllin - 0689 IS sInT ues Q0L I%9d 143 2z0z/Lz/LL pel=1V i)
zZ6'262'912 0002 aoueuLlURK - 2SO 1sad uepzea.g 143 zzoz/8L/LL 3osyD
z6'222'9le  00°00€ “uawAhed eseyd - 0Z1LS $99) 00 jueyoiow yosjuawAed zzoziLLvL 3oayn
26'226'sle 808l diys g abejsod - Zrl9 UZZ/LL/LL 194 “AU| 6P Jequnp Jowojsn) | ‘saIbojouyoa) sAess)  BGEE  2Z0Z/LL/LL %o8yD
vv'evl'siz  00°0v2 Bununoooy - 2oL9 Buideaxyoog zz/6/LL  Buidesyjoog aibul MYIN  ZGEE  2202/LL/LL 3o8yd
P¥'206°Gle  00°0¥C Bununoooy - 2019 Buidesydoog 061€ "AUl Z2/Z/LL  Duidesyyoog s(Bul DMIN  LGEE  Z20T/LL/LL 3o8yD
¥7'29Z'slz 86'¢ uawAhed sseyd - 0Z1LS $99} 00 JueyolaW yosjuawAed 22oz/9L/LL %o8yD
op'8Ge'siz 89¢ uawAhed eseyd - 0Z1LS $99} 00 Jueyosew yosjuawAed 220z/9L/11 o9yD
8/°66Z'G1Z 95T “uswhed aseyd - 021G $89} 09 jueyosow yosjuswAed Z202Z/SL/LL %094yo
22'ese'sle  69'€ee 2010 ‘saddng - €19 sdwejgieqany 220g/vLiLL 3oeyo
€5'612'slz 00002t " 10geT JoBJUOD - 90S9  TTBAUOD £Z0Z ‘UIS AON - PIEZ 100 002 AUl ssleloossy g uuewabeH  9gee  ZzO0eg/vL/LL 3o8yD
€5'6L0'L1C  L9¥ "uawAhed aseyd - 0ZLS $89) 00 JueyosPwW yosjuswAed zzZoz/oLLL %oayo
98'¥L0'LLlZ  00°0vZ Buyunoooy - 2019 Buideaxyoog G8L¢ "Aul ¢Z/9Z/01L  Buideayyoog aiBug BMIN  €GEE€  220Z/0L/LL %08y)
98'¥22'0LZ 00°00€ Bugunoody - Z0L9 Buidaayyoog g81¢ ‘AUl ZZ/9zZ/0L  Buideaxoog sibug BMIN  €GEE  ZZ0Z/0L/LL 3o8yo
98'v.iv'0Lz 0082 aoueuRUIBI - Z¥GQ 'O pue pues ‘saAeaT Jo dn ues|D Jousix] ‘00 Bulues|) suipse0D  ZGEE  220Z/0L/LL pis=llle)
98'6¥¥'0Lle 00591 soueUBUEK - Z7G9 (220Z 1°0) 85 L€ "Au| 8ouBUBUEIN 8210 ‘00 Bujues|) sulpse0D  zeee  Zz0Z/oM/LL pe=lig)
98'¥8Z'0LZ  00°9% [ebsq - gg1L9 ZZ/LLI0L €L¥661L ‘AU LOO0O-SZYYE @lld T ewied g [9)s0d ‘9dlld  /PEE  220Z/0L/LL pelle}
99'8¢Z°'0LZ 80'L uawhed aseyy - 0Z1S $894 00 JueyoJoW yosjuawAed zz0z/60/LL %989YyD
8.°/¢2'0LZ 18T “"uawAhed eseyd - 0Z1LS S99} 00 Jueyssow yosjuswhed 2202/60/11 3o9yo
12°S€2'0Le  00°0F "IN g "doy "dib3 - $Z59 siedel Joindwoo sigindwoy 29 18D 143 2z02/60/11 pie:lVig}
1Z's6lL'ole  zgesey pnojD 82I0AU| - O LG S99 JuBYOIBW PNOD 8DI0AU| PNOJDa0I0AU| 2z0z/80/L1 3¥o94yD
6¥'66.'602 2.2 ""uawAhed aseyd - 0ZLS $88} 20 Jueyosaw yosjuswAed 2z0z/80/L1 oayo
£€€°26/'60Z 00°LL xawy - 011§ Xswy ~9sI( ssaudx3g uesuswy 2z0z/L0/L1 %o9yD
£E9v.'60Z 80T "‘uswhed eseyy - 0Z15 $99) 00 jJueyolow yosjuswAed 2202/L0/L1 ¥o8Yyd
SZ¥r.'60Z vEC "uaWihed aseyo - 0Z1S $99) 00 JueyosewW yosjuswAied zz0zivo/LL %o8Yyd
L6'LYL'602 0615 diys g sbejsod - zv19 90IAIBS [E)SOd ‘SN Z20Z/v0/LL 3oayo
10289602 ¥9°EL "uswAhed eseyd - 0Z1LS S99} 00 Jueyoiew yosjuawAed 2202/g0/L 1 3o8yD
1£°€/9'60Z 06'9%€ diys » obeisod - gy1L9 80IMIB8S |BISOd ‘SN zz0e/co/LL 3o9yo
[P'9ZE'60Z 66'918'G0Z  Ueoyueg SN - 0SPZ  iBAN dLMM ueoT Joy Juswhed [enuuy 1St jueg [euoneN AlID  GYEE  ZZ0Z/EO/LL %99yD
8¥'605°C 00°05L'E " JogeT J0ejuUoD - 9069 T - Ui 100 JogeT 10BIUOD ZZ/E/LL 661 L AUl ss8jeioossy g uuewabeH  y¥ee  ZZ0Z/C0/LL ¥o8y9
87°65€ YLy "dng BuesadO - 0659 "*8Ag ssauIsng soluol}e) 220z/20/L1 3¥oay9
10'81LE 011 uawAhed aseyd - 0Z1LS $99} 29 jJueydlow yosjuswAed 2202/20/L1 %o9yD
LE'90€ A “"udwAed asey) - 0Z1S S99 00 Jueyosew yoajuawAhed 2202/20/L1 3oauo
66'662 00'002 alisgeM - 0219 auljweasg asogy Alyluow "I / Wod'auljweaSIen) 143 2Z20z/zo/LL ¥o8yD
66°66 6666 901 ‘sanddng - £¥19 uoyduosgns 810}S }JOSOLOIN z20z/1L0/LL 3o9yd
_.__F_—u<\ jelauac)
aouejeg junowry JUNnoodY [ TITETTT aweN wnp ajeq adA)
ZZ0Z J9qWIBAON
SJUNOIIY/M pung Aq s)o8Y9) zz/L0/zL

1ouISIg SP9IAI9S AJUnWwo) yoeagq ejIny



Z abed

19HISIg S221AIaG AHUNWIWos) Yyseayq BlIAY

2609651l 00 0sg’L “elleMm dLMM - PSPZ8 22  22/22/7 dLMM S9o1nes ubissq [eul QU ‘S9IBID0SSY B USA gree ¢2coc/oL/LL Ao8YD
Ze6SZ vl 00°S.S°C “elleM dLMM - PSPZ8 22 22/12/L dLMM S801AeS ubiss( [eul Ou| 'S8jeI0SSY B USA  8PEE  ZZ0Z/0L/LL %08YD
ZEY89'LLL 007008 " 'dey 'dinb3 - zgg9 senss| wiely yavos 9/6ZZM  “ebeuepy 80unosey pinjd  9¥EE 2Z0Z/E0/LL %98YD
ZEY8LLLL  $9°LGE dx3 BunesadQ - 0059 souodsay wuely Jebing 2062z obeuepy aounosay pinld  9vEE  Z20T/E0/LL Pl o)
892€8°0LL ¥9LEV g "day dinb3 - zzg9 Bunooyss|gnoi| Joeuuoobed 66zZzM ebeuep] aoinosay PNl 9PEE  2Z0Z/E0/LL p el ig)
y0'S6E'0LL  92°'86¥'E g "dey "dinb3 . gzg9 sisoubelq dwnd uonenososy v/zzzM  ebeuepy aoinosay pinl4  9pEE  220Z/E0/LL pelle]
8/°968°00L 86°'LZP'6 ISU0D dLMM - 85728 uononJisuo) Juswade(day 90D L62ZZM  ebeuejy aounosay piNjld  9pEE  Z2202/S0/LL %o8yo
08'vLv'L6 Nm.mmw.m\ g "dey -dinb3 . ZzG9 sanss| Uojjels Jejsoog IS IS| 8G1ZZM  "ebeuey @ounosey pinjld 9¥EE  ZZ0Z/EO/LL %08y
8561206  SZ'08S' g "dey "dinb3 - 2zG9 Juswade|day aAfeA DOD LiLZZM  Tebeuey @ounosey pinjl4  9¥EE  ZZOZ/SO/LL ¥oayD
£€€'6£9°08  8ZVLS'L "UISU0D dLMM - 86128 sonss| Bulesg Y44 9g1ZzZM  obeuely soinosey piNld  9vEE  ZZ0Z/EO/LL %oeyD
S0'GZL'6L  280SSYV g rdey "dinb3 - zzZ59 a3s Aepuodag gelLzem  obeuey eounossy pinl  9YEE  2202/€0/L1L $o8yo
€T YISV,  18'616Gl " JogeT J9BJUOD - GOG9 ZZ/1E/0L 8/€224 ~ebeue sounosey piNi4  obEE  2202/S0/LL %o8yo
9C'¥6S'8S  LE066°GL " 10geT JOBJUOD - G059 22/0€/6 #2224 “ebeuep aoinosey pINl4  9¥EE  2202/E0/LL }08yD
SO'v09'2y 6200091 " J0ogeT 19B4U0D - GOG9 22/1€/8 181224 obeuep 8oinosey pinjl4  9bEE  220Z/E0/LL »o8yD
0£'€09'9Z  ¥9°96¥ g 'dey dinb3 - gzg9 d1IMM wiely 6ZLZZM  “ebeueiy 80unosay pINld - 9¥EE  2202/E0/LL 3o8yD
99'90L'92  Z¥'L60'E "ISUOD dLMM - 85128 1aqqnuog Jiy MeN |[eJsu] £802ZM  ebeuely aounosey pinj4  9YEE  ZZ0Z/E0/LL %08y9
6L'GL0'CZ  86'700°L g 'dey "dinb3 - ZZg9 Jaquiey Buisog wuely 6902ZM  ebeue aounossy pinld  9veE  Z202/0/LL %o9yD
Ll2°0L022  1L6'60E ISU0D dLMM - 85128 ues|D Y44 1-8902ZM  ebeuely sounosed pini4  9pEE  220Z/€0/LL pe=lTie)
0£°00.'Lle  2€'66.'0 ISUOD dLMM - @SHZ8  TTIMS YOH Bul uinjey Y44 ues|D g90ZZM  ebeuepy 8oinosay PNl 9¥EE  2202/€0/LL %ooyo
86°006'vL  G6'8SP'L "JSUOD dLMM - 86728 lfeysu] dwind Y44 85022M  “ebeuepy @aunossy pinl4  9veE  ZZ0Z/0/LL %o8yD
€0Zrr'cl  00°0SE g sdey "dinb3 - Zzg9 alepdn J9WH uohels W1 g60ZZM  'ebeuepy aounosey piINi4  9bEE  ZZ0Z/SO/LL 3o9yD
€0Z60'Cl  SL'€ZS'L UISUOD dLMM - 86128 uoljeujpioo) uoisuedx3 Jueid $9gzzL obeuep sainosey PNl 9PEE  2202/€0/LL %oayD
89°'89G¢‘LL  LZ'8lLE'S "UISU0D dLMM - 85128 uoljeulpioo) uoisuedx3 jueld Lygzzl obeuep soinosey pini4  9¥ES  2202/E0/LL 3oayD
19°062'9 L9°0€S L "JISU0D dIMM - 86H28 YW SNUSA Yoe|g geegey  abeuepy soinosay piNld - 9bEe 2202/€0/LL %o9yo
90°02.'y 00°0¢ 09 Aojeinbay - G959 uonjeoljddy Jued ygzzzy rebeuely aounosey pinid  9vEE  ZZ0Z/EO/LL %o94yD
90°069'Y 19096 UISUOD dLMM - 9GPZ8 T Jueld Juawieal | Jelemelse dID vZZZey  TUebeuepy soinosay PNl O¥EE  2202/€0/LL per-Iig)
6£'62.L'C SY'6LE sleolayd - €059 Ul Joj eI R LEEZZY S[edlweayD Alejues  rebeuel 8ounosey pinld - 9PEE  2202/S0/L L 3o8YD
¥6'60v'E ¥6'609°L g rday dinb3 - ZZG9  SI0J08YSY HIOM PeoY B S|edlwsy) £Z2zey ebeuep 8oinosey pini4  9¥EE  220Z/E0/LL %oayo
00°008°L 00°008'L " 1ogeT 1oequog - 2069 WajsAg "lueg Joge Joeauo)  sejeioossy g uuewabey  ypEE  ZZ02/E0/LL prllie)
000 000 S9N - 0659 ~ PA Z ZGEY0LE-0ZL¥ JOQWNN 100V :QIOA " Adejuesg Aunod yinog 143 2zoz/zo/Ll %o9yd

Aie)lueg

26618 26618 syybi [elo)
26618 85°€/€ selIN - 0669 2-90969/96.5 #109e sjybi 1S Juo.d I%9d 143 z2zoz/ieikL bia:llig]
¥€ ovP vEoby seliiiN - 0659 £-869260690 # 1008 SIYBIT UMo | 3%9d 143 2zoe/Lo/kL v_mm;o

sybI

99'v2.'022 99'v2.'02¢ ulpy / [eJauss) [ejo |
99'vZ.'022 S9962 8010 ‘sonddng - gp19 se|dejg zz0zZ/0g/L L %o8yd
18'22¥'02Z2 00°009‘€ " JogeT JoeJUOD - 90SO  “IBL - UIQ AON LOZL "AU| JOGET 10BNUOD WO  sdjeloossy ' uuewsbeH  £9¢E  220Z/08/L1 pecile]

aosuejeg unowy Junoo2Yy JTTETT] aweN wnp ajeq adA)

2202 19qianoN

SJUNO22Y/M pung Aq s)29y) zeiLoreL



¢ abed

91°'620'61 18°10¢C saniin - 0659 "py Buipue aned 2121 389d 143 Zeoe/iest) 303YD
62°¢C8'8l 00°'0S. " JogeT joequo) - L1059 walsAg J9je M Joge J0enuo)  sejeloossy g uuewabey 96¢€e  c2og/vL/LY 3o34D
62°€40QL 80'882'| 00 Aojenbay - G959 Bunse] Buidweg Jajep 8yZZZm " abeue 80inosey pinj4 avee 2coc/eo/Li 034D
12°682°91 L0°662°S T JogeT oejuo) - G059 ZZ/1€/01 82€224 " abeuepy somnosay pinj4 9vee €20Z/co/Ll )93YD
vL'06v L1 L0°'662°S T Joge” epuo)d - 5059 22/0¢/6 ¥zeeed rabeuep aounosay pinjd aree  <¢coc/co/Ll 3o8yp
L0'S61°9 L0°G62'S T JogeT Joequo) - G059 2Z/\€/8 181224 obeuely aoinosey pINjl4  9vEE  ZZOT/E0/LL 398yD
00°'006 00°006 T Jogen peqluod - 1059 wa)sAg Jajep JOgeT JOBJUOD  SI)RIN0SSY B uuewsbeH wvee ¢2oc/co/lL 309YD

191

6.'€6£'66L 6.°€6£66) Aeyueg |eyo
6.°€6€£'661 S0°0€8 IomMeg R I9leM - 082 ) SOO AV IONVIva D0 ""INLISNIray IONVIvd rav ¢coc/oe/tl 308YD
¥2'€95'86L  00°0S€'L " JogeT jJoeqnuod - 2059 wajsAg Alejues JogeT joejuo)  s8)ejoossy p uuewsbeH €9€e 2c0c/oE/LL 303UD
v2'€12’.6L  00v8E SalIN - 06G9 UOleIBUSD UO saldjeq SSSfRUIA pade|day Wwiiey WIS)ISap) Jeals) cecoe/ec/ ) 3}934D
v.'628°'06L 8LVl saliin - 0659 ¢-8€CCEYBEEY #100E uoiels Y 3%¥9Od 143  2eog/ie/Ll 308Yyd
95°612°96L €9299'C samn - 0699 dwnd 'jg uelq ueg g pig 3%9d 143  ¢2eog/ie/tl 309Yd
£€6'250'¥6L G8'8S “"Juf / duoydsje] - G859 19uUIBlU| G880 X # Jo0e 1%1v 143 22oe/Le/Ll 3o/yd
80'766'¢6L €£TY8 s[ediwsyn - €059 Zc/olL/L L 6eveseidd "ou| ‘oyloed bejuussg  €9¢e  ZZOT/LLILL 3234D
G/L'LSL'e6L  00°CES S99 @ sjWiad - GGS9  /ZL - €¢/L/L [EmMaUdY £/86EL "ANI dLMM ulesH 03 O1S  ¢9e€  2coe/LL/LL 09YyD
G.'6L926L 002€S S99 @ SllWIdd - GGG9 TOUDY 69.01701 "ANI UOHEIS U7 198415 18l uileaH 09 O1S L9ee 2eoc/LL/LL 309YD
G.'/80'C61 €lev6l BullpueH spijos - 0859 L1169 "Auj 2g/6/1 | Bullpuey spijos "ou} ‘s,paadg 09ee ZeoZ/LLiLL 333D
co'syL'06L 1L6SZ'L uued dLMM - BSPZ8  UGYZ8 # AUl LILZLLE # 109foid d1MM HaW uouued  gGEE  220g/LL/LL 398YD
1668828l 0S'€e Ul / suoydape - 6859 ¢81916¢.LC.8T #190e 181V 143 2eoé/si/LL 393YD
L¥r'298°281 00008°L "t Jogen eqauo) - 2059 woyshg Aleyueg Joge joequo)  sajeloossy ¥ uuewsbey 96ee  ceocivliLL 303YD
Lr'290°L8lL  62°L02'82 elEM dLMM - PSFZ8  ZZ/L/6 00-Z100-S120 # 109[0dd LP0.S "AU| ‘ou| ‘dnoi9 @oe|eM GGEE  220T/0L/L L 108YDd
99'¥G8'2GL  €9'809°6l “BlleM dLMM - PSYZ8  22/L/01 00-2100-G120 # 108l0id 81€.G "AU| ‘ou| ‘dnoJo ol GGEE 2202/0L/1L L 3934D
€09bZ'cel 00'6€Z'C “BllEM dLMM - PSYZ8  /92/0L 00-2100-SH2Z0 # 108loid ZZ9/6 AUl 'ou] ‘dnolg doe|lep  GGEE 2202/0L/LL 39340
€0°200'0€l ST'66 sealy R 10 1B - 6269 22/S2/0L 7100-G120 # 199[01d €G2S "Auj ‘ou| ‘dnoJo @oellepM GGEE 220Z/0L/LL 034D
8.°/06'62L 00'9S€‘0 siss] qen - Ove9 TZ/Z/LL 126G Juswale)s  ohfjeuy ISe0D suoleqy  $SEE ZZ0Z/0L/LL 303yd
8L°165'€Cl TTVE6 sjeaiwsyg - €059 2eielV) Shi/8cidg "ou| ‘oljoed Bejuuaig LGeE <2c0c/OoL/LL 399YD
9621922l 2ZZ'veel s[edlwayy - £059 2¢/0z/0) £eveseldg "ou| ‘oljloed Bejuuaig LGee  220c/oL/LL )98YD
veese'lel  LS°160°1 s|ediwsyd - €059 22/.2/0L 86058Zidd "ou| ‘oljioed Bejuusig Lsee  2c0c/0L/LL 393yD
22°881°02L 00628} "ISUOD dLMM - @628 L BulojluO 80unosay [BININD 0L 1L2-2202 "0u| ‘sejelo0ssy alped 0Sce ¢2cog/oL/LL 384D
12°09¢'8LL  00°00Z°} TTUBOT J1IMM - JS1PE8  TTLEE 100V 20¢S049 AUl s894 UBOT d I MM jueg SN 6¥ec ¢2oc/OL/LL 308YD
227091211 00°69S “BIlEM dLMM - PSPZ8  712222/0Z/8 dLMM sedlales ubise( jeutd Ju| ‘sojeIdossyY g USA  8PEE  Z20Z/0L/LL 334D
11°G6G'OLL  G1'O86 elleM dLMM - PSPZ8 2 '2e/Lz/L  dLMM S82IAIBS ubisaq euld ou| ‘'sajeloossy g USA  8YEE  ZZOZ/OL/LL hREUS)

aosuejeg junowy JuUno22yY owapy aweN wnnN ajeq odA}

220 19qWdAON

SJUNO022Y/M pun4 Aq s)29yH ze/Lofel

1o13SIg S991AI9g Ajlunwiwo) yoeaq ejIAyY



1 obed

85°€66'L¥P 8S'E€66°LYY

Tv1ioL
12650'le  1Z2'S50°1T Jee W (8101
12°650°'LC S0'0¢ce Trlamag g JBlep - 0821 SO0 AV AONVYIVA 20  ""INLSNIAY JONVIvd rav ¢coc/oe/LlL Ao8UD
91'6zz’'0c 00002’} " JogeT Joesuod - 2099 walsAg Jaje M) Joge] JoenuoD  sdjeloossy p uuewsbeH  €oge  2Z0Z/0€/LL A994D
aosuejeg junouwly UNO22Y R owaN aweN wnp ajeqg adA]
2202 Joqianon
SIUNO0IJY/M pund Aq s)o9yo TeiLoret

10L38Ig $991A19G ANUNWILWOY |oeag BlIAY



_ FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT Statement
,-‘ OPERATIONS . MAINTENANCE . MECHANICAL

P
Wi

“ER "' 2385 Precision Drive
-. Date
o5l V1! UALJ  Arroyo Grande, CA 93420
’* ” 12/2/22

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax # 805.597.7171
California Certified Small Business #1120142

To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.0. Box 309

100 San Luis Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Amount Due Amount Enc.

$29,059.07

Transaction Amount Balance

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint-
11/30/22 |INV #F22475. Orig. Amount $22,299.00. 22,299.00 22,299.00

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FW11001
Water:348AW170041 Add Services water-
11/16/22 |INV #A22476. Orig. Amount $575.79. 575.79 2287479

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FWW11001
Wastewater:348AWW17002 Add Services Wastewater-

11/16/22 |INV #A22478, Orig. Amount $95.01. 95.01 22,969.80
348TWW21001 Plant Expansion Coordination-

11/17/22 |INV #T22459, Orig. Amount $125.00. 125.00 23,094.80
W22351 LS Cleaning-

11/18/22 |INV #W223541. Orig. Amount $3,648.63. 3,648.63 26,743.43

W22358 Influent High Level Alarm Cali out-
11/18/22 |INV #W22358. Orig. Amount $1,615.64. 1,615.64 28,359.07

W22453 Booster System Code Fix-
11/30/22 |INV #W22453, Orig. Amount $700.00. 700.00 29,059.07

CURRENT 1-30 DAYS PAST 31-60 DAYS PAST  61-90 DAYS PAST OVER 90 DAYS Amount Due
DUE DUE DUE PAST DUE

29,059.07 $29,059.07




FLUID RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT

CONTRACTORS LICENSE #937346

December 6, 2022

Avila Beach Community Services District
100 San Luis Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

SUBJECT: NOVEMBER 2022 MONTHLY FACILITY REPORT FOR THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT, WATER SYSTEM, AND COLLECTION SYSTEM

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

Areas within the wastewater plant that are known to accumulate solids continue to be manually cleaned on a regular basis. The
Chlorine Contact Chamber floor is vacuumed out on a weekly basis. These solids, if left to decompose, can have a negative effect on
the effluent quality leaving the facility.

Staff replaced one of the plug valves in the chlorine contact chamber; the remaining valves will be replaced in series to ensure proper
operation of the contact chamber during the project.

Staff responded to a high lift station level alarm and found that one of the pumps was plugged by rags and undergarments that had
been flushed; staff removed the materials plugging the pump and the system was returned to nonmal operations.

Installation of the Cloacina Package Wastewater Treatment Plant tanks by Cloacina and FRM’s Mechanical Division began at the
beginning of the month. The team continues to finalize installation of piping and anciflary equipment. Also, installation of new asphalt
and stormwater swales onsite at the WWTP facility began the last week of November.

WATER SYSTEM

The small water storage tank continues to be used as standby, with FRM staff monitoring the water quality in the tank and flushing as
needed. FRM Staff continues to monitor the chlorine residuals and provide additional chlorine as needed. Staff has been performing
distribution flushing on an as-needed basis.

Staff completed SCADA reprogramming to address the booster pump and potable water tank setpoints.
COMPLIANCE RECORD AND PLANT PERFORMANCE

Staff compiled the data to complete the monthly Self-Monitoring Report and Discharge Monitoring Report in California Integrated Water
Quality System (CIWQS). Once approved, the reports are uploaded into CIWQS and certified by ABCSD Staff.

Plant Design for Influent BOD is 270 mg/L. The permit limit for Effluent TSS and BOD is a Monthly Average of 40 mg/L with a Daily
Maximum of 90 mg/L.

Sincerely,
FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

ATTACHMENTS

Self-Monitoring Report

ABCSD Average Daily WWTP Effluent Flow (2020-2022)
ABCSD Monthly Total WWTP Effluent Flow (2020-2022)
Port San Luis Monthly Total Flow (2020-2022)

Monthly Average Influent BOD (2020-2022)

Monthly Average Effluent BOD (2020-2022)

Monthly Water Purchased from Lopez (2020-2022)
ABCSD Monthly Water Sold (2020-2022)

FLUIDRESOURCEMANAGEMENT.COM | 805.597.7100
FRMINFO@FRM-OPS.COM | 2385 PRECISION DRIVE, ARROYO GRANDE, CA 93420




Avila Beach CSD

DISCHARGER SELF-MONITORING

California Regional Water
ER R3-2017-0025
Quality Control Board, Or?gDES g Azo':) 47-::20
Central Coast Region Wastewater Treatment WDID 3 400101001
Monthly report due last day of following month F aCi l it .
e s hpbia o y Month: NOVEMBER 2022
Effluent and Influent Monitoring
Daily Flow (MGD) Effluent Monitoring Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweekly | Monthly
P Biweekly | Biweckly Daily Date Effluent | Effluent | Influent Influent Effluent
Date| Total |Max (gpm) 9 Total Fecal Chlorine BOD TSS BOD TSS Oil & Grease
@Pm) | coliform | Coliform | Residual (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (Grab)
1 0.041219 72 29 14 <2 <0.02 1113122 17 10 305 205
2 0.012340 €8 9 0.02 11/6/22 43 26 380 386
2 - - e <0.02 11/10/22 30 13 503 193
3 0.031900 85 22 33 8 <0.02 11/13/122 47 25 351 239
4 0.038224 87 27 <0.02 11/17122 24 16 319 168
5 0.052655 a9 37 <0.02 11/20/22 33 28 388 276
6 0,045832 75 32 <0.02 11/23/22 44 29 255 206
7 0.038148 M 27 <0.02 11/27/22 51 34 284 233
8 0.037856 56 26 <2 <2 <0.02
9 0.040455 74 28 <0.02 Min 17 10 255 168
10 0.038533 76 27 8 <2 <0.02 Mean 36.1 22.6 348.1 238.3
" 0.047861 78 33 <0.02 Max 51 34 503 386
12 | 0.057306 94 40 <0,02 BOD Removal: 89.6% TSS Removal: 90.5%
13 | 0.053829 97 37 <0.02 Effluent Monitoring
14 | 0.040311 96 28 <0.02 Weekly | Weakly | Weekly | Weekly
Date | Set. Solids | Turbidity pH Temp °F
15 | 0.035078 72 24 <0.02 {Grab) (Grab) (Grab) (Grab)
16 0.035573 63 25 <2 <2 <0.02 11/3/22 <0.1 22.0 6.77 64
17 0.033228 56 23 <2 <2 <0.02 11/10/22 <0.1 37 6.6 64
18 0.035587 63 25 <0.02 1117122 <0.1 241 7.0 62
19 | 0.049614 63 56 <0.02 11/23/22 <0.1 52 7.2 63
20 0.050041 71 30 <0.02
21 | 0.047021 104 33 <0.02 Min <0.1 22,0 6.60 62
22 0.040391 79 28 <2 <2 <0.02 Mean <0.1 33.8 6.89 63.3
23 0.046413 81 32 49 <2 <0.02 Max <0.1 52.0 7.20 64
24 | 0.0473%94 77 33 <0.02 Effluent Limits
25 0.055582 88 38 <0.02 Parameter Units Monthly Avg | Weekly Avg | Daily Max
26 | 0.055359 99 39 <0.02 BOD mg/L 40 60 90
27 | 0.042461 85 30 <0.02 Suspended Solids mg/L 40 60 90
28 | 0.041500 a7 29 <0.02 Oil and Grease mg/L 25 490 75
29 0.024727 48 17 <2 <2 <0.02 Turbidity NTU 75 100 225
30 | 0.029586 49 21 <0.02 7 Sample Median: 23
MPN/ : :
3 Total Coliform 100 mL More than once in 30 days: 240
Min | 0.012340 48 9 <2 <2 <0.02 Daily Maxiumum: 2,400
Mean| 0.041547 77.8 29.5 11.6 <2 <0.02 Chlorine Residual mg/L 6 Month Median: 0.3 1.2
Max | 0.057306 104 56 49 8 0.02 pH pH units Between 6.0 - 9.0
Total| 1.246424 |Effluent daily (dry weather} flow NTE 0.2 MGD (mean). Settleable Solids mL/L 1.0 15 3.0
BOD/TSS Removal % 275%
Influent Brine Received Sludge Removal _
Date Volume (Gallons) Date Gallons 1 certify under penalty of perury that the foregoing is true and accurate and
that the sampling procedure and analysis used are as specified in the Waste
N/A N/A Discharge Order for this Facility.
SIGNATURE: DATE:
PRINTED NAME: TITLE:




J311IL

-31va

~ANVYN QILNRd

‘INLYNOIS

AyoBy siyr 1oy Jopi 8bieyosy] 83seA ey uj payoads se
ase pasn sisAjeue pue eunpesosd Buidwes oy} jey) pue exeindoe pue enj st buiobaioy ay) yeyp Ainfiad jo Ayeued sepun Ajues |

}'0 SPOIXe Ojjel ULIOJI[0D [230) O} WIO)|[0D
[e23) ayy usym Jw o} Jod gop‘ | PaaaXD Jous Jfeys AJsusp W00 [ejoL

0l £1 W 90 L/NSW SNJ32020.J8)u3]
1114 oz W 00L/NdW | wJojito] jeded
queuodiuod podas = =
Buuojuowr-jles (eluswsiddns siyy e Bupioyuow paadwo jo synsed 1einqe; ayj podas jum pue ‘pieag josuos Aenyd 18jepm 0000} 000} U 00L/NdN | Wiojijo] [ejol
[euoibey 15800 [RJUSD 8y Aq paiinbai se Buloluow 1918 Buiateday anuguod jim JSO Yoesg BIAY ‘2202 ‘L Jequieides
U0 Buno00 8aUBPBOXS JLUI LLIOYOT JUBNe UB 0} enp PaJinbal aJe aA0qe popodss pue paysepe synsas selem Buinesal ey = Lﬁw:m._“w%_ - uEaE“MM_z?n.an spun FEIETIS -

SHWI I6)EAA 80EBLING

‘YIS Bupoyuow suinod eyy Ul pepioded OSIE 94E SINSoU NS 4818/ BurAieaay ey) u1 8sUaIB)el SE POpN[aU] 8B S}NSSL JUSNIYT JUL| JUSL)Lel | JOIEMBISEM,

“Buydwes 6 1 4" oL> 4 8 1> TTWQ0/NdW | snooosolajug
J0 awp je o]gis|A > (V4] L (4 £e Z > TWOOL/NdIN | wuoyjo) jeosy
swnd juenyje o
i [4 009°k< L 44 2 4 vi JWOOL/NAIN | wuojljo) jejolL
$3)eUIpIo0”)
- MY P.PP.021 M.STY.EP-021 M..LS.7P.021 M.r'8S.EV.021 M. L bP.02) M.T2LP.0ZL - Sdo epnyibuo
S3]eUIpI00)
s N.€'61.0L.SE Nu€'¥5.01.5€ N.6'9Z.01.5€ Nu.l'01.001.5€ N.L'8€.0L.5€ N.9'91.01.5¢ - Sdo apmpen
ZeiLLL ZZILLL ZILILL 2zt (44129111 zen zzILLL TeiLLL =3 ajeq
u:M..__“_uM_H_ m.“ﬂﬁ:m 9IEUNG jo HMM:WM-__ _M_MW._U 181d BJIAY JO pU __NM._ x“M._uMM mmwwmmuwem _ ung v lepno Iy SoBUNS Aueniig (/Bw)
. snuuwe L IIBANO WY ¥ el Lot O3V | lenno jo1s8m 006 | ueld JuBURREIL syun
SNUILLIS L J1enQ IV odsiqQ sin ues a-MmSy 8av My JsjewRied
+MSH V-MSYy 19]EMIISEM
O-MSH F-MSH oMY

Buuojuopy s93ep Bujaiesey

2202 Y3aNIAON -Yuoi

L00L0100¥ € AQIAM
0€8.p00vD S3AdN

S200-L10Z-£d ¥IQUO

ONIMOLINOW-4713S ¥39UVHOSIA

jusuijeald] 19jemMalSepn

0¢ Asenuer enp podes |enuuy
>ﬂ._ — _ a2 u yiuow Buymayoy jo Aep 1s; anp podes Apjuop
uoiBay )se0y Jelua)
‘paeog [o4uog Afend
J9)BM JeuoiBay BruIOlED

asd yoeog eIy




| zzoze Lzozw 0zozm |

(zzoz - 0202)
MO14 ININT443 dIMM ATIVA IOVHIAY asOHaVY

000'0L

00002

000'0¢

0oo‘ov

00005

000°08

00004

AvQ ¥d3d SNOTIVO




HLNONW

03da AON 120 dds onv anr NNP AVIN Hdv dviN g34 Nvf

000°00S

000°000°}

000'00S'+

000°000°Z

000°00S'

| zzozm 1z0z® ozOZE |

(zzoz - 0202)
MO14 IN3INT443 dLMM TVLOL ATHLNOW asoav

HLNOW ¥3d SNOTIVO




o3d

AON

100

HLNOW

d3s onv anr NN AVN Hdv HY W g34 NVT

| zeozs 1zozs ozozw |

(zzoz - 0202)
MOT4 TVLOL ATHLNOI SIN1 NVS L1d0d

000°0S

000001

000°051

000°002

000‘052

000°00€

000°05€

000°00%

D00'0SY

SNOT1VO




o3a AON 100 d3s onv ne NAr AVIN gdv dviA 934 NVl

| ublsaQ dIMM—— zZ0Zms= |Z0zms= (ZOz = |

(zzoz - 0202) _
aod IN3N14NI 39VH3IAVY ATHLNOW asogv

0oL

00c

00€

oo

005

009

/6w




HLNOW

anr NOP

| MW oBeiony AeQ Qg ZZOZWEm  LZ0ZWem  (Z0ZWem |

(zzoz - 0202)

dod LNINT1443 IOVHIAV ATHLNOW asoav

ol

S

0c

14

0e

Ge

or

414

0S

/6w




HLNOW

23a AON 100 d3s onvy nr NAP AVW ddv YUYW 934 Nvr

000'00S

000'000't

000'005"}

000'000'2

0000052

000°000'€

000°008'e

| zz0z= 1202w OZOZW |

(zzoz - 0202)
Z3d01 WOH4 A3aSVHOUNd ¥31VM ATHLNOW asoav

SNOT1IvO




HLNOW

o3a AON 100 d3s oNv nre NOr AVIA Hav VN 34 NVF

000°005

000°000' L

000°00S'L

000°000'Z

000°005°Z

000'000°c

000°00G'€

| zzozw 1z0z® oOzZ0ZE |

(zzoz - 0z02) |
al10s ¥31VM ATHLNOW asoav

SNOTIVO




AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kevin Mclean, SLO County Fire Marshal
Via, Brad Hagemann, General Manager

DATE: December 13, 2022

SUBJECT: Introduction of an ordinance amending Title 15 of the Avila Beach Community
Services District Fire Code to be consistent with the most recently adopted State
codes and general cleanup. Hearing set for January 10, 2023.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Board of Directors introduce the attached ordinance and set January
10, 2023 as the date to hold a public hearing on the proposed ordinance amendments.

Discussion: 7

This ordinance is being introduced on the December 13, 2022 agenda in order to hold a public
hearing and take action at your January 10, 2023 meeting. Every three years, the California Fire
codes are republished to incorporate all code changes accepted by a majority vote of the
members attending the annual code development hearings. The State of California adopts and
amends the most recent edition of these codes, which are subsequently published by the
California Building Standards Commission.

The Commission completed the adoption process for the 2022 edition of the California Fire
Code, also known as Title 24, Part 9 of the California Code of Regulations. As a result, the new
code (2019 California Fire Code) will become effective statewide on January 1, 2023.

The proposed ordinance will amend existing chapters of the District Fire Code that adopt and
amend the 2022 California Fire Code, including chapters and sections not adopted by agencies of
the State of California, and appendices. .

Amendments for this adoption cycle include revisions primarily for clarification as part of a
general cleanup within the Fire Prevention Ordinance. While many of the changes are to keep
consistent with the revised codes, they also provide clarification and formatting changes for ease

of use.

Before this Ordinance can be adopted it must be introduced before the Board and a public
hearing must be set. Completing this action would allow the Board to take action on the
Ordinance on January 10, 2023.



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
AMENDING AND RESTATING THE DISTRICT’S FIRE CODE FOUND IN TITLE 15
OF THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICT CODES, INCLUDING
THE ADOPTION OF THE 2022 EDITION OF THE CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE,
INCLUDING ANNUAL SUPPLEMENTS AND STATE AMENDMENTS AND ERRATA.

WHEREAS, it is the desire and intent of the Avila Beach Community Services District
(“District") to provide citizens with the greatest degree of protection from fire; and

WHEREAS, the California Building Standards Code, Title 24, which incorporates the
California Fire Code, is adopted every three years by order of the California Legislature
with supplements published in intervening years;

WHEREAS, the District contracts with the California Department of Forestry and the
Fire Protection for fire protection and enforcement of the District’s Fire Code; and

WHEREAS, the Avila Beach Community Services District proposes to make certain
changes in the requirements of the California Fire Code which are more
restrictive than State law and will affect all occupancies within the District; and

WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code Section 17958.5 requires the District to
make express findings that due to local climatic, geological, or topographical conditions
that modifications and changes to the current California Building Code are reasonably
necessary to provide sufficient and effective protection of life, health, and property
before adopting such changes, and Section 17958.7 requires that such findings be filed
with the California Building Standards Commission; and

WHEREAS, the latest edition of the California Building Standards Code was published
and adopted this year and has the force of law beginning January 1, _and any
local additions, amendments and deletions must then be incorporated; and

WHEREAS, this ordinance will adopt and amend the California Fire Code
including annual supplements and State amendments and errata; and

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community Services
District ordains as follows:

SECTION 1

A. General: Pursuant to Health and Safety Code §17958.5, the Avila Beach
Community Services District hereby finds that due to local climatic, geologic and
topographic conditions as stated in this section, that modifications and
amendments, as identified in this Ordinance to the current California Building
Standards Code (including the California Fire Code) are reasonably necessary to
provide sufficient and effective protection of life, health and property.

1



Climatic: The hot, dry weather in combination with Santa Lucia winds frequently
results in wildland fires in areas of the County of San Luis Obispo. These
conditions create an environment where the entirety of local fire department
personnel is required to control, monitor, fight and protect against such fire
situations in an effort to protect life and preserve property. The same climatic
conditions may result in the concurrent occurrence of one or more fires in the
more populated areas of the County without adequate fire department personnel
to protect against and control such a situation. During such periods, limited fire-
fighting resources support the imposition of greater fire-protection requirements
than set forth in the - California Fire Code.

Geological: The County of San Luis Obispo is in an area of high seismic risk.
Four active faults are within the county, each capable of generating large,
damaging earthquakes. These faults are: the San Andreas Fault, which trends
northwest-southeast near the eastern boundary of San Luis Obispo County; the
San Simeon Fault, which is part of the larger Hosgri Fault Zone and parallels the
coastline in the northern part of San Luis Obispo County; the Los Osos Fault,
which parallels the Los Osos Valley a few miles southwest of the city of San Luis
Obispo; and the Oceanic Fault, which runs from the city of San Luis Obispo
northwest toward the community of Cambria, and was the fault responsible for
the Magnitude 6.5 San Simeon earthquake that affected the region in December
2003. In addition, there are several potentially active faults within the county,
including the Rinconada Fault, the Huasna Fault, and the Nacimiento Fault Zone.
These faults could also produce large earthquakes.

Earthquakes from these faults could produce primary effects such as strong
ground shaking or ground rupture, and secondary effects such as liquefaction
and landslides. These primary and secondary effects pose a significant hazard
to the county’s building stock and infrastructure, and to public health and safety.
These hazards include strong shaking causing collapse of vulnerable buildings
and bridges, ground rupture affecting roads and highways, and liquefaction
damaging buildings, pipelines (water, gas, sewage), marine facilities (docks,
jetties), railroads, and airports. Fire from broken gas lines and the lack of water
from broken water lines could result in major damage. Landslides caused by
strong shaking, possibly in combination with wet weather conditions, could block
highways and railroads, thereby isolating parts of the county and affecting
emergency response. Earthquake-induced landslides could also produce
rockfalls that could strike and damage buildings and vehicles. Tsunamis could
inundate the coastline. The protection of human life and the preservation of
property in the event of such an occurrence support the imposition of fire
protection requirements greater than set forth in the 2016 California Fire Code.

Topographical: The County of San Luis Obispo has rural areas that are in very
high fire hazard areas. Due to varied topography, access to structures in rural
areas increases response time and delays fire suppression efforts. An extended

2



response time will allow fires to grow beyond the control of initial attack fire
suppression resources. Large structure fires in the hillside areas will have a
greater likelihood of starting a wildland fire, which may expose additional
structures to fire. The above described problems support the imposition of built-
in fire protection requirements greater than those set forth in the 2016 California
Fire Code.

SECTION 2 Chapter 15.08 of the District’s Fire Code is Amended and Restated as
follows:

Chapter 15.08

Fire Control Regulations

Sections:

15.08.010 Scope

15.08.020 Nationally recognized standards

15.08.030 Adoption of the California Fire Code by reference
15.08.050 Definitions

15.08.060 Authority to Inspect

15.08.070 Amendments made in the California Fire Code
15.08.080 Fire Hazards/Weed and Waste Matter Abatement

Title 15 HEALTH AND SAFETY
Chapter 15.08 FIRE CONTROL REGULATIONS

15.08.010 Scope.

An Ordinance of the Avila Beach Community Services District amending and restating
the District's Fire Code including adopting the 2019 edition of the California Fire Code
with amendments, regulating and governing the safeguarding of life and property from
fire and explosion hazards arising from the storage, handling and use of hazardous
substances, materials and devices, and from conditions hazardous to life or property in
the occupancy of buildings and premises in the Avila Beach Community Services
District (“District”) providing for the issuance of permits and collection of fees.

15.08.020 Nationally recognized standards.

Where no applicable standards or requirements are set out in this code, or contained
within other laws, codes, regulations, ordinances or bylaws adopted by the District,
compliance with applicable standards of the National Fire Protection Association or
other nationally recognized fire-safety standards as approved by the fire chief shall be
deemed prima facie evidence of compliance with the intent of this code.



15.08.030  Adoption of the 2019-2022 California Fire Code by Reference.

Except as amended by Sections 15.08.050 through 15.08.080 (below) the Avila Beach
Community Services District adopts by reference the 2019 Fire Code including
Appendix, Chapter 4, Section 103, Section 503 and Appendices, B, BB, C, CC, H

as modified and amended. All other Appendices to the 2019 Fire Code are
expressly not adopted Title 15 of the Avila Beach Community Service District
Regulations is hereby amended and restated accordingly. All annual supplements and
State Amendments and Errata to the California Fire Code, that are not
inconsistent with this Ordinance, are incorporated herein by reference.

15.08.050 Definitions

A. District Fire Chief, Fire Chief or Chief Fire Official means the
California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection/San Luis
Obispo County Fire Chief.

B. The District Fire Department means the California Department of
Forestry and Fire Protection and employees, apparatus, materials
and equipment assigned to it by the District and the California
Department of Forestry and Fire Protection pursuant to contract.

C. Property Owner means the owner of property whose name and
address appears on the latest equalized County assessment roll.

D. Governing Body or Appointing Authority means the District Board of
Directors.

E. Jurisdiction means the boundary of the Avila Beach Community
Services District.

15.08.060 Authority to Inspect

Employees of the District Fire Department are authorized to enter upon any property
or premises to ascertain whether the provisions of the Fire Code are being violated,
and to make any examinations, inspections and surveys as may be necessary in the
performance of their enforcement duties. Examinations may include the taking of
photographs, samples or other physical evidence. All inspections, entries,
examinations and surveys shall be done in a reasonable manner. If an owner,
occupant or agent refuses permission to enter or inspect, the Fire Code Official may
seek an administrative inspection warrant pursuant to the procedures provided for in
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1822.50 through 1822.59.

15.08.070 Amendments made in the California Fire Code.

The California Fire Code, Edition, is amended, changed and incorporated
into the District's Fire Code as follows:



101.1 Title. These regulations, including Sections 15.08.010 through 15.08.070,
shall be known as the Fire Code of the Avila Beach Community Services District,
and may be cited at Avila Beach Community Services District Fire Code, ABCSD
Fire Code, or the District Fire Code, hereinafter referred to as “this code” or the
District’s Fire Code.

Section 103. “Department of Fire Prevention”

A. The California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection/San Luis
Obispo County Fire Chief is:

1 The Chief Fire Official and is charged with the enforcement and
administration of the District Fire Code.
2 The Board of Directors' authorized representative to appoint Fire

Code Official(s).

3 The Board of Directors’ authorized representative to appoint
member of the California Department of Forestry and Fire
Protection with the authority of peace officers or public officers
pursuant to California Penal Code sections 830.2(g), 830.7(d) and
836.5(a) in performing their duties under the California Fire Code.

B. The Fire Chief is authorized to make necessary and reasonable
policies and procedures that are consistent with the provisions of this Fire
Code to aid in its implementation.

105.3.3 Occupancy and use prohibited before approval. The building or
structure shall not be occupied prior to the fire code official issuing a permit that
indicates that applicable provisions of this code have been met. No appliance,
device, equipment, or system shall be operated or used until the installation has
been approved and permitted by the fire code official and all applicable
provisions of this code have been met. It shall be the duty of the permit applicant
or contractor or both to cause the work to remain accessible and exposed for
inspection purposes.

109.1 Board of Appeals Established. In order to hear and decide appeals
of orders, decisions or determination made by the Fire Code Official
relative to the application and interpretation of this Fire Code, there shall
be and is hereby created a Board of Appeals. Until such time as the
District Board of Directors appoints members to the Board of Appeals, the
Board of Appeals shall be the Board of Appeals appointed by the County of
San Luis Obispo. The rules of procedure for conducting the business of

5



the Board of Appeals shall be those procedures established by the County
of San Luis Obispo. The District Manager shall provide staff services for the
Board of Appeals. The Board of Appeals shall render all decisions and findings
in writing to the appellant with a duplicate copy to the Fire Code Official. The fee
for appeals shall be consistent with the fees established by the District Board of
Directors.

110.1 Unlawful acts. It shall be unlawful for a person, firm or corporation to

1. Erect, construct, alter, repair, remove, demolish or utilize a building,
occupancy, premises or system regulated by this Fire Code, or
cause same to be done, in conflict with or in violation of any of the
provisions of this Fire Code. To violate any provision or to fail to
comply with any of the requirements of this Fire Code.

2. To cause, aid, abet, or conceal the fact of a violation of this Fire
Code.

110.3 Notice of violation. When the Fire Code Official finds a violation
referenced in Paragraphs A (1), (2), or (3), above, the Fire Code Official is
authorized to prepare a written notice of violation describing the violation and,
when compliance is not immediate, specifying a time for re-inspection.

110.3.1 Service. A notice of violation issued pursuant to this Fire Code
shall be served upon the Property Owner, operator, occupant or the
person responsible for the condition or violation, either by personal
service, mail or delivering the same to, and leaving it with, some person of
responsibility upon the premises. For unattended or abandoned locations,
a copy the such notice of violation shall be posted on the premises in a
conspicuous place at or near the entrance to such premises and the
notice shall be mailed by certified mail with return receipt requested or a
certificate of mailing, to the last known address of the Property Owner,
occupant or both.

110.3.2 Compliance with orders and notices. A notice of violation
issued or served as provided by this Fire Code shall be complied with by
the Property Owner, operator, occupant or other person responsible for
the condition or violation to which the notice of violation pertains.

110.3.3 Prosecution of violation. If the notice of violation is not
complied with promptly, the Fire Code Official is authorized to request
District Legal Counsel to institute the appropriate legal proceedings at law
or in equity to restrain, correct, or abate such violation or to require
removal or termination of the unlawful occupancy of the structure in
violation of the provisions of this Fire Code or of the order or direction
made pursuant hereto.



110.3.4 Unauthorized tampering. Signs, tags or seals posted or affixed
by the Fire Code Official shall not be mutilated, destroyed or tampered
with or removed without authorization from the Fire Code Official.

110.4 Violation penalties. Persons (as defined in Chapter 2) who shall violate a
provision of this Fire Code or shall fail to comply with any of the requirements
thereof or who shall erect, install, alter, repair or do work in violation of the
approved construction documents or directive of the Fire Code Official, or of a
permit or certificate used under provisions of this Fire Code, shall be guilty of a
misdemeanor except for those specifically declared by the Fire Code to be an
infraction. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Fire Code, any
misdemeanor violation or failure to comply may, in the discretion of the District
Legal Counsel or the Fire Code Official, be initially charged or subsequently
prosecuted as an infraction. Each and every infraction violation is punishable by
a fine not exceeding one hundred ($100) dollars for a first violation; a fine not
exceeding two hundred ($200) dollars for a second violation of the Fire Code
within one (1) year; and a fine not exceeding five hundred ($500) dollars for a
third violation of the Fire Code within one (1) year. Each and every
misdemeanor violation is punishable by a fine not exceeding one thousand
($1,000) dollars, or by imprisonment in the county jail for a period not exceeding
six (6) months, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

110.4.1 Abatement of violation. In addition to the imposition of the
penalties herein described, the Fire Code Official is authorized to institute
appropriate action to prevent unlawful construction or to restrain, correct
or abate a violation; or to prevent illegal occupancy of a structure or
premises; or to stop an illegal act, conduct of business or occupancy of a
structure on or about any premises.

110.4.1.2 Continuing violations. The imposition of one (1) penalty for
any violation shall not excuse the violation or permit it to continue.

110.4.1.3 Separate offense. For each and every day, unless stated
elsewhere, during any portion of which any violation of any provisions of
this Fire Code is committed, continued, or permitted by such person
(including firms or corporations) shall be a separate offense and
punishable accordingly.

110.5 Public Nuisance. Enforcement by Civil Action. In addition to the penalties
provided in the Fire Code, any condition caused or permitted to exist in violation
of any of the provisions of the Fire Code shall be deemed a public nuisance
and may be abated as such, and every day such condition continues shall be
regarded as a new and separate offense.

110.5.1 Injunctive Relief. The Fire Code may also be enforced by
injunction issued by the Superior Court upon the suit of the District. This
method of enforcement shall be cumulative and in no way affect the
penal provisions hereof.



110.5.2 Fees, Charges, Fines and Penalties. The amount of any fee,
service charge, fine or penalty of any nature whatsoever imposed by any
provision of this Fire Code shall be deemed a civil debt owing to the
District, County or Court. An action may be commenced in the name
of the District in any court of competent jurisdiction for the collection of
the amount of any such delinquent or unpaid fee, service charge, fine or
penalty together with any penalties applicable thereto as prescribed by
this Fire Code.

110.5.3 Collection of Fees, Charges, Fines and Penalties with Taxes.
The Board of Directors hereby adopts the procedures for the collection of
delinquent rates, charges, fines, penalties and fees established in
Government Code Sections 61115(c) and (d) or any successor statutes.
The General Manager or his/her designee is authorized to record a
certificate specifying the amount of any such charges, fines, and fees
and the name and address of the persons liable therefore, sixty (60) days
after the payment becomes delinquent, pursuant to Government Code
Section 61115(c).

110.5.4 Remedies Cumulative. Enforcement of the provisions of this
Fire Code and remedies for collection of various fees, charges, fines and
penalties are cumulative and may be pursued alternatively or
consecutively by the District. The District's use of any one of the
remedies, legal actions or enforcement actions prescribed herein shall not
bar the use of any other remedy, legal action or enforcement
procedures provided by the Fire Code or by law for the purpose of
enforcing the provisions hereof.

112.1 Failure to comply. Any person who shall continue any work after having
been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed
to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to the
criminal sanctions set forth in Health and Safety Code Section 13871.s.

Section 202, "General Definitions”

Alteration. Any change or renovation to an existing structure other than a
repair or addition. Alterations include but are not limited to the addition or
elimination of walls within the existing building envelope. Alteration also
includes modifications to the structure which involve complete removal and
replacement of wall board within any room.



Floor Area Gross. For the purpose of calculating square footage for the
application of fire sprinkler requirements and fire flow requirements, the
floor area shall include all combustible areas attached to the structure,
including garages, patio covers,

kshops. Alterations and/or remodel square footage will be considered
a combined and cumulative sum of floor area.

Sky Lantern. An airborne lantern typically made of paper with a wood
frame containing a candle, fuel cell composed of waxy flammable material
or other open flame which serves as a heat source to heat the air inside
the lantern to cause it to lift into the air. Sky candles, fire balloons and
airborne paper lanterns mean the same as sky lanterns.

308.1.6.3 Sky lanterns. The ignition and launching of sky lanterns is
prohibited.
Exceptions: Upon approval of the fire code official, sky lanterns
may be used under the following conditions:
(a) When necessary for religious or cultural ceremonies and
adequate safeguards have been taken in the discretion of
the fire code official.
(b) Sky Lanterns shall be tethered in a safe manner to
prevent them from leaving the area and must be constantly
attended until extinguished.

403.2.2 Procedures. Prior to Fire Department Review, proposed event
area must first complete all requirements pursuant to Title 22, the San Luis
Obispo County Land Use Ordinance. This includes receiving any
necessary land use permit approval and issuance of construction and
Conditional Use Permit requirements.

A fire safety review is required to ensure public safety in a place of
assembly, or any other place where people congregate, including but not
limited to; amusement buildings, carnivals and fairs, exhibits and trade
shows, open burning, flames and torches, candles, places of assembly,
temporary membranes structures and tents, pyrotechnics and special
effects, live audiences and any event with public attendance.

A written plan must be submitted to the fire code official 30 days prior to the
event. Written submittal requirements will be in accordance with Section
404 Fire Safety and evacuation plans. A field inspection verifying
compliance of fire and life safety conditions must be conducted prior to
public occupancy of the event. If modifications or additions to the event
areas are made, an updated permit & inspection must be completed.

"5



405.7 Initiation. Where a fire alarm system is provided, emergency
evacuation drills shall be initiated by activating the fire alarm system. Prior to
initiating an alarm, the person initiating the alarm shall contact the fire alarm
monitoring company and advise the company’s dispatcher of the fire drill. In
cases where the fire alarm system is not monitored by a central station,
notification shall be provided to the fire department dispatch center.

503.2.9.4 Surfaces. Roads shall be designed and maintained to support the
imposed load of fire apparatus weighing at least 75,000 pounds and provide
aggregate base. Driveways and road and driveway structures shall be designed
and maintained to support at least 40,000 pounds.

503.2.9.5 Special Purpose Roads. Roads designated to service non-habitable
infrastructure to include specific group U occupancies including communication
towers and water tanks. Road shall be designed to have a minimum 12-foot
travel lane and 13 foot 6-inch vertical clearance. Special purpose roads
exceeding 150 feet in length but less than 800 feet shall have a standard turnout
near the midpoint of the driveway. Turnouts shall be provided at the terminus of
the roadway within 50 feet of infrastructure.

503.1.2.1 Maximum Dead-end Road Lengths. The maximum length of dead-end
roads, including all dead-end roads accessed from a dead-end road, shall not exceed
the following cumulative lengths, regardless of the number of parcels served:

Parcel size Length
less than one (1) acre 800 feet
1 acre to 4.99 acres n - 1320 feet
5 acres to 19.99 acres | 2640 feet
20 acres or larger 5280 feet

All lengths shall be measured from the edge of the roadway surface at the intersection
that begins from the road to the end of the road surface at its farthest point. Where a
dead-end road crosses areas of differing zoned parcel sizes requiring different length
limits, the shortest allowable length shall apply. Where parcels are zoned 5 acres or
larger, turnarounds shall be provided at a maximum of 1320 feet or 1/4 mile intervals.

10

| Comment [VG1]: State Tile 14 is changing to
accommodate residential,

[‘Comment [VG2]: Used for projects like cell
| towers etc.

Comment [VG3]: Removing secondary egress
from the San Luis Obispo County Land Use
ordinance.




Lengths exceeding maximum dead-end road distances require secondary access as
determined by the fire code official. Placement of roads shall be placed a distance
apart equal to not less than one-half of the length of the maximum overall diagonal
dimension of the property to be served, measured in a straight line between accesses.

Amendment No. 2
Section 503.1.2.1.1 is added to read as follows:

Section 503.1.2.1.1 Dwelling Units Developments of dwellings units— where the
number of dwelling units exceeds 30. shall be provided with two separate and approved
fire apparatus access roads when located in lecated-in a state responsibility area or a
very high fire hazard severity zone.

503.2.7 Grade. The grade for all roads, streets, private lands and driveways shall
not exceed 20 percent. Design criteria shall be in accordance with San Luis
Obispo County Public Works public improvement standards. Roads having a
grade between12% and 20% shall be a nonskid asphalt or concrete surface as
specified in San Luis Obispo County public improvement Standards,
specifications and drawings. Any driveway with a proposed grade of between
16% and 20% must be approved by the San Luis Obispo County Fire Marshal.

Amendment No. 3
Section 503.2.9 is amended to read as follows

503.2.9 Driveway. Driveway specifications shall be provided and maintained when

serving ne-moere than-ene-legal-parcel-erlot-with no more than 4 dwelling units, and

any number of accessory buildings.

Amendment No. 4

Section 503.2.9.1 is amended to read as follows

503.2.9.1 Driveway width for-high-and-very high fire-severity zones:
Length Required Width

0 -199’ 12’
Greater than 200’ 14’

11

{ Comment [VG4]: Clear definition on placement |
of egress if required.

-1 CommenE [!ll(:i]: |

—

Comment [VG6]: State Title 14 is going to 20%
grade in SRA.

Comment [BD7]: Should this read:

Roads having a grade between 12% and 20% shall . .



Amendment No. 5

Section 503.2.9.2 is amended to read as follows

503.2.9.2 Turnarounds. Turnarounds must be provided if driveway exceeds 300
feet, and shall be within 50 feet of the building. For driveways exceeding 300 feet, a
turn- around shall be at the -building site and must be W|th|n 50 feet of the dwelling.

Amendment No. 6
Section 503.2.9.3 is amended to read as follows

503.2.9.3 Turnouts. For driveways exceeding 800 feet, turnouts shall be provided no
more than 400 feet apart. Driveways exceeding 150 feet in length, but less than 800
feet in lenath, shall provide a turnout near the midpoint of the driveway

A turnout shall be provided near the midpoint and shall be a minimum of 10-feet
wide and 30 feet long with a minimum 25 foot taper on each end.

503.9.4 Fuel Breaks. The Chief or his/her designee is authorized to cause an area
within 10 feet on each side of the driveway to be cleared of flammable vegetation
and other combustible growth. The Chief or his/her designee is authorized to enter
upon private property to do so.

Exception: Single specimens of trees, ornamental shrubbery, or cumulative
groundcover such as green grass, ivy, succulents or similar plants used as
groundcover provided they do not form a means of readily transmitting fire.

503.4 Obstruction of Fire Apparatus Access Roads Fire apparatus
access roads shall not be obstructed in any manner, including the parking
of vehicles. Minimum required widths and clearances established under
Section 503.2.1 shall be maintained at all times.

503.4.2 Authority to Remove Obstruction. The Fire Code Official and
his authorized representatives shall have the power and authority to
remove or cause to be removed, without notice, any vehicle or object
parked or placed in violation of the California Fire Code and California
Vehicle Code 22651. The owner of any item so removed shall be
responsible for all towing, storage and other charges incurred.

504.3 Stairway access to roof. New buildings two or more stories above
grade plane, except those with a roof slope greater than four units vertical
in 12 units horizontal (33.3-percent slope), shall be provided with a stairway
to the roof or other access to the roof for emergency personnel approved

12



by the fire code official. Stairway access to the roof shall be in accordance
with Section 1009. Such stairway or other approved access shall be
marked at street and floor levels with a sign indicating that the stairway or
access continues to the roof. Where roofs are used for roof gardens or for
other purposes, stairways shall be provided as required for such
occupancy classification.

505.1 Address ldentification. New and existing buildings shall have
approved address numbers, building numbers or approved building
identification placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible from the
street or road fronting the property. Where required by the fire code
official, address numbers shall be approved in additional approved
locations to facilitate emergency response. These numbers shall contrast
with their background. Address numbers shall be Arabic numerals or
alphabet letters. Numbers shall be a minimum of Residential 6 inches,
Commercial 8 inches, and Industrial 10 inches high with a minimum stroke
width of 0.5 inch (12.7mm)

505.1.1 Directories. Where access is by means of a private road and the
building cannot be viewed from the public way, a monument, pole or other
sign or means shall be used to identify the structure. Address numbers
shall be maintained. When required by the fire code official, complexes
with multiple buildings may be required to provide directories, premises
maps and directional signs. The scale, design and location of directory
signs shall be approved by the fire code official and may be required to be
illuminated.

507.2.2.1 Water Tanks. Fire water tanks and exposed supply lines constructed
of combustible materials to include polyethylene/plastic are required to have 30
feet of vegetation clearance. Readily flammable vegetation shall be cleared 30
feet in all directions.

603.1.4 Fuel Oil. The grade of fuel oil used in a burner shall be that for
which the burner is approved and as stipulated by the burner manufacturer.
Qil containing gasoline shall not be used.

603.9 Gas meters. Above-ground gas meters, regulators and piping
subject to damage shall be protected by a barrier complying with Section
312 or otherwise protected in an approved manner. Gas meters shall be
permanently marked and identified as to the building or system served.

606.8 Refrigerant Detector. Machinery rooms shall contain a refrigerant
detector with an audible and visual alarm. The detector, or a sampling tube that
draws air to the detector, shall be located in an area where refrigerant from a
leak will concentrate. The alarm shall be actuated at a value not greater than the

13

requirement.

| Comment [VG8]: Removing metal tank

requirement but adding in vegetation clearance




corresponding TLV-TWA values shown in the California Mechanical Code for the
refrigerant classification. Detectors and alarms shall be placed in approved
locations. In addition, emergency shutoff shall also be automatically activated
when the concentration of refrigerant vapor exceeds 25 percent of LFL (Lethal
Flammabile Limits).

901.4.2 Non-required fire protection systems. Any fire protection system or
portion thereof not required by this code or the California Building Code may be
allowed, when approved by the fire code official, to be furnished for partial or
complete protection provided such installed system meets the requirements of
this code, NFPA standards, and the California Building Code.

Exception: An automatic fire sprinkler system shall not be permitted unless a
complete system.

TABLE 903.1 - AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS FOR

NEW CONSTRUCTION
SQUARE MIN.
SPRINK Footace ' DISTANCES
s LERS BETWEEN Use ExcE
T"‘.'I':JY(;LURE DESCRIPTION STRUCTURES | REQUIREMEN | EXAMPL | PTION
REQgIR MIN | Max AND TS ES s
ED PROPERTY
LINEs (PL)
New buildings All new
including mobile Throughout constru |fj Exce
New g Per CBC, 9 ction | ption
. Yes homes and 0 new
Construction . CRC o and s 2,
commercial buildings .
1 dwellin | 3,4
coaches
gs
L One
Residential Accessory 3.00 story Exce
Accessory Yes structures as 1,000 ’0 50 feet from | NO he?ting, | garage, ption
Structure defined in CRC PL c_:o.ollng, worksh 1
living or op

14




30’ between sleeping studio,
any spaces resident
structures on ial
site storage
bldg.
Accessory to
agricultural
operation, :00 f;eLt One
; rom PL,
Agricultural | ""Tt"."kitcr°f’5' 3000 | 590 Primary story Et’.‘ce
Structure es ngCl:l ura. ! 0 50 feet from | usage must | barn or ption
operations lr_| other be 75% stables 1
accordance with structures livestock or
AG LUO & CBC
= crops
definition
One story 100 feet
I .
Pg;::;: ’ hay storage, | Unlimited if 60 from PL, No public See
arena, No covered riding 'dfeet on ?)Illac 50 feet from use or descript | None
Greenhouse arena, siaes per other AGLESS ion
greenhouses structures
T _Ag_
i 100 feet Barn on
Agncultural LUO Ag Exempt from PL, Per Ag A See
Exempt N & sianed 0 3,00 E i d
(no permit ° signe 0 | 50 feet from AR zoned | Title
required) affidavit other agreement land 19
structures over 20
acres
References:

CRC: California
Residential Code

Footnotes:

CFC: California
Fire Code

CBC: California
Building Code

LUO: Land Use
Ordinance (San Luis
Obispo County)

* For the purpose of .calculating square footage for the application of fire sprinkler
requirements and fire flow requirements, the floor area shall include all combustible

areas. attached to the structure, including garages, patio covers,
shops.

2 Automatic Fire Sprinklers installed at exterior locations shall be approved corrosion
resistant devices when environmental or operational conditions warrant.

15




Exceptions:
1. Structures between the minimum and the maximum square footage must meet all
the above table criteria and all the following are required in lieu of fire sprinklers: = no
conditioned or habitable space, = no second stories (lofts 1/3 the floor area and open to
below are allowed), = minimum two exits including one pedestrian door (side hinge
swinging door), = workshops or offices limited to 10% of floor area, = dedicated fire water
storage minimum of 5,000 gallons steel tank in full compliance with NFPA 1142 (see fire
safety plan) if there is no community provided fire hydrant within 500 ft., = structure
complies with the California Wildland Urban-Interface Ignition Resistant Construction
Requirements, =

Cannot be used as a place of employment
or for public assemblage/events. = Cannot be used as a commercial building.
2. A single-story building or commercial coach where floor area does not exceed 1000
square feet and the occupancy is not a Group A, E Daycare, F1 Woodworking, group R,
Group H, Group | occupancy or any occupancy where cellulose nitrate film, pyroxylin
plastics or any hazardous materials manufactured, stored or handled in quantities in
excess of Tables in CBC, CFC or within Los Osos CSD and the fire flow from a hydrant
is less than 750gpm at 20psi.
3. Mobile/manufactured or factory-built homes or commercial coaches constructed or
altered on or before March 12, 2011 which were not manufactured with automatic fire
sprinklers.
4. Accessory dwelling units shall not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they are not
required for the primary residence.

OCCUPANCY [ oo e y
R
STRU?:TURAL 2 DESCRIPTION SIS | AT Nk s
REQUIRED FooTaGE ' s EXAMPLES
MODIFICATION 3 |
TYPE |
| I
| Alterations
additions and
remodel ; .
D Alteration . sauare Interior | Exceptions
Alterations includes 50% of quare remodels
Yes, if... difoations to | existing | footage wil 1,2,3,4
moditicalions 1o | o ¢ area 2 be Rehabilitatio
the structure considered a n
combined
and
cumulative

16




sum of floor |

area
Alterations
additions and
remodel
Additions 1,000 sf square
cumulative from footage will
b s .
Additions ' | Yes, if... Zo.é)asn:jeagr;’rg:éss or consi d:re ga | Anyaddition | Exception 4
| of any change 50% of , | combined
of ownership | floor area and
cumulative
sum of floor
area
[ Hazard :
classification
rating as
Change results determined | Any change
Hazard in higher hazard bg th(:rﬁr.el of
Cate d d d code offcial, occupancy
gory an or as deeme and ErrEd in None
Occupancy Yes necessary by Any occupancy Che te 3 of
Classification fire code official classification tr?p grBCo
Changes and the building as e
gficial determined
by the
building
official.
|
Cellulose nitrate | '
film or pyroxylin Building and
lastics or an f
P ha;ar - y any portion of
. a buildin
Hazardous materials must alsg Any None
Materials Yes manufactured, Any include occupancy
Inside stored or requirements
buildings handled in as listed in
q:igg::z;n CFC Chapter
|
Tables in CBC, 50054
CFC

17



References:

CRC: California Residential CFC: California Fire CBC: California Building
Code Code Code

Footnotes:

- For the purpose of calculating square footage for the application of fire sprinkler
requirements and fire flow requirements, the floor area shall include all combustible
areas attached to the structure, including garages, patio covers,

-

~

- Fire sprinklers are required when all ceiling coverings are removed, or a project
reaches the threshold of 50% of addition or alteration; determination of fire sprinklers
shall be made by one of the following methods: 1) By net floor area: Any room(s) or
area(s) that are added, altered, rehabilitated or repaired shall have their net floor area
calculated and compared to the total net floor area of the existing structure to find the
calculated percentage. 2) By surface area: Surface area shall be defined as surfaces
of walls and ceilings. Any room(s) or area(s) that are added, altered, rehabilitated or
repaired shall have their surface area calculated compared to the total wall and ceiling
surface area of the existing structure to find the calculated percentage.

Note: Change(s) in project scope after the plan review process shall require that the fire

sprinkler calculation be revised and submitted for review and approval.

% Automatic Fire Sprinklers installed at exterior locations shall be approved corrosion
resistant devices when environmental conditions warrant.

“ Mobile/manufactured or factory-built homes or commercial coaches constructed or

altered on or before March 12, 2011 which were not manufactured with automatic fire

sprinklers are not subject to fire sprinkler requirements.

Exceptions:
1. Alterations limited to only one of the following: replacement of exterior coverings and
windows, roofing, electrical services, sewer laterals, retaining walls, or routine plumbing,

electrical and mechanical repairs.
2. A loft open to the floor below and no more than one third of the floor area of the room

below may be added without requiring sprinklers.

3. REPAIR is the reconstruction or renewal for the purpose of maintenance.

4. Accessory dwelling units shall not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they are not
required for the primary residence. Footnote 2 determination is required.

Section 903.3.8.6 Exterior notification. Ali fire sprinkler systems including
NFPA 13, 13D, 13R shall provide a local water flow alarm.

904.11.1. Manual System Operation Training. It shall be the responsibility
of the business owner to ensure that all employees are knowledgeable in the
use of manually operated or activated fire-extinguishing systems within the
occupancy.

18

| Comment [VG9): Local code to require exterior |
bell




905.3.1 Building height and area. Class Il standpipe systems shall be
installed throughout buildings where the floor level of the highest story is
located more than 30 feet (9144 mm) above the lowest level of the fire
department vehicle access, or where the floor level of the lowest story is
located more than 30 feet (9144 mm) below the highest level of fire
department vehicle access and in any parking structure.

A building that is greater than 20,000 square feet (1.858 m2) of floor area
and greater than18 feet (5.49 m) in height shall have a dry or wet standpipe
system with a 2 % inch (64 mm) outlet at the roof near the roof access.
Location of the outlet and the fire department connection to the standpipe
shall be labeled and approved by the fire code official.

907.6.6 Monitoring. Fire alarm systems required by this chapter or by the
California Building Code shall be monitored by an approved central station
service listed by Underwriters Laboratory for receiving fire alarms in
accordance with NFPA 72. The central station shall contact and notify the
fire dispatch center immediately on notification of an alarm and prior to
making contact with the protected premises.

Exception: Supervisory service is not required for:
1. Single- and multi-station smoke alarms required by Section
907.2.11.
2. Group |-3 occupancies shall be monitored in accordance with
Section 907.2.6.3.4.
3. Automatic sprinkier systems in one- and two-family dwellings

Section 907.10.1. False alarms exceeding 3 per calendar year are subject to citation
and cost recovery.

5804.3 Outdoor storage. Storage of flammable cryogenic fluids in
stationary containers outside of buildings is prohibited, except when
approved by the fire code official. Where outdoor storage of cryogenic
fluids is allowed, containers of cryogenic fluids shall not be located within
diked areas containing other hazardous materials and shall be in
accordance with Sections 3204.3.1 through 3204.3.1.2.3.

5609.1 Fireworks prohibited. The manufacturing, possession, storage
sale, use and handling of fireworks, including without limitation, “Safe and
Sane" fireworks, is prohibited.

Exceptions:
19



1. Use and handling of fireworks for professional display in
accordance with Title 19, California Code of Regulations,
Chapter 6 and a District Board resolution approving the public
display.

5609.2 Seizure of Fireworks. The fire code official shall have the
authority to seize, take and remove fireworks stored, sold, offered for sale,
used or handled in violation of the provisions of Title 19, California Code of
Regulations, Chapter 6 and California Health and Safety Code, Chapter 9.

5704.2.9.6.1 Locations where above-ground tanks are prohibited.
Storage of Class |, Class I, and Class Il liquids in unprotected above-
ground tanks outside of buildings is prohibited. Tanks containing fuels
shall not exceed 8,000 gallons (30 274 L) in individual capacity or 16,000
gallons (60 549 L) in aggregate capacity. Installations with the maximum
allowable aggregate capacity shall be separated from other such
installations by not less than 100 feet (30 480 mm).

5706.2.4.4 Location where above-ground tanks are prohibited.
Storage of Class | liquids in above ground tanks outside of buildings is
prohibited. Class Il and ! liquids may be stored in approved above ground
containers for the purpose of dispensing only at facilities where no sales to
the public occur and comply with Section 3406.1. Above ground tanks
containing Class Il and Class lll liquids shall not exceed 2,000 gallons.
Plans for the installation of above ground tanks shall be submitted to the
Fire Department for approval and in conformance with applicable codes
and standards. When required, a Conditional Use Permit shall be secured.

6104.2 Maximum capacity within established limits. The installation of
any liquid petroleum gas tank over 500 gallons (1,892 L) water capacity is
prohibited unless approved by the fire chief.

If any provision of Chapter 50 as it pertains to Explosive Material is in
conflict with San Luis Obispo County Code Chapter 6.32, the provisions of
Chapter 6.32 shall control

If any provision of Chapter 56 conflicts with San Luis Obispo County Code
Chapter 6.32, the provisions of Chapter 6.32 shall control.

20



15.08.080

Wildland-Urban Interface Fire Area is a geographical area identified by
the state as a “Fire Hazard Severity Zone” in accordance with Public
Resources Code Sections 4201 through 4204 and Government Code
Section 51175 through 51189, or other areas designated by the enforcing
agency to be at a significant risk from wildfires. Areas within or in proximity
to areas identified by the State as a “Fire Hazard Severity Zone” that pose
a significant risk from wildfires will be considered by the Avila Beach
Community Services District as a Wildland-Urban Interface Fire Area.

Fire Hazards/Weed and Waste Matter Abatement.

Section 15.08.80 is added to the Avila Beach Community Services District Fire
Code as follows:

A,

Introduction

Property Owners and affected properties are exempt where enforcement
of this Chapter would result in the taking of endangered, rare, or
threatened plant or animal species or will result in significant erosion and
sedimentation of surface waters.

Weeds Constituting Fire Hazards.

1. All weeds which are described in paragraph B below, growing
upon any property or in any public street, sidewalk, or alley
which when exposed to the elements, endanger the public
safety by creating a fire hazard, and/or impedes access to
fire protection systems or facilities are declared by the
District Board of Directors to be a public nuisance.

2. The term "weeds" includes:

a. Weeds which bear seeds of a downy or wingy nature,;
Sagebrush, chaparral, and any other brush or weeds
which attain such large growth as to become, when dry,
a fire menace to adjacent improved property,

b. Weeds that are otherwise noxious or dangerous;

c. Poison oak and poison ivy, when the conditions or
growth are such as to constitute a menace to the public
health;

d. Dry grasses, stubble, brush, dead shrubs, dead trees,

litter or other flammable material which endanger the
public safety by creating a fire hazard.

21



C. Waste Matter Constituting a Fire Hazard.

Rubbish, litter and other flammable materials (collectively waste matter)
which when exposed to the elements or which by reason of its location
would hamper or interfere with the suppression or prevention of fire
upon the premises, and/or endangers the public safety by creating a fire
hazard, are declared by District Board of Directors to be a public
nuisance

D. Authority of Fire Code Official.

The Fire Code Official is authorized to determine the existence of a
public nuisance and to abate the public nuisance pursuant to paragraphs
E and F, below.

E. Summary Abatement of Fire Hazards.

1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 61100(t) the provisions
of Part 5 (commencing with Section 14875) Division 12 of the
Health and Safety Code are incorporated herein by reference.

2. In the application of the provisions of Part 5 (commencing with
Section 14875) Division 12 of the Health and Safety Code, to
proceedings under this Section, the terms "Board of Directors”
shall be deemed to be a "Board of Supervisors" and the District
Fire Code Official or his/her designees shall be deemed to the
“persons” designated in Section 14890 of the Health and Safety
Code.

F. Violations.

The Fire Code Official is authorized to use provisions of Section 109.3 of
this Fire Code, as amended to abate public nuisance.

SECTION 3. Incorporation of Recitals.

The Recitals to this Ordinance are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this
reference.

SECTION 4. Severability.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance and/or the Code
Sections adopted by this Ordinance are for any reason held to be unconstitutional,
ineffective or in any manner in conflict with the laws of the United States, or the State of
California, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this

22



Ordinance. The Governing Board of the District hereby declares that it would have passed
this Ordinance and the Code Sections adopted by this Ordinance, and each section,
subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or
more sections, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase be declared unconstitutional,
ineffective, or in any manner in conflict with the laws of the United States or the State of
California.

SECTION 5. Effect of Headings in Ordinance.

Title, division, part, chapter, article, and section headings contained herein or in the
various Codes adopted hereby do not in any manner affect the scope, meaning, or intent
of the provisions of this Ordinance or the related Code Sections.

SECTION 6. CEQA

The District Board of Directors has considered the Amendment and Restatement of the
District's Fire Code. The Board of Directors has, as a result of its consideration, the
evidence presented at the hearings on said matter, and all comments that were
received during the public hearing process, finds that the amendment and restatement
of the District's Fire Code does not constitute a "project” under the California
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et. seq.) or
its implementing Guidelines (14 California Code of Regulations Section 15000 et seq.)
("CEQA Guidelines"). The Board of Directors finds that the adoption of this amendment
and restatement of the District Fire Code, including amendments to the California Fire
Code constitutes “general policy and procedure making” described in Section
15378(b)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines which are deemed not to be "projects”. Even if the
adoption of this amendment and restatement of the District Fire Code, including the
amendments to the California Fire Code is a "project” for purposes of CEQA, the District
Board finds that it is exempt from review pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) which
provides that an activity is not subject to CEQA review where it can been seen with
certainty that there is no possibility that it may have a "significant effect on the
environment.” The District Board finds that it can be seen with certainty that there is no
possibility that the adoption of the amendment and restatement of the District Fire Code,
including the amendments to the California Fire Code may have a significant effect on
the environment. The District General Manager is authorized to prepare, execute and
file a notice of exemption pursuant to the above provisions.

SECTION 7. Inconsistency.

To the extent that the terms of provision of this Ordinance or the Code amendments
adopted hereby, are inconsistent or conflict with the terms or conditions of any prior District
Ordinance(s), Motions, Resolutions, Rules, or Regulations, governing the same subject
matter thereof, then such inconsistent and conflicting provisions of prior Ordinances,
Motions, Resolutions, Rules, and Regulations are hereby repealed.

23



SECTION 8.

Nothing within this Ordinance or the amendment and restatement of the District Fire
Code shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any
rights acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or
existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 7 of this
Ordinance; nor shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired
or affected by this Ordinance. '

SECTION 9. Publication.

The summary publication procedures authorized by Section 25124(b)(1) of the
Government Code are hereby approved. The summary shall be prepared by the District
Fire Chief or his/her designee.

SECTION 10. Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its
passage. Before the expiration of the fifteenth (15™) day after passage it shall be
published once with the names of the members of the Board of Directors voting for or
against the Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation within the District.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors held on December 14,
and passed and adopted by the District Board of Directors on the 10" day of
January, by the following roll call vote to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Pete Kelley, President of the Board of Directors
Avila Beach Community Services District

ATTEST:

Brad Hagemann
District General Manager and Secretary

24



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
AMENDING AND RESTATING THE DISTRICT’S FIRE CODE FOUND IN TITLE 15
OF THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICE DISTRICT CODES, INCLUDING
THE ADOPTION OF THE 2022 EDITION OF THE CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE,
INCLUDING ANNUAL SUPPLEMENTS AND STATE AMENDMENTS AND ERRATA.

WHEREAS, it is the desire and intent of the Avila Beach Community Services District
(“District”) to provide citizens with the greatest degree of protection from fire; and

WHEREAS, the California Building Standards Code, Title 24, which incorporates the
California Fire Code, is adopted every three years by order of the California Legislature
with supplements published in intervening years;

WHEREAS, the District contracts with the California Department of Forestry and the
Fire Protection for fire protection and enforcement of the District’s Fire Code; and

WHEREAS, the Avila Beach Community Services District proposes to make certain
changes in the requirements of the 2022 California Fire Code which are more restrictive
than State law and will affect all occupancies within the District; and

WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code Section 17958.5 requires the District to
make express findings that due to local climatic, geological, or topographical conditions
that modifications and changes to the current California Building Code are reasonably
necessary to provide sufficient and effective protection of life, health, and property
before adopting such changes, and Section 17958.7 requires that such findings be filed
with the California Building Standards Commission; and

WHEREAS, the latest edition of the California Building Standards Code was published
and adopted this year and has the force of law beginning January 1, 2023 and any local
additions, amendments and deletions must then be incorporated; and

WHEREAS, this ordinance will adopt and amend the 2022 California Fire Code
including annual supplements and State amendments and errata; and

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community Services
District ordains as follows:

SECTION 1

A. General: Pursuant to Health and Safety Code §17958.5, the Avila Beach
Community Services District hereby finds that due to local climatic, geologic and
topographic conditions as stated in this section, that modifications and
amendments, as identified in this Ordinance to the current California Building
Standards Code (including the California Fire Code) are reasonably necessary to
provide sufficient and effective protection of life, health and property.



Climatic: The hot, dry weather in combination with Santa Lucia winds frequently
results in wildland fires in areas of the County of San Luis Obispo. These
conditions create an environment where the entirety of local fire department
personnel is required to control, monitor, fight and protect against such fire
situations in an effort to protect life and preserve property. The same climatic
conditions may result in the concurrent occurrence of one or more fires in the
more populated areas of the County without adequate fire department personnel
to protect against and control such a situation. During such periods, limited fire-
fighting resources support the imposition of greater fire-protection requirements
than set forth in the 2022 California Fire Code.

Geological: The County of San Luis Obispo is in an area of high seismic risk.
Four active faults are within the county, each capable of generating large,
damaging earthquakes. These faults are: the San Andreas Fault, which trends
northwest-southeast near the eastern boundary of San Luis Obispo County; the
San Simeon Fault, which is part of the larger Hosgri Fault Zone and parallels the
coastline in the northern part of San Luis Obispo County; the Los Osos Fault,
which parallels the Los Osos Valley a few miles southwest of the city of San Luis
Obispo; and the Oceanic Fault, which runs from the city of San Luis Obispo
northwest toward the community of Cambria, and was the fault responsible for
the Magnitude 6.5 San Simeon earthquake that affected the region in December
2003. In addition, there are several potentially active faults within the county,
including the Rinconada Fault, the Huasna Fault, and the Nacimiento Fault Zone.
These faults could also produce large earthquakes.

Earthquakes from these faults could produce primary effects such as strong
ground shaking or ground rupture, and secondary effects such as liquefaction
and landslides. These primary and secondary effects pose a significant hazard
to the county’s building stock and infrastructure, and to public health and safety.
These hazards include strong shaking causing collapse of vulnerable buildings
and bridges, ground rupture affecting roads and highways, and liquefaction
damaging buildings, pipelines (water, gas, sewage), marine facilities (docks,
jetties), railroads, and airports. Fire from broken gas lines and the lack of water
from broken water lines could result in major damage. Landslides caused by
strong shaking, possibly in combination with wet weather conditions, could block
highways and railroads, thereby isolating parts of the county and affecting
emergency response. Earthquake-induced landslides could also produce
rockfalls that could strike and damage buildings and vehicles. Tsunamis could
inundate the coastline. The protection of human life and the preservation of
property in the event of such an occurrence support the imposition of fire
protection requirements greater than set forth in the 2022 California Fire Code.

Topographical: The County of San Luis Obispo has rural areas that are in very
high fire hazard areas. Due to varied topography, access to structures in rural
areas increases response time and delays fire suppression efforts. An extended

2



response time will allow fires to grow beyond the control of initial attack fire
suppression resources. Large structure fires in the hillside areas will have a
greater likelihood of starting a wildland fire, which may expose additional
structures to fire. The above described problems support the imposition of built-
in fire protection requirements greater than those set forth in the 2022 California
Fire Code.

SECTION 2 Chapter 15.08 of the District’s Fire Code is Amended and Restated as
follows:

Chapter 15.08

Fire Control Regulations

Sections:

15.08.010 Scope

15.08.020 Nationally recognized standards

15.08.030 Adoption of the California Fire Code by reference
15.08.050 Definitions

15.08.060 Authority to Inspect

15.08.070 Amendments made in the California Fire Code
15.08.080 Fire Hazards/Weed and Waste Matter Abatement

Title 15 HEALTH AND SAFETY
Chapter 15.08 FIRE CONTROL REGULATIONS

15.08.010 Scope.

An Ordinance of the Avila Beach Community Services District amending and restating
the District’s Fire Code including adopting the 2022 edition of the California Fire Code
with amendments, regulating and governing the safeguarding of life and property from
fire and explosion hazards arising from the storage, handling and use of hazardous
substances, materials and devices, and from conditions hazardous to life or property in
the occupancy of buildings and premises in the Avila Beach Community Services
District (“District”) providing for the issuance of permits and collection of fees.

15.08.020 Nationally recognized standards.

Where no applicable standards or requirements are set out in this code, or contained
within other laws, codes, regulations, ordinances or bylaws adopted by the District,
compliance with applicable standards of the National Fire Protection Association or
other nationally recognized fire-safety standards as approved by the fire chief shall be
deemed prima facie evidence of compliance with the intent of this code.



15.08.030 Adoption of the 2022 California Fire Code by Reference.

Except as amended by Sections 15.08.050 through 15.08.080 (below) the Avila Beach
Community Services District adopts by reference the 2022 Fire Code including
Appendix, Chapter 4, Section 103, Section 503 and Appendices, B, BB, C, CC, F, H
and P as modified and amended. All other Appendices to the 2022 Fire Code are
expressly not adopted . Title 15 of the Avila Beach Community Service District
Regulations is hereby amended and restated accordingly. All annual supplements and
State Amendments and Errata to the 2022 California Fire Code, that are not
inconsistent with this Ordinance, are incorporated herein by reference.

15.08.050 Definitions

A. District Fire Chief, Fire Chief or Chief Fire Official means the
California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection/San Luis
Obispo County Fire Chief.

B. The District Fire Department means the California Department of
Forestry and Fire Protection and employees, apparatus, materials
and equipment assigned to it by the District and the California
Department of Forestry and Fire Protection pursuant to contract.

C. Property Owner means the owner of property whose name and
address appears on the latest equalized County assessment roll.

D. Governing Body or Appointing Authority means the District Board of
Directors.

E. Jurisdiction means the boundary of the Avila Beach Community
Services District.

15.08.060 Authority to Inspect

Employees of the District Fire Department are authorized to enter upon any property
or premises to ascertain whether the provisions of the Fire Code are being violated,
and to make any examinations, inspections and surveys as may be necessary in the
performance of their enforcement duties. Examinations may include the taking of
photographs, samples or other physical evidence. All inspections, entries,
examinations and surveys shall be done in a reasonable manner. If an owner,
occupant or agent refuses permission to enter or inspect, the Fire Code Official may
seek an administrative inspection warrant pursuant to the procedures provided for in
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1822.50 through 1822.59.

15.08.070 Amendments made in the California Fire Code.

The California Fire Code, 2022 Edition, is amended, changed and incorporated into the
District’s Fire Code as follows:



101.1 Title. These regulations, including Sections 15.08.010 through 15.08.070,
shall be known as the Fire Code of the Avila Beach Community Services District,
and may be cited at Avila Beach Community Services District Fire Code, ABCSD
Fire Code, or the District Fire Code, hereinafter referred to as “this code” or the

District’s Fire Code.

Section 103. “Department of Fire Prevention”

A. The California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection/San Luis
Obispo County Fire Chief is:

1 The Chief Fire Official and is charged with the enforcement and
administration of the District Fire Code.
2 The Board of Directors' authorized representative to appoint Fire

Code Official(s).

3 The Board of Directors’ authorized representative to appoint
member of the California Department of Forestry and Fire
Protection with the authority of peace officers or public officers
pursuant to California Penal Code sections 830.2(g), 830.7(d) and
836.5(a) in performing their duties under the California Fire Code.

B. The Fire Chief is authorized to make necessary and reasonable
policies and procedures that are consistent with the provisions of this Fire
Code to aid in its implementation.

105.3.3 Occupancy and use prohibited before approval. The building or
structure shall not be occupied prior to the fire code official issuing a permit that
indicates that applicable provisions of this code have been met. No appliance,
device, equipment, or system shall be operated or used until the installation has
been approved and permitted by the fire code official and all applicable
provisions of this code have been met. It shall be the duty of the permit applicant
or contractor or both to cause the work to remain accessible and exposed for
inspection purposes.

109.1 Board of Appeals Established. In order to hear and decide appeals
of orders, decisions or determination made by the Fire Code Official
relative to the application and interpretation of this Fire Code, there shall
be and is hereby created a Board of Appeals. Until such time as the
District Board of Directors appoints members to the Board of Appeals, the
Board of Appeals shall be the Board of Appeals appointed by the County of
San Luis Obispo. The rules of procedure for conducting the business of

5



the Board of Appeals shall be those procedures established by the County
of San Luis Obispo. The District Manager shall provide staff services for the
Board of Appeals. The Board of Appeals shall render all decisions and findings
in writing to the appellant with a duplicate copy to the Fire Code Official. The fee
for appeals shall be consistent with the fees established by the District Board of

Directors.

110.1 Unlawful acts. It shall be unlawful for a person, firm or corporation to

1. Erect, construct, alter, repair, remove, demolish or utilize a building,
occupancy, premises or system regulated by this Fire Code, or
cause same to be done, in conflict with or in violation of any of the
provisions of this Fire Code. To violate any provision or to fail to
comply with any of the requirements of this Fire Code.

2. To cause, aid, abet, or conceal the fact of a violation of this Fire
Code.

110.3 Notice of violation. When the Fire Code Official finds a violation
referenced in Paragraphs A (1), (2), or (3), above, the Fire Code Official is
authorized to prepare a written notice of violation describing the violation and,
when compliance is not immediate, specifying a time for re-inspection.

110.3.1 Service. A notice of violation issued pursuant to this Fire Code
shall be served upon the Property Owner, operator, occupant or the
person responsible for the condition or violation, either by personal
service, mail or delivering the same to, and leaving it with, some person of
responsibility upon the premises. For unattended or abandoned locations,
a copy the such notice of violation shall be posted on the premises in a
conspicuous place at or near the entrance to such premises and the
notice shall be mailed by certified mail with return receipt requested or a
certificate of mailing, to the last known address of the Property Owner,
occupant or both. -

110.3.2 Compliance with orders and notices. A notice of violation
issued or served as provided by this Fire Code shall be complied with by
the Property Owner, operator, occupant or other person responsible for
the condition or violation to which the notice of violation pertains.

110.3.3 Prosecution of violation. If the notice of violation is not
complied with promptly, the Fire Code Official is authorized to request
District Legal Counsel to institute the appropriate legal proceedings at law
or in equity to restrain, correct, or abate such violation or to require
removal or termination of the unlawful occupancy of the structure in
violation of the provisions of this Fire Code or of the order or direction
made pursuant hereto.



110.3.4 Unauthorized tampering. Signs, tags or seals posted or affixed
by the Fire Code Official shall not be mutilated, destroyed or tampered
with or removed without authorization from the Fire Code Official.

110.4 Violation penalties. Persons (as defined in Chapter 2) who shall violate a
provision of this Fire Code or shall fail to comply with any of the requirements
thereof or who shall erect, install, alter, repair or do work in violation of the
approved construction documents or directive of the Fire Code Official, or of a
permit or certificate used under provisions of this Fire Code, shall be guilty of a
misdemeanor except for those specifically declared by the Fire Code to be an
infraction. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Fire Code, any
misdemeanor violation or failure to comply may, in the discretion of the District
Legal Counsel or the Fire Code Official, be initially charged or subsequently
prosecuted as an infraction. Each and every infraction violation is punishable by
a fine not exceeding one hundred ($100) dollars for a first violation; a fine not
exceeding two hundred ($200) dollars for a second violation of the Fire Code
within one (1) year; and a fine not exceeding five hundred ($500) dollars for a
third violation of the Fire Code within one (1) year. Each and every
misdemeanor violation is punishable by a fine not exceeding one thousand
($1,000) doliars, or by imprisonment in the county jail for a period not exceeding
six (6) months, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

110.4.1 Abatement of violation. In addition to the imposition of the
penalties herein described, the Fire Code Official is authorized to institute
appropriate action to prevent unlawful construction or to restrain, correct
or abate a violation; or to prevent illegal occupancy of a structure or
premises; or to stop an illegal act, conduct of business or occupancy of a
structure on or about any premises.

110.4.1.2 Continuing violations. The imposition of one (1) penalty for
any violation shall not excuse the violation or permit it to continue.

110.4.1.3 Separate offense. For each and every day, unless stated
elsewhere, during any portion of which any violation of any provisions of
this Fire Code is committed, continued, or permitted by such person
(including firms or corporations) shall be a separate offense and
punishable accordingly.

110.5 Public Nuisance. Enforcement by Civil Action. In addition to the penalties
provided in the Fire Code, any condition caused or permitted to exist in violation
of any of the provisions of the Fire Code shall be deemed a public nuisance
and may be abated as such, and every day such condition continues shall be
regarded as a new and separate offense.

110.5.1 Injunctive Relief. The Fire Code may also be enforced by
injunction issued by the Superior Court upon the suit of the District. This
method of enforcement shall be cumulative and in no way affect the
penal provisions hereof.



110.5.2 Fees, Charges, Fines and Penalties. The amount of any fee,
service charge, fine or penalty of any nature whatsoever imposed by any
provision of this Fire Code shall be deemed a civil debt owing to the
District, County or Court. An action may be commenced in the name
of the District in any court of competent jurisdiction for the collection of
the amount of any such delinquent or unpaid fee, service charge, fine or
penalty together with any penalties applicable thereto as prescribed by
this Fire Code.

110.5.3 Collection of Fees, Charges, Fines and Penalties with Taxes.
The Board of Directors hereby adopts the procedures for the collection of
delinquent rates, charges, fines, penalties and fees established in
Government Code Sections 61115(c) and (d) or any successor statutes.
The General Manager or his/her designee is authorized to record a
certificate specifying the amount of any such charges, fines, and fees
and the name and address of the persons liable therefore, sixty (60) days
after the payment becomes delinquent, pursuant to Government Code
Section 61115(c).

110.5.4 Remedies Cumulative. Enforcement of the provisions of this
Fire Code and remedies for collection of various fees, charges, fines and
penalties are cumulative and may be pursued alternatively or
consecutively by the District. The District's use of any one of the
remedies, legal actions or enforcement actions prescribed herein shall not
bar the use of any other remedy, legal action or enforcement
procedures provided by the Fire Code or by law for the purpose of
enforcing the provisions hereof.

112.1 Failure to comply. Any person who shall continue any work after having
been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed
to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to the
criminal sanctions set forth in Health and Safety Code Section 13871.s.

Section 202, “General Definitions”

Alteration. Any change or renovation to an existing structure other than a
repair or addition. Alterations include but are not limited to the addition or
elimination of walls within the existing building envelope. Alteration also
includes modifications to the structure which involve complete removal and
replacement of wall board within any room.

Amendment No 1
Section 202, “General Definitions” the definition of “Floor Area, Gross”, is

amended by addition thereto as follows:



Floor Area Gross. For the purpose of calculating square footage for the
application of fire sprinkler requirements and fire flow requirements, the
floor area shall include all combustible areas attached to the structure,
including garages, patio covers, and workshops. Alterations and/or
remodel square footage will be considered a combined and cumulative
sum of floor area.

Sky Lantern. An airborne lantern typically made of paper with a wood
frame containing a candle, fuel cell composed of waxy flammable material
or other open flame which serves as a heat source to heat the air inside
the lantern to cause it to lift into the air. Sky candles, fire balloons and
airborne paper lanterns mean the same as sky lanterns.

308.1.6.3 Sky lanterns. The ignition and launching of sky lanterns is
prohibited.

Exceptions: Upon approval of the fire code official, sky lanterns
may be used under the following conditions:
(a) When necessary for religious or cultural ceremonies and
adequate safeguards have been taken in the discretion of
the fire code official.

(b) Sky Lanterns shall be tethered in a safe manner to
prevent them from leaving the area and must be constantly
attended until extinguished.

403.2.2 Procedures. Prior to Fire Department Review, proposed event
area must first complete all requirements pursuant to Title 22, the San Luis
Obispo County Land Use Ordinance. This includes receiving any
necessary land use permit approval and issuance of construction and
Conditional Use Permit requirements.

A fire safety review is required to ensure public safety in a place of
assembly, or any other place where people congregate, including but not
limited to; amusement buildings, carnivals and fairs, exhibits and trade
shows, open burning, flames and torches, candles, places of assembly,
temporary membranes structures and tents, pyrotechnics and special
effects, live audiences and any event with public attendance.

A written plan must be submitted to the fire code official 30 days prior to the
event. Written submittal requirements will be in accordance with Section
404 Fire Safety and evacuation plans. A field inspection verifying
compliance of fire and life safety conditions must be conducted prior to
public occupancy of the event. If modifications or additions to the event
areas are made, an updated permit & inspection must be completed.



405.7 Initiation. Where ‘a fire alarm system is provided, emergency
evacuation drills shall be initiated by activating the fire alarm system. Prior to
initiating an alarm, the person initiating the alarm shall contact the fire alarm
monitoring company and advise the company’s dispatcher of the fire drill. In
cases where the fire alarm system is not monitored by a central station,
notification shall be provided to the fire department dispatch center. '

503.2.9.4 Surfaces. Roads shall be designed and maintained to support the
imposed load of fire apparatus weighing at least 75,000 pounds and provide
aggregate base. Driveways and road and driveway structures shall be designed
and maintained to support at least 40,000 pounds.

503.2.9.5 Special Purpose Roads. Roads designated to service non-habitable
infrastructure to include specific group U occupancies including communication
towers and water tanks. Road shall be desighed to have a minimum 12-foot
travel lane and 13 foot 6-inch vertical clearance. Special purpose roads
exceeding 150 feet in length but less than 800 feet shall have a standard turnout
near the midpoint of the driveway. Turnouts shall be provided at the terminus of
the roadway within 50 feet of infrastructure.

503.1.2.1 Maximum Dead-end Road Lengths. The maximum length of dead-end
roads, including all dead-end roads accessed from a dead-end road, shall not exceed
the following cumulative lengths, regardless of the number of parcels served:

Parcel size Length
less than one (1) acre — | 800 feet
1 acre to 4.99 acres | 1320 feet
5 acres to 19.99 acres | 2640 feet
20 acres or larger | 5280 feet

All lengths shall be measured from the edge of the roadway surface at the intersection
that begins from the road to the end of the road surface at its farthest point. Where a
dead-end road crosses areas of differing zoned parcel sizes requiring different length
limits, the shortest allowable length shall apply. Where parcels are zoned 5 acres or
larger, turnarounds shall be provided at a maximum of 1320 feet or 1/4 mile intervals.

10



Lengths exceeding maximum dead-end road distances require secondary access as
determined by the fire code official. Placement of roads shall be placed a distance
apart equal to not less than one-half of the length of the maximum overall diagonal
dimension of the property to be served, measured in a straight line between accesses.

Amendment No. 2
Section 503.1.2.1.1 is added to read as follows:

Section 503.1.2.1.1 Dwelling Units Developments of dwellings units, where the
number of dwelling units exceeds 30, shall be provided with two separate and approved
fire apparatus access roads when located in a state responsibility area or a very high
fire hazard severity zone.

503.2.7 Grade. The grade for all roads, streets, private lands and driveways shall
not exceed 20 percent. Design criteria shall be in accordance with San Luis
Obispo County Public Works public improvement standards. Roads having a
grade between12% and 20% shall be a nonskid asphalt or concrete surface as
specified in San Luis Obispo County public improvement Standards,
specifications and drawings. Any driveway with a proposed grade of between
16% and 20% must be approved by the San Luis Obispo County Fire Marshal.

Amendment No. 3
Section 503.2.9 is amended to read as follows

503.2.9 Driveway. Driveway specifications shall be provided and maintained when
serving no more than 4 dwelling units, and any number of accessory buildings.

Amendment No. 4

Section 503.2.9.1 is amended to read as follows

503.2.9.1 Driveway width: B
Length Required Width

0-199 12’
Greater than 200’ 14

11



Amendment No. 5
Section 503.2.9.2 is amended to read as follows

503.2.9.2 Turnarounds. Turnarounds must be provided if driveway exceeds 300
feet, and shall be within 50 feet of the building. For driveways exceeding 300 feet, a
turn-around shall be at the building site and must be within 50 feet of the dwelling.

Amendment No. 6
Section 503.2.9.3 is amended to read as follows

503.2.9.3 Turnouts. For driveways exceeding 800 feet, turnouts shall be provided no
more than 400 feet apart. Driveways exceeding 150 feet in length, but less than 800
feet in length, shall provide a turnout near the midpoint of the driveway

A turnout shall be provided near the midpoint and shall be a minimum of 10 feet
wide and 30 feet long with a minimum 25 foot taper on each end.

503.9.4 Fuel Breaks. The Chief or his/her designee is authorized to cause an area
within 10 feet on each side of the driveway to be cleared of flammable vegetation
and other combustible growth. The Chief or his/her designee is authorized to enter
upon private property to do so.

Exception: Single specimens of trees, ornamental shrubbery, or
cumulative groundcover such as green grass, ivy, succulents or similar
plants used as groundcover provided they do not form a means of
readily transmitting fire.

503.4 Obstruction of Fire Apparatus Access Roads Fire apparatus access roads
shall not be obstructed in any manner, including the parking of vehicles. Minimum
required widths and clearances established under Section 503.2.1 shall be maintained
at all times.

503.4.2 Authority to Remove Obstruction. The Fire Code Official and his
authorized representatives shall have the power and authority to remove or cause to
be removed, without notice, any vehicle or object parked or placed in violation of the
California Fire Code and California Vehicle Code 22651. The owner of any item so
removed shall be responsible for all towing, storage and other charges incurred.

504.3 Stairway access to roof. New buildings two or more stories above grade plane,
except those with a roof slope greater than four units vertical in 12 units horizontal
(33.3-percent slope), shall be provided with a stairway to the roof or other access to the
roof for emergency personnel approved by the fire code official. Stairway access to the
roof shall be in accordance with Section 1009. Such stairway or other approved access
shall be marked at street and floor levels with a sign indicating that the stairway or
access continues to the roof. Where roofs are used for roof gardens or for other
purposes, stairways shall be provided as required for such occupancy classification.

12



505.1 Address Identification. New and existing buildings shall have approved address
numbers, building numbers or approved building identification placed in a position that
is plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting the property. Where required
by the fire code official, address numbers shall be approved in additional approved
locations to facilitate emergency response. These numbers shall contrast with their
background. Address numbers shall be Arabic numerals or alphabet letters. Numbers
shall be a minimum of Residential 6 inches, Commercial 8 inches, and Industrial 10
inches high with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 inch (12.7mm)

505.1.1 Directories. Where access is by means of a private road and the building
cannot be viewed from the public way, a monument, pole or other sign or means shall
be used to identify the structure. Address numbers shall be maintained. When required
by the fire code official, complexes with multiple buildings may be required to provide
directories, premises maps and directional signs. The scale, design and location of
directory signs shall be approved by the fire code official and may be required to be
illuminated.

507.2.2.1 Water Tanks. Fire water tanks and exposed supply lines constructed of
combustible materials to include polyethylene/plastic are required to have 30 feet of
vegetation clearance. Readily flammable vegetation shall be cleared 30 feet in all

directions.

603.1.4 Fuel Oil. The grade of fuel oil used in a burner shall be that for which the
burner is approved and as stipulated by the burner manufacturer. Oil containing
gasoline shall not be used.

603.9 Gas meters. Above-ground gas meters, regulators and piping subject to damage
shall be protected by a barrier complying with Section 312 or otherwise protected in an
approved manner. Gas meters shall be permanently marked and identified as to the
building or system served.

606.8 Refrigerant Detector. Machinery rooms shalil contain a refrigerant detector with
an audible and visual alarm. The detector, or a sampling tube that draws air to the
detector, shall be located in an area where refrigerant from a leak will concentrate. The
alarm shall be actuated at a value not greater than the corresponding TLV-TWA values
shown in the California Mechanical Code for the refrigerant classification. Detectors and
alarms shall be placed in approved locations. In addition, emergency shutoff shall also
be automatically activated when the concentration of refrigerant vapor exceeds 25
percent of LFL (Lethal Flammable Limits).

901.4.2 Non-required fire protection systems. Any fire protection system or portion
thereof not required by this code or the California Building Code may be allowed, when
approved by the fire code official, to be furnished for partial or complete protection
provided such installed system meets the requirements of this code, NFPA standards,

and the California Building Code.

Exception: An automatic fire sprinkler system shall not be permitted unless a
complete system.

13



Amendment No. 7

Section 903.1 Where required is amended to read as follows:

TABLE 903.1 - AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS FOR

NEW CONSTRUCTION
SQUARE MIN. DISTANCES
1
SPRINKLERS FOOTAGE BETWEEN
STRUCTURE DESCRIPTION STRUCTURES | REQUIREMENT s EXCEPTIONS
TYPE REQUIRED 2 AND P EXAMPLES
MiN MAX ND FROPERTY S
LINES (PL)
New buildings All new
New ' Yes including mobile 0 Per CBC, CRC Throughput new | construction Exception
Construction homes and buildings and
. 1 . 2,3,4
commercial coaches dwellings
One story
. . garage,
iii:::;'al Yes Accessory structures 1000 | 3.000 50 feet from PL No heating, workshop, | Exception
Struct ry as defined in CRC ’ ’ cooling, living or studio, 1
fucture 30’ between any | sleeping spaces | residential
structures on site storage bldg.
Accessory to Primary usage
. . o
Agricultural ag::sglstrgslios;ra;on’ 100 feet from PL, nr:c:tstt:)ilzfc))f) One story Exception
9 Yes . » Crop N 3,000 5,000 50 feet from bamn or P
Structure Agricultural operations crops 1
. . other structures stables
in accordance with AG
LUO & CBC definition
PoISIGEIn, One story hay storage, Unlimited if 60 100 feet from PL, .
Covered - . No public use or See
No covered riding arena, feet on all sides 50 feet from L None
arena, access description
greenhouses per CBC other structures
Greenhouse
Agricultural 100 feet from PL, Ag-Barm on See
o pomi No o i |0 300 | g tectom | agreement | A9 Zoned
(no pe I 9 otber stuctures 9 land over 20 | Title 19
required) SCres
References:

CRC: California
Residential Code

Fire Code

CFC: California

CBC: California
Building Code

LUO: Land Use
Ordinance (San Luis

Obispo County)

14



Footnotes:

 For the purpose of calculating square footage for the application of fire sprinkler
requirements and fire flow requirements, the floor area shall include all combustible
areas attached to the structure, including garages, patio covers, and workshops.

2 Automatic Fire Sprinklers installed at exterior locations shall be approved corrosion
resistant devices when environmental or operational conditions warrant.

Exceptions:

1. Structures between the minimum and the maximum square footage must meet all
the above table criteria and all the following are required in lieu of fire sprinklers: = no
conditioned or habitable space, = no second stories (lofts 1/3 the floor area and open to
below are allowed), = minimum two exits including one pedestrian door (side hinge
swinging door), = workshops or offices limited to 10% of floor area, = dedicated fire water
storage minimum of 5,000 gallons steel tank in full compliance with NFPA 1142 (see fire
safety plan) if there is no community provided fire hydrant within 500 ft., = structure
complies with the California Wildland Urban-Interface Ignition Resistant Construction
Requirements, = Cannot be used as a place of employment or for public
assemblage/events. = Cannot be used as a commercial building.

2. A single-story building or commercial coach where floor area does not exceed 1000
square feet and the occupancy is not a Group A, E Daycare, F1 Woodworking, group R,
Group H, Group | occupancy or any occupancy where cellulose nitrate film, pyroxylin
plastics or any hazardous materials manufactured, stored or handled in quantities in
excess of Tables in CBC, CFC or within Los Osos CSD and the fire flow from a hydrant
is less than 750gpm at 20psi.

3. Mobile/manufactured or factory-built homes or commercial coaches constructed or
altered on or before March 12, 2011 which were not manufactured with automatic fire
sprinklers.

4. Accessory dwelling units shall not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they are not
required for the primary residence.

15



Amendment No. 8

Section 903.2 Where required is amended to read as follows:

OCCUPANCY OR E
SEETLRAL SRR DESCRIPTION TG REQUIREMENTS | USE EXAMPLES L
MODIFICATION | REQUIRED® FootaGe '
TYPE
Alterations,
additions and E i
. xceptions
Alterations ' Alteration includes 50% of rfir;\;di jv?il:ta)ree Inter(ljori
Yes, if... modifications to the | existing floor 9 remodels 1,2,3,4
tructure area ? considered a
SEREIEE combined and | Rehabilitation
cumulative sum
of floor area
Alterations,
Additions 1,000 sf additions and
cumulative from remode! square
Additions * Yes, if... | danuary01,2008 or footage will be |\ gdition | Exception 4
regardless of any considered a
change of 50% of f;oor combined and
ownership area cumulative sum
of floor area
Hazard
classification
Change results in rating as Any change of
Hazard . determined by occupancy
higher hazard or as ) , )
Category and the fire code defined in None
deemed necessary _
Occupancy Yes by fire code official Any official, and Chapter 3 of
Classification y == occupancy the CBC
and the building e
Changes - classification as
official )
determined by
the building
official.
| Cellulose nitrate
film o.r pyroxylin Building and any
plastics or any .
portion of a
hazardous o
Hazardous . building must Any occupancy None
, . materials ,
Materials Inside Yes Any also include
e manufactured, s .
buildings requirements as
stored or handled . )
in quantities in IStechimsEE
excess of Tables in ChepiEfo009.4
CBC, CFC
References:

CRC: California Residential

Code

Code

CFC: California Fire

CBC: California Building

Code

16



Footnotes:

 For the purpose of calculating square footage for the application of fire sprinkler
requirements and fire flow requirements, the floor area shall include all combustible
areas attached to the structure, including garages, patio covers, and workshops

2 Fire sprinklers are required when all ceiling coverings are removed, or a project

reaches the threshold of 50% of addition or alteration; determination of fire sprinklers
shall be made by one of the following methods: 1) By net floor area: Any room(s) or
area(s) that are added, altered, rehabilitated or repaired shall have their net floor area
calculated and compared to the total net floor area of the existing structure to find the
calculated percentage. 2) By surface area: Surface area shall be defined as surfaces
of walls and ceilings. Any room(s) or area(s) that are added, altered, rehabilitated or
repaired shall have their surface area calculated compared to the total wall and ceiling
surface area of the existing structure to find the calculated percentage.

Note: Change(s) in project scope after the plan review process shall require that the fire

sprinkler calculation be revised and submitted for review and approval.

- Automatic Fire Sprinklers installed at exterior locations shall be approved corrosion
resistant devices when environmental conditions warrant.

“ Mobile/manufactured or factory-built homes or commercial coaches constructed or
altered on or before March 12, 2011 which were not manufactured with automatic fire
sprinklers are not subject to fire sprinkler requirements.

Exceptions:

1. Alterations limited to only one of the following: replacement of exterior coverings and
windows, roofing, electrical services, sewer laterals, retaining walls, or routine plumbing,
electrical and mechanical repairs. '

2. A loft open to the floor below and no more than one third of the floor area of the room
below may be added without requiring sprinklers.

3. REPAIR is the reconstruction or renewal for the purpose of maintenance.

4. Accessory dwelling units shall not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they are not
required for the primary residence. Footnote 2 determination is required.

Section 903.3.8.6 Exterior notification. All fire sprinkler systems including NFPA 13,
13D, 13R shall provide a local water flow alarm.

904.11.1. Manual System Operation Training. It shall be the responsibility of the
business owner to ensure that all employees are knowledgeable in the use of manually
operated or activated fire-extinguishing systems within the occupancy.

905.3.1 Building height and area. Class Ill standpipe systems shall be installed
throughout buildings where the floor level of the highest story is located more than 30
feet (9144 mm) above the lowest level of the fire department vehicle access, or where
the floor level of the lowest story is located more than 30 feet (9144 mm) below the
highest level of fire department vehicle access and in any parking structure.

17



A building that is greater than 20,000 square feet (1.858 m2) of floor area and greater
than18 feet (5.49 m) in height shall have a dry or wet standpipe system with a 2 %2 inch
(64 mm) outlet at the roof near the roof access. Location of the outlet and the fire
department connection to the standpipe shall be labeled and approved by the fire code
official.

907.6.6 Monitoring. Fire alarm systems required by this chapter or by the California
Building Code shall be monitored by an approved central station service listed by
Underwriters Laboratory for receiving fire alarms in accordance with NFPA 72. The
central station shall contact and notify the fire dispatch center immediately on
notification of an alarm and prior to making contact with the protected premises.

Exception: Supervisory service is not required for:

1. Single- and multi-station smoke alarms required by Section 907.2.11.
2. Group |-3 occupancies shall be monitored in accordance with Section

907.2.6.3.4.
3. Automatic sprinkler systems in one- and two-family dwellings

Section 907.10.1. False alarms exceeding 3 per calendar year are subject to citation
and cost recovery.

5804.3 Outdoor storage. Storage of flammable cryogenic fluids in stationary
containers outside of buildings is prohibited, except when approved by the fire code
official. Where outdoor storage of cryogenic fluids is allowed, containers of cryogenic
fluids shall not be located within diked areas containing other hazardous materials and
shall be in accordance with Sections 3204.3.1 through 3204.3.1.2.3.

5609.1 Fireworks prohibited. The manufacturing, possession, storage sale, use and
handling of fireworks, including without limitation, “Safe and Sane” fireworks, is
prohibited.

Exceptions:
1. Use and handling of fireworks for professional display in accordance
with Title 19, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 6 and a District

Board resolution approving the public display.

5609.2 Seizure of Fireworks. The fire code official shall have the authority to seize,
take and remove fireworks stored, sold, offered for sale, used or handled in violation of
the provisions of Title 19, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 6 and California
Health and Safety Code, Chapter 9.

5704.2.9.6.1 Locations where above-ground tanks are prohibited. Storage of Class
I, Class I, and Class lll liquids in unprotected above-ground tanks outside of buildings is
prohibited. Tanks containing fuels shall not exceed 8,000 gallons (30 274 L) in
individual capacity or 16,000 gallons (60 549 L) in aggregate capacity. Installations with

18



the maximum allowable aggregate capacity shall be separated from other such
installations by not less than 100 feet (30 480 mm).

5706.2.4.4 Location where above-ground tanks are prohibited. Storage of Class |
liquids in above ground tanks outside of buildings is prohibited. Class Il and Ill liquids
may be stored in approved above ground containers for the purpose of dispensing only
at facilities where no sales to the public occur and comply with Section 3406.1. Above
ground tanks containing Class Il and Class Il liquids shall not exceed 2,000 gallons.
Plans for the installation of above ground tanks shall be submitted to the Fire
Department for approval and in conformance with applicable codes and standards.
When required, a Conditional Use Permit shall be secured.:

6104.2 Maximum capacity within established limits. The installation of any liquid
petroleum gas tank over 500 gallons (1,892 L) water capacity is prohibited unless
approved by the fire chief.

If any provision of Chapter 50 as it pertains to Explosive Material is in conflict with San
Luis Obispo County Code Chapter 6.32, the provisions of Chapter 6.32 shall control

If any provision of Chapter 56 conflicts with San Luis Obispo County Code Chapter
6.32, the provisions of Chapter 6.32 shall control.

Wildland-Urban Interface Fire Area is a geographical area identified by the state as a
“Fire Hazard Severity Zone" in accordance with Public Resources Code Sections 4201
through 4204 and Government Code Section 51175 through 51189, or other areas
designated by the enforcing agency to be at a significant risk from wildfires. Areas within
or in proximity to areas identified by the State as a “Fire Hazard Severity Zone” that
pose a significant risk from wildfires will be considered by the Avila Beach Community
Services District as a Wildland-Urban Interface Fire Area.

15.08.080 Fire Hazards/Weed and Waste Matter Abatement.

Section 15.08.80 is added to the Avila Beach Community Services District Fire Code as
follows:

A. Introduction

Property Owners and affected properties are exempt where enforcement
of this Chapter would result in the taking of endangered, rare, or
threatened plant or animal species or will result in significant erosion and
sedimentation of surface waters.

B. Weeds Constituting Fire Hazards.

1. All weeds which are described in paragraph B below, growing
upon any property or in any public street, sidewalk, or alley
which when exposed to the elements, endanger the public
safety by creating a fire hazard, and/or impedes access to

19



fire protection systems or facilities are declared by the
District Board of Directors to be a public nuisance.

2. The term "weeds" includes:

a. Weeds which bear seeds of a downy or wingy nature;
Sagebrush, chaparral, and any other brush or weeds
which attain such large growth as to become, when dry,
a fire menace to adjacent improved property;

b. Weeds that are otherwise noxious or dangerous;

C. Poison oak and poison ivy, when the conditions or
growth are such as to constitute a menace to the public
health;

d. Dry grasses, stubble, brush, dead shrubs, dead trees,

litter or other flammable material which endanger the
public safety by creating a fire hazard.

Waste Matter Constituting a Fire Hazard.

Rubbish, litter and other flammable materials (collectively waste matter)
which when exposed to the elements or which by reason of its location
would hamper or interfere with the suppression or prevention of fire
upon the premises, and/or endangers the public safety by creating a fire
hazard, are declared by District Board of Directors to be a public
nuisance

Authority of Fire Code Official.

The Fire Code Official is authorized to determine the existence of a
public nuisance and to abate the public nuisance pursuant to paragraphs
E and F, below.

Summary Abatement of Fire Hazards.

1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 61100(t) the provisions
of Part 5 (commencing with Section 14875) Division 12 of the
Health and Safety Code are incorporated herein by reference.

2. In the application of the provisions of Part 5 (commencing with
Section 14875) Division 12 of the Health and Safety Code, to
proceedings under this Section, the terms "Board of Directors”
shall be deemed to be a "Board of Supervisors" and the District
Fire Code Official or his/her designees shall be deemed to the
“persons” designated in Section 14890 of the Health and Safety
Code.

20



F. Violations.

The Fire Code Official is authorized to use provisions of Section 109.3 of
this Fire Code, as amended to abate public nuisance.

SECTION 3. Incorporation of Recitals.

The Recitals to this Ordinance are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this
reference.

SECTION 4. Severability.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance and/or the Code
Sections adopted by this Ordinance are for any reason held to be unconstitutional,
ineffective or in any manner in conflict with the laws of the United States, or the State of
California, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
Ordinance. The Goverming Board of the District hereby declares that it would have passed
this Ordinance and the Code Sections adopted by this Ordinance, and each section,
subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof, irespective of the fact that any one or
more sections, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase be declared unconstitutional,
ineffective, or in any manner in conflict with the laws of the United States or the State of
California.

SECTION 5. Effect of Headings in Ordinance.

Title, division, part, chapter, article, and section headings contained herein or in the
various Codes adopted hereby do not in any manner affect the scope, meaning, or intent
of the provisions of this Ordinance or the related Code Sections.

SECTION 6. CEQA

The District Board of Directors has considered the Amendment and Restatement of the
District's Fire Code. The Board of Directors has, as a result of its consideration, the
evidence presented at the hearings on said matter, and all comments that were
received during the public hearing process, finds that the amendment and restatement
of the Districts Fire Code does not constitute a "project” under the California
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et. seq.) or
its implementing Guidelines (14 California Code of Regulations Section 15000 et seq.)
("CEQA Guidelines"). The Board of Directors finds that the adoption of this amendment
and restatement of the District Fire Code, including amendments to the California Fire
Code constitutes “general policy and procedure making” described in Section
15378(b)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines which are deemed not to be "projects”. Even if the
adoption of this amendment and restatement of the District Fire Code, including the
amendments to the California Fire Code is a "project” for purposes of CEQA, the District
Board finds that it is exempt from review pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) which
provides that an activity is not subject to CEQA review where it can been seen with
certainty that there is no possibility that it may have a "significant effect on the

21



environment.”" The District Board finds that it can be seen with certainty that there is no
possibility that the adoption of the amendment and restatement of the District Fire Code,
including the amendments to the California Fire Code may have a significant effect on
the environment. The District General Manager is authorized to prepare, execute and
file a notice of exemption pursuant to the above provisions.

SECTION 7. Inconsistency.

To the extent that the terms of provision of this Ordinance or the Code amendments
adopted hereby, are inconsistent or conflict with the terms or conditions of any prior District
Ordinance(s), Motions, Resolutions, Rules, or Regulations, governing the same subject
matter thereof, then such inconsistent and conflicting provisions of prior Ordinances,
Motions, Resolutions, Rules, and Regulations are hereby repealed.

SECTION 8.

Nothing within this Ordinance or the amendment and restatement of the District Fire
Code shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any
rights acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or
existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 7 of this
Ordinance; nor shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired
or affected by this Ordinance.

SECTION 9. Publication.
The summary publication procedures authorized by Section 25124(b)(1) of the

. Government Code are hereby approved. The summary shall be prepared by the District
Fire Chief or his/her designee.

22



SECTION 10. Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its
passage. Before the expiration of the fifteenth (15"‘) day after passage it shall be
published once with the names of the members of the Board of Directors voting for or
against the Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation within the District.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors held on December 14, 2022,
and passed and adopted by the District Board of Directors on the 10" day of January,
2023 by the following roll call vote to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
Pete Kelley, President of the Board of Directors
Avila Beach Community Services District
ATTEST:

Brad Hagemann
District General Manager and Secretary

23



AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager @
DATE: December 13, 2022

SUBJECT: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-12 authorizing staff to participate and
assist County staff in the development of the Desalination Executable Solution
and Logistics (DESAL) Plan.

Recommendation:

Staff recommends the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 2022-12 authorizing staff
to participate in coordination with San Luis Obispo County and other water purveying
agencies for the development of the DESAL Plan.

Funding:

The County Public Works Department has committed to funding the initial phase of the
DESAL Plan development. There is no obligation on the part of the water agencies to
continue with the process and they can “off-ramp” at any time without any funding

obligations.

Discussion:

On October 18, 2022, the San Luis Obispo County Public Works (PW) Department submitted a
draft Resolution to the Board of Supervisors (BOS) that would authorize Department staff to
develop the DESAL Plan in coordination with other County-wide water purveying agencies and
stakeholders. The Resolution also authorized PW Department staff to pursue grants to offset the
project costs and if successful, return to the BOS for grant award approval. The October 13,
2022, PW Department staff report to the Board of Supervisors is provided as an attachment to
this report.

The Board of Supervisors approved the draft Resolution and directed Department staff to move
forward with coordinating with the other water purveying agencies. The first step is to obtain
confirmation from agencies that are interested in participating in the planning process. As noted
above, the County will be covering all consultant costs for this step and agencies are not
committed to any future funding obligations. Agencies will be able to opt-out at any time.

Attachments
1. PW Department Staff Report dated 10/18/2022
2. Draft Resolution No. 2022-12



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
AGENDA ITEM TRANSMITTAL

(1) DEPARTMENT (2) MEETING DATE (3) CONTACT/PHONE

Public Works 10/18/2022 Angela Ford,

Supervising Water Resources Engineer
(805)781-5139

(4) SUBJECT

Submittal of a resolution authorizing staff to proceed with developing the Desalination Executable
Solution and Logistics Plan in coordination with other participating water-purveying agencies and
stakeholders

and authorizing the Director of Public Works, or designee, to pursue grants to offset project costs and
return to the Board of Supervisors for grant award approval. All Districts.

{5) RECOMMENDED ACTION

It is recommended that the Board, acting as the Board of Supervisors for the San Luis Obispo County
Flood Control and Water Conservation District (District) to adopt the attached resolution authorizing staff
to proceed with developing the Desalination Executable Solution and Logistics (DESAL) Plan in
coordination with other participating water-purveying agencies and stakeholders and authorizing the
Director

of Public Works, or designee, to pursue grants to offset project costs and return to the Board of
Supervisors for grant award approval.

(6) FUNDING SOURCE(S) (7) CURRENT YEAR FINANCIAL (8) ANNUAL FINANCIAL (9) BUDGETED?
SLO County Flood Control and | IMPACT IMPACT Yes

Water Conservation District N/A N/A

(10) AGENDA PLACEMENT T

{ } Consent { } Presentation { } Hearing (Time Est. ) {X} Board Business (Time Est. 30 min)

(11) EXECUTED DOCUMENTS
{X} Resolutions {} Contracts {} Ordinances {} N/A

(12) OUTLINE AGREEMENT REQUISITION NUMBER (OAR) (13) BUDGET ADJUSTMENT REQUIRED?
BAR ID Number: N/A

N/A { } 4/5th's Vote Required {X} N/A

(14) LOCATION MAP (15) BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT? (16) AGENDA ITEM HISTORY

N/A No {} N/A Date 11/16/22, #35; 8/25/15, #16

(17) ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE REVIEW
Zachary A. Lute

(18) SUPERVISOR DISTRICT(S)
All Districts

Reference: 22.125

Page 10of 8
8102




COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO

TO: Board of Supervisors
FROM: Public Works
Angela Ford, Supervising Water Resources Engineer
VIA: Courtney Howard, Water Resources Division Manager
Kate Ballantyne, Deputy Director of Public Works
DATE: 10/18/2022

SUBJECT: Submittal of a resolution authorizing staff to proceed with developing the Desalination
Executable Solution and Logistics Plan in coordination with other participating
water-purveying agencies and stakeholders and authorizing the Director of Public Works,
or designee, to pursue grants to offset project costs and return to the Board of Supervisors
for grant award approval. All Districts.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board, acting as the Board of Supervisors for the San Luis Obispo County
Flood Control and Water Conservation District (District) to adopt the attached resolution authorizing staff
to proceed with developing the Desalination Executable Solution and Logistics (DESAL) Plan in
coordination with other participating water-purveying agencies and stakeholders and authorizing the
Director

of Public Works, or designee, to pursue grants to offset project costs and return to the Board of
Supervisors for grant award approval.

DISCUSSION

Water is critical to the health and well-being of the people, economy, and environment and the
District has an important role in ensuring our county’'s water supplies are adequate and able to respond
to, and accommodate, change while continuing to meet the many various needs. In the county,
existing conditions and future projections indicate that water security is decreasing as demands increase
and available supplies and their reliability decrease. Over the past decade, the Board has expressed
interest in desalination as a water supply opportunity and, on November 16, 2021, as the statewide
drought continues, the Board identified water resilience and desalination as a top priority.

Page 2 ofg



Water Supplies, Demand and Outlook

On March 16, 2021, the Board received a presentation on the various water supply efforts in the county,
including conservation, stormwater capture, Nacimiento Water Project optimization, Lopez Water Project
spillway raise and optimization, Salinas Dam transfer and spillway raise, State Water Project and Water
Management Tools, recycled water, produced water from oil extraction operations, cloudseeding,
and regional resiliency. While many of these efforts are in the planning and/or implementation phases
and will help extend the county’'s water supply, they are not enough to overcome long-term shortages
or be relied upon to sustainably meet future needs. Competition for existing water supplies (particularly
those that depend on precipitation) in the county, and across the state, is anticipated to increase with
new regulations related to groundwater/surface water interactions and minimum sustainability
thresholds, water quality, environmental flow, and housing directives. Relying on water sourced from
precipitation from a different region is challenging due to the county’s relative geographic isolation,
energy and
right of way requirements, and the fluctuating supply availability year to year. A new, drought proof,
local water supply will be necessary to sustain the county long-term.

Desalination is the longest-term and most resilient strategy since it leverages a renewable, almost
inexhaustible resource that would not be diminished by insufficient rainfall or water conservation efforts.
Desalination is a drought proof solution for current and projected water supply imbalances caused
by strained alternative supplies, increased demand and could be scalable such that its capacity could be
expanded as future needs increase.

DESAL Plan

Recognizing that a desalination project will take time to plan for, permit, and construct, it is
recommended that the Board authorize staff to begin planning now. County staff has coordinated with
the Countywide Water Action Team (CWAT), an informal working group of staff from entities across the
county with water supply planning responsibilities, to develop a five-phase approach to developing a
DESAL Plan and project. All phases, including an anticipated schedule for Phase 1, are described in the

following table:

Phase 1: DESAL Plan Agreement Phase

e District Board direction to proceed on path to desalination (Today's recommended action)

e Get resolutions from agencies agreeing to be evaluated in DESAL Plan (Fall '22)

e Develop and vet scope of work with participating agencies (Winter '22/Spring '23)

e Establish stakeholder and public engagement process (implement through all phases)

e Seek/pursue grant opportunities (continue through all phases)

e Review scope of work/engagement process with the Board/direction to proceed (Summer '23)

! Phase 2: DESAL Plan Development Phase

| o District procure consultant

e Implement public engagement process

e Identify project concept alternatives, vet, and analyze

e Rank and select preferred project

Phase 3: Project Development Agreement Phase

e Commitment from project partners to pay for and proceed with project development and all efforts
necessary to get to construction phase

| Phase 4: Project Development Phase

o Detailed project design, permits and environmental processes, operations and distribution plans, right of way
negotiations, water supply and Governance Agreement negotiations, Financing plan

Page ;’ of ,‘E{f



Phase 5: Project Governance Agreement and Construction Phase

o Execute Governance agreement for construction and ongoing maintenance

Stakeholder engagement

Stakeholder outreach and early engagement are critical to the success of a desalination project for many
reasons. One reason is that it takes time to build a broad coalition and public buy-in, both of which are
necessary to obtain future permits. This was exhibited recently when Poseidon, in Huntington Beach,
had a regional desalination project denied by the California Coastal Commission, in part, because there
was not sufficient evidence of local community need/acceptance. Another reason for early engagement
is to ensure comprehensive understanding of existing infrastructure deficiencies and opportunities from
the outset, informing the widest range of conceptual alternatives for consideration.

To address this need, on June 7, 2022, the Board approved working with stakeholders to update
the Countywide Master Water Report. This effort will compliment desalination project planning efforts
by providing up-to-date information on supply/demand imbalances and information on short-term water
supply strategies such as conservation, recycled water, and groundwater management. It is important
to first optimize the use of existing water supplies and there are other separate efforts currently
underway to explore and develop those options. However, since they may only be sustainable short-

term,
it is important to pursue a long-term solution for water supply, such as desalination.

The key stakeholders in a desalination project are water-purveying agencies because they are tasked with
supplying water to customers and potentially investing in such a project. The regional infrastructure
and/or regional supply associated with these agencies may also be needed both directly and indirectly to
make

a project feasible. It follows that the DESAL plan, and any resulting project, will be most robust if there
is wide interest and involvement from the local water-purveying agencies and their communities.
Therefore, a first step is asking those water-purveying agencies to adopt resolutions agreeing to be
evaluated and participate in development of the DESAL Plan. Staff would then work with designated staff
from those agencies to draft a publicly vetted scope of work for developing the DESAL Plan and approach
for involving the full spectrum of stakeholders, from regulatory agencies to the general public.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT/IMPACT

Throughout development of the DESAL Plan, local stakeholder engagement and public involvement
is anticipated to be facilitated by public meetings of the Water Resources Advisory Committee,

where regular updates and opportunities for input will be provided.

In addition to local stakeholders, the outreach/coordination/permitting requirements and the practical
realities of developing a successful DESAL Plan will require involvement with many other entities across
the state. Other likely entities include, but aren’t limited to, the State Water Resources Control Board
(SWRCB), California Coastal Commission (CCC), California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Central Coast
Regional Water Quality Control Board, and National Marine Fisheries Service.

Additionally, it should be noted that on August 11, 2022, Governor Newsom released a publication called
California’s Water Supply Strategy that discusses how the “..State will help streamline and expedite
permitting to provide clarity and to further desalination projects. By June 2023, the SWRCB, CCC,

Pageﬁ of.&”
4 5



the Department of Water Resources, and other state entities (State Land Commission) will develop
criteria for siting of desalination facilities along the coast and recommend new standards to facilitate

approval.”’

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

For FY 2022-23 one of the Board’s priorities listed Water Resiliency of which included desalination as a
water resource management strategy to pursue. Efforts for preliminary desalination planning were
included in the District's FY 2022-23 budget. Staff will return to the Board at a future date with a
proposed scope of work for a consultant and the estimated costs associated with DESAL Plan
development, including consultant costs, Board/Committee processes, outreach and engagement, to
request authorization

to proceed with consultant procurement.

Grants will be pursued to offset project costs throughout DESAL Plan development and implementation.

RESULTS

Approval of the resolution will authorize staff to proceed with developing the DESAL Plan in coordination
with other participating entities, direct staff to begin stakeholder engagement, and authorize the Director
of Public Works, or designee, to pursue grants to offset project costs and return to the Board for grant

award approval.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution Authorizing Staff to Proceed with Developing the Desalination Executable Solution and
Logistics (Desal) Plan in Coordination with Other Participating Agencies and Stakeholders and Authorizing
the Director of Public Works, or Designee, to Pursue Grants to Offset Project Costs and Return to the Board
of Supervisors for Grant award Approval

2 PowerPoint Presentation

File:  890.30.01

Reference: 22.125

L:\Water Resources\2022\October\DESAL Plan\22.125 brd Itr.docx.AF.sd

! https://resources.ca.gov/-/media/CNRA-Website/Files/Initiatives/Water-Resilience/CA-Water-Supply-Strategy.pdf
Page 8 of 8
5§ 5



AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-12

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
APPROVING PARTICIPATION IN THE SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY
DESALINATION EXECUTABLE SOLUTION AND LOGISTICS (DESAL) PLAN

WHEREAS, the Avila Beach Community Services district ("District") provides water
service within the District's service area pursuant to section 61100, subdivision (a), of the
Community Services District Law; and

WHEREAS, adequate water for the people, economy and environment in San Luis Obispo
County is needed in perpetuity; and

WHEREAS, conflicts surrounding use of the limited existing water supplies are increasing,
including limitations on groundwater use and transfers, limitations on surface water diversion and
State policies that lead to water system consolidation mandates; and

WHEREAS, water use efficiency practices, low impact development, storm water capture
and recycled water have been implemented to help extend the limited water supplies but are
insufficient to overcome long term shortages and cannot be relied upon to sustainably meet future
additional needs and maintain a reasonable quality of life; and

WHEREAS, despite conservation efforts which have reduced per capita consumption from
231 gallons per day to 146 gallons per day over the last 25 years!, the County remains highly
vulnerable to water shortages due to its isolated location and dependence on rainfall; and

WHEREAS, the future reliability of existing water supplies and infrastructure that depend
on rainfall, such as groundwater and surface water reservoirs and streams, is uncertain due to
changing hydrologic patterns, land use, environmental regulations, population growth and aging
infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, water-purveying agencies are best positioned to develop and utilize water
supply projects that will reduce dependence on groundwater and surface water and can thereby
relieve competition with individual well owners and the environment for those water supplies; and

WHEREAS, due to proximity to the ocean, and future water supply quantity, quality and
reliability needs, the 2019 San Luis Obispo County Integrated Regional Water Management Plan and
2012 Countywide Master Water Report identify desalination as a water resource management

strategy to pursue; and

WHEREAS, while desalination can provide a local, reliable, and sustainable water supply
for decades to come, desalination projects take a long time to plan for, permit and construct; and

' https://www.ppic.org/publication/water-use-in-california/

Resolution No. 2022-12



WHEREAS, the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District
intends to develop the DESAL Plan over the next several years via a public process that, when
complete, will ultimately contain balanced recommendations related to responsibly advancing the
implementation of a regional desalination project that will benefit the people, economy and
environment in the County; and

WHEREAS, the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District
will be the lead agency and contract administrator for the DESAL Plan and is requesting that water-
purveying agencies that wish to be evaluated during the development of the DESAL Plan adopt
resolutions approving participation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Board of Directors
of Avila Beach Community Services District, that:

1. The Avila Beach Community Services District wishes to be included in the development of
the DESAL Plan and to be evaluated as a potential partner in such a regional desalination
project in the future in order to inform our decision makers and constituents.

2. The District General Manager], or designee, of the Avila Beach Community Services District
is hereby authorized and directed to participate in the development of the DESAL Plan, and
to bring forward related recommendations.

On the motion of Director ~_, seconded by Director “and on the
following roll call vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

The foregoing Resolution is hereby passed, approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the
Avila Beach Community Services District this 13th day of December 2022.

Peter Kelley

President of the Board

AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

ATTEST:

Brad Hagemann
General Manager
and Secretary to the Board

Resolution No. 2022-12



